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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of China Qinfa Group Limited (“Qinfa Group” or the “Company”),
| hereby present to our shareholders the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2012.

In 2012, China’'s GDP growth rate went down, growth in coal
consumption slowdown, downstream inventory continued to remain
high, while coal price in the market was at low level, and there was
an oversupply in the overall domestic coal market. Facing a declining
coal market, with the support from our shareholders and efforts
from all our staff members, Qinfa Group achieved a stable growth
in production and sale of coal by further enhancing its capacity for
self-produced coal, stabilizing upstream supply, and applying sale
strategies such as “volume compensating for price” and “sea to
river”.

FULLY TOOK OVER HUAMEIAO ENERGY, FURTHER
ENHANCED CAPACITY FOR SELF-PRODUCED COAL
ABILITY

After acquiring 80% equity interest in Shanxi Huameiao Energy
Group Limited ("Huameiao Energy”) in 2011, Qinfa Group
successfully used one year’s time to take full control over Huameiao
Energy, with its coal production becoming more standardized and
efficient, and its production costs and finance costs reasonably
lowered. Equipped with a modern and professional coal production
team, it successfully completed a production of 6.70 million tons
of raw coal by adopting world’s advanced methods like cross
wheel and longwall mining method, representing an increase of
23% compared with 2011, which laid a solid foundation for stable
development of Qinfa Group.
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FLEXIBLY ADJUSTING SALE STRATEGY

In 2012, in response to a fluctuating and depressed market
environment, Qinfa Group timely adjusted sale strategy and
established transit bases in Taizhou port, Rugao port and Zhenhai
port in Eastern China, adopting the strategy of maintaining a flexible
inventory and being close to our customers to improve responding
time and service quality, and satisfy customers’ different needs
to the fullest extent. This strategy enabled us to gain a number of
customers from inland.

ENHANCED CAPABILITY OF FLEET AND FINANCIAL
MANAGEMENT

The overall management capability for Qinfa Group’s fleet was
enhanced greatly in 2012. Under the continued downturn in the
shipping market, the team created a new major profit contributor
for the Company by alternate operations of old and new fleets. The
professional and efficient financial management team which aimed
for maximization of shareholder’s interests, continued to reduce
expenditures for the Group, explored replacement of domestic high
cost financing with low-cost financing in international capital and
financial market and effectively reduced finance costs.
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LOOKING FORWARD INTO 2013

Looking forward into 2013, along with the recovery of the PRC’s
economy, coal price started to become stable. Recovery of
downstream industries will gradually improve the demand for coal.
The National Development and Reform Commission has linked up
and adjusted coal production and transportation in 2013, and merge
of coal prices is adopted, which marks the first official launch of coal
into market. This is a good opportunity in which Qinfa Group can
further enhance the production volume of its subsidiary’s coal mine,
and dry bulk terminal of the Group located in Gaolan Port in Zhuhai
will be tested and commence operation at the end of 2013. The
management standard of the Group’s fleet will be further enhanced;
and the production capacity of integrated coal supply chain will be
further released. In order to adapt to the changes in international
coal market, Qinfa Group will improve its operation mode for foreign
trade, and plan to set up offices in overseas, so that the overseas
procurement costs will be lowered. Meanwhile, the Group will start
an all-round supply chain cooperation with large-scale enterprises.
| am optimistic about the prospects for the development of the
Company. | believe that in 2013 is a year full of opportunities and
challenges, and the scale of Qinfa Group’s coal operation will climb
to a higher level.
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Last but not least, on behalf of the Directors of Qinfa Group, |
would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders,
management team, staff and business partners for their continual
support to the Group over the years.

Xu Jihua
Chairman

22 March 2013
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Summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities and equity for the

$$§E@i@£ﬁ1ﬂ7fﬁ¢§ﬁ@%% - B

last five financial years is set out below: = BEEESBEENT
RESULTS £
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-BHLEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—E--f E——% ZT-T§ ZTTNEFE ZZT)\F§
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETRT ARBTT AR®TT ARETT ARETR
Turnover EEE 11,085,285 9,971,106 6,455,805 3,926,993 4,192,484
Gross profit EH 1,513,379 1,088,408 757,617 425,655 559,916
Results from operating T REEE
activities 931,361 859,797 555,872 257 621 443,876
Profit before taxation BRETATR R 452,268 697,137 501,888 227,564 395,299
Income tax expense FIERAS (119,118) (99,105) (125,236) (98,061) (64,609)
Profit for the year FREF 333,150 598,032 376,652 129,503 330,690
Profit attributable to: JEAEET -
Equity shareholders ZAUNSIL: do
of the Company BEA 257,748 570,470 377,222 129,503 330,690
Non-controling interests ~ 3EFERRHEZS 75,402 27,562 (570) - -
333,150 598,032 376,652 129,503 330,690
Coal handing and trading ~ EREEREFHE
volume (‘000 tonnes) (FHE) 22,093 15,927 10,918 6,825 6,274

Turnover Coal handling and trading volume
£ 11085 RrRERBES R
11000 25
10000 [~
9000 20
o 8000 c
S 7000 215
£lm 6000 o 8
0% s000- Lo
& < 4000 2
30001
2000 5
1000
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Gross profit Profit for the year
EF FRER
598
2000 600
1,513 500
o 1500 | "
s ! S!= 400 377
2 rg.g 1,088 £ ﬁl;g 331 333
Ele 1000} EL 0o
S 758 SK
T < 560 o< 200}
500 F 426 130
100
0
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
* There was an one-off disposal gain of approximately * —EENFAE-RNEHERSIHARK

RMB97,085,000 in 2008.

97,085,000 7T °
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Financial Highlights

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
—2--fF % ZT-TF ZTTNF ZFTT/\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETRT ARET ARBTT AREBTET
Total assets BERBE 18,186,687 13,079,089 6,421,676 4,160,706 2,085,482
Total liabilities BERE (14,298,021)  (9,824,241) (4,647,047) (2,783,419) (1,350,527)
Total equity AR 3,888,666 3,254,848 1,774,629 1,377,287 734,955
Notes: BEE -

10

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 March
2008 and became the holding company of the Group with effect
from 12 June 2009 upon completion of certain reorganisation
steps as set forth in the prospectus of the Company dated 19
June 2009 (the “Prospectus”).

The results for the two years ended 31 December 2008 and
assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and
2007 have been prepared on a combined basis to reflect the
results of the Group as if the group structure at the time when the
shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) had
been in existence throughout the years concerned. The figures for
the two years ended 31 December 2008 are extracted from the
Prospectus.
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued) EEREEE)

In order to improve asset structure, the Company has BREEERE AR DR —_ZE——
reorganized the trading business of Hong Kong Qinfa Trading FE+ - ABEALTERESERAT(E
Limited (“HK Qinfa Trading”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the BERES|) (KEEBZ2EWB AR
Group to Hong Kong Qinfa International Trading Limited, another MESEKBHREETAZTRERESH
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, in December 2011. As at BA(AKERS—FTE2EMEBAR) °
the dispatch date of the annual report, the sole asset of HK Qinfa MNEBRERIH  BEZREHHMHE—
Trading is the port located at Zhuhai, PRC. Save for holding such BEAMNPTEKENAD - BiZE%Z
asset, HK Qinfa Trading is dormant as at the dispatch date of BEIN EARREHINTRERZAE
the annual report. The audited financial information of HK Qinfa TMASE EALTRE FHTNKEEXLE
Trading is as follows: BRI -

31 December 2012 31 December 2011

—E-—fF T4

+=BA=+-R +-A=+—8H

USD’000 USD’000

FER TEx

Revenue WA - 833,802
Gross (Loss)/Profit (E8)/EF (896) 20,673
Net (Loss)/Profit before tax BRBLATF (E51R),/FIH (1,917) 23,772
Total assets BEMAE 12,689 14,606
Net assets BEFAE 12,689 14,606

Annual Report 2012 =& ——FF3f 11
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. XU Jihua (R 5 %), aged 56, is the chairman of the Group
and an executive Director. Mr. XU is principally responsible for the
Group’s overall business strategic development. Mr. XU has more
than 20 years of management and operation experience in the
logistics and coal operation industries. In 1996, Mr. XU acquired
Qinhuangdao Development Zone Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd., a member
of the Group, and has led the Group to become one of the leading
non-state-owned coal operation companies in China in terms of
annual coal trading volume. Prior to joining the Group in 1996, Mr.
XU was a manager in the Trading Department of Qinhuangdao
Goods Exchange Center from 1992 to 1994. During the period from
1989 to 1991, Mr. XU was the deputy head of Materials Bureau of
Haigang District, Qinhuangdao City, the PRC. Mr. XU did not hold
any directorship in any listed companies during the last three years.
Mr. XU was appointed as a Director on 4 March 2008 and was re-
designated as an executive Director on 6 May 2008.

Ms. WANG Jianfei (E&I7), aged 42, is the chief executive officer
of the Group and an executive Director. Ms. WANG is principally
responsible for the Group’s overall management and operation.
Ms. WANG is also a member of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Board. Before her appointment as
the chief executive officer, Ms. WANG was in charge of the finance
department, human resources department, international trading
department, investment management department and shipping
transportation department of the Group. Ms. WANG obtained
an associate degree in Computer Science by Angeles University
Foundation in consortium with Hebei Business College in 1995. Ms.
WANG completed an Executive MBA Programme sponsored by
the FEIARAXZE & A BERLEFTH O (Risk Capital and
Network Economy Research Center of China Renmin University)
and Bl EE IR L)L (China Enterprise Management Training
Center) in 2002. Ms. WANG has more than 14 years of enterprise
management and operation experience. Before joining the Group
in 2000, Ms. WANG worked in FRMEXIER(FE8)ERAA
(COFCO Industry (Qinhuangdao) Pangthai Co., Ltd.) from 1995
to 2000. Ms. WANG has been a director of Tiaro Coal Limited, a
company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange, since 30
November 2009. Save as disclosed above, Ms. WANG did not hold
any directorship in any listed companies during the last three years.
Ms. WANG was appointed as an executive Director on 6 May 2008.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. LIU Xiaomei (Z|BE#g), aged 44, is an executive Director.
Ms. LIU is principally responsible for the financial and accounting
management of the Group. Ms. LIU graduated with a bachelor
degree in auditing from R AZ (Nankai University) in 1991 and
completed a practical finance officer programme from j5IE A2
(Tsinghua University) in 2006. Ms. LIU has more than 16 years of
experience in the accounting and finance field. Prior to joining the
Group in 2005, Ms. LIU worked as an auditor in 228 IE)RE€5t+
EEBAARS T AR (Qinhuangdao Zhengyuan Certified Public
Accountants Co. Ltd.) from 2001 to 2002. From 1995 to 2001,
Ms. LIU worked as the manager at the finance audit department of
LS SRR =S AR A A (Hebei Hengxin Certified Public
Accountants Limited Office), formerly known as =& &% :1A1E#%
T (Qinhuangdao Audit Firm). From 1991 to 1995, Ms. LIU worked in
HZE2EBMETH (Qinhuangdao City Audit Bureau). Ms. LIU did not
hold any directorship in any listed companies during the last three
years. Ms. LIU was appointed as an executive Director on 6 May
2008.

Mr. WENG Li (§3), aged 37, is the vice president of the Group
and an executive Director. Mr. WENG is principally responsible for
investment management of the Group. Mr. WENG graduated with a
bachelor degree in economics major in international finance from &
SERE (Wuhan University) in June 1998. Mr. WENG subsequently
studied a graduate program in finance from EE KEAHF 5T A 27
(Graduate School of Wuhan University) during the period from May
2004 to December 2005. Mr. WENG further obtained a master
degree in economics from ELEAE (Wuhan University) in December
2008. Mr. WENG has been granted the PRC Securities Practising
Certificate (P EIEZH N ZEFE) since 2004. Mr. WENG has more
than 12 years of assets management and investment experience.
Mr. WENG joined the Group in November 2005, and worked as
deputy general manager and general manager of the investment
management department, and president assistant. Before joining
the Group, Mr. WENG worked as an investment assistant and later
as an investment manager in the assets management department of
Changjiang Securities Company Limited (R;TE&MDBRAA]),
a company listed in the PRC with the stock code: 000783, during the
period from June 1998 to October 2005. Mr. WENG did not hold any
directorship in any listed companies during the last three years. Mr.
WENG was appointed as an executive Director on 21 April 2009.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. HUANG Guosheng (Z B ) , aged 70, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 12 June 2009. Mr. HUANG
is also a member of the audit committee and the chairperson
of the nomination committee and remuneration committee of
the Board. Mr. HUANG graduated from FE K2 (Zhong Nan
University), formerly known as & #8207 (Chang Sha Railway
College), majoring in railway transportation in 1965. Mr. HUANG
has been appointed as the legal representative of &R & X FEH
#%& (Guangdong Traffic Transportation Association) since 2007.
Mr. HUANG served as the head of EM &7 (Guangzhou Port
Authority) in 1994. Mr. HUANG was appointed as a visiting professor
by b/&/&% X2 (Shanghai Maritime University), formerly known as
888 EpR (Shanghai Maritime Transportation College), in 1996.
Mr. HUANG is also a senior engineer in railway transportation and
has enjoyed a special government allowance granted by the State
Council since 1992 for his outstanding contribution in engineering
technology for the nation. Mr. HUANG did not hold any directorship
in any listed companies during the last three years.

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (2/83)R), aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 12 June 2009. Mr. LAU
is also the chairman of the audit committee of the Board. Mr.
LAU graduated with a bachelor degree of science in Business
Administration from Oregon State University in 1989. Mr. LAU is a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
as well as a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. LAU has been serving as the chief financial officer
and company secretary of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since April 2003.
Prior to joining Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited in 2003, Mr. LAU was
the financial controller of a subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board, for over three years and had
worked with an international accounting firm in Hong Kong for five
years. Mr. LAU was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited (“Dragon
Crown”) on 30 November 2010. Dragon Crown was listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 10 June 2011. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. LAU did not hold any directorship in any listed
companies during the last three years.
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DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. XING Zhiying (FBE&Z) , aged 62, received a bachelor of
Arts from Sun Yat-sen University (FFLLIK22) in Guangzhou, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Mr. XING served in
various managerial roles, including the vice president of the
Guangdong Branch, the president of the Hainan Branch and the
senior expert in the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
from 1996 to 2011. Mr. XING is currently a senior economist (&
MasEEM) | the chief of Supervisory Committee of the Finance
Arbitration Center in Guangzhou (BN &R EMRESLZES),
the vice president of Finance Expert Association in Guangdong
province, the PRC (BER & @A EZ B XK E ) and a member of the
China Society for Finance and Banking (FEI£@ZE ). Mr. XING
has been appointed the independent director of China Mercantile
Bank (2£/$877) in Shenzhen, the PRC since 2011. Mr. XING did
not not hold any directorship in any listed companies during the
last three years.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chief Financial Officer and company secretary of the Company

Mr. WONG Chi Kin (E&HE), aged 40, is the chief financial officer
and the company secretary of the Company. Mr. WONG has about
16 years of banking, corporate finance and accounting experience
with leading international banks and a UK-listed company, whose
parent company is a listed company in Hong Kong. Mr. WONG
graduated with a Bachelor of Science (Honours) degree in Finance
from the City University of Hong Kong, a Master’s degree in
Practicing Accounting from Monash University, Australia and
awarded an Executive MBA programme organised by The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. WONG is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
CPA Australia. Prior to joining the Group in April 2011, Mr. WONG
worked for a private company as the group financial controller. Mr.
WONG was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Tsui Wah Holdings Limited (“Tsui Wah”) on 5 November 2012. Tsui
Wah was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 26
November 2012.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. LI Yong (ZE), aged 39, is the standing deputy general
manager of Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co. Ltd., a member of the
Group, and is principally responsible for the domestic shipping
transportation business of the Group. Mr. LI graduated with
a bachelor degree in timber processing from Nanjing Forestry
University (BIFRMEAE) in June 1997 and obtained a master
degree in management from Tianjin Normal University (XZff
FAEZ) in June 2004. Mr. LI has more than 12 years of working
experience. Mr. LI was appointed as the standing deputy general
manager of Zhuhai Qinfa Shipping Co. Ltd., in February 2008. During
the period from June 2004 to February 2008, Mr. LI worked as a
project manager in Qinhuangdao Qinfa Industry Group Co. Ltd.,
a connected person of the Group. Mr. LI worked as a business
manager in Qinhuangdao Huasheng Trading Co., Ltd. (FE28E&
& 5 AR A 7]) during the period from August 1997 to April 2004,

Mr. SU Wenyong (B 3L B ) , aged 39, is the vice president of the
Group. Mr. SU is responsible for the logistics operation including
loading stations, railway transportation and storing of northern ports
of the Group. Mr. SU has more than 10 years of working experience.
Mr. SU joined the Group in 2005, and worked as the deputy general
manager of the shipping department and assistant of the Group’s
president.

Mr. MA Baofeng (5{RI£) , aged 36, is the vice president of the
Group. Mr. MA is principally responsible for coal purchasing in PRC
and supervision of self-owned coal mines of the Group. Mr. MA has
more than 10 years of working experience. Mr. MA joined the Group
in 1999, and worked as the deputy general manager of the purchase
and sales department and purchasing manager of the mining zone.
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The Group is a leading non-State owned thermal coal supplier in
China, and it operates an integrated coal supply chain, including
coal mining, purchase and sales, filtering, storage, blending,
shipping, transportation and port business. During the year ended 31
December 2012, the Group continued to focus on these business
activities and expanded its integrated coal supply chain through
upward vertical integration.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Maintained Growth in the Operating Results

In 2012, the GDP growth rate of China falls to 7.8%. With the
slowdown in economic growth, prices of coal in China faced
downward pressure and the demand for shipping transportation
in China faced continuous downturn. The Group strived to seize
business opportunities, progressed with well-planned steps,
strengthened the integrated coal supply chain, and strived to
enhance the upstream coal production capacity of the Group. The
Group continued to expand its customer base and established
and maintained business relationship with new large power plants
(such as China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. Henan Branch,
China Resources Power Holdings Co., Ltd. Jiangsu Branch,
Fujian Huadian Kemen Power Generation Co., Ltd. and Huaneng
Jinggangshan Power Plant) and Stated-owned coal suppliers (such
as China Coal Energy Limited and Datong Coal Mine Group Co.,
Ltd.).

In addition, the Group’s effort in improving the overall management
capability for the Group’s fleet and the operation capacity of coal
loading stations, lowering finance costs and also with a more
stringent internal management system contributed the positive
growth in the revenue of the Group in 2012.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Maintained Growth in the Operating Results (continued)

In 2012, the Group achieved growth in the coal handling and trading
volume as compared with the same in 2011. The coal handling and
trading volume of the Group was 22,093,000 tonnes, representing
an increase of 38.7% as compared with 2011. The monthly average
selling prices of coal during the year ended 31 December 2012 were
in the range between RMB451 per tonne and RMB635 per tonne,
which were lower than the average selling prices between RMB563
per tonne and RMB677 per tonne in 2011. Profit attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company was RMB257.7 million,
representing a decrease of 50.0% from the profit attributable to
the equity shareholders of RMB515.5 million in 2011, excluding
the bargain purchase gain arising from the acquisition of Shanxi
Huameiao Energy Group Limited (“‘Huameiao Energy”) during the
year.

Enhancing Upstream and Further Improvement in the Coal
Supply Chain

The Directors consider that maintaining a stable coal supply with
cost advantage through upstream investment is part of the Group’s
core strategy to achieve long-term growth and enhance the
profitability of the Group.

Since November 2010, the Group gradually acquired the equity
interest in Huameiao Energy up to 80%. Huameiao Energy has
become a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group and its
financial results are consolidated into the financial statements of the
Group. Huameiao Energy has three wholly-owned subsidiaries and
each subsidiary holds the mining right of a coal mine in Shuozhou,
Shanxi Province, China. These coal mines have strengthened the
Group’s operating conditions and result in satisfactory results in the
operational growth.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group owned and operated four coal
mines in the PRC and has equity interest in one company listed
on the Australian Securities Exchange engaging in the coal mining
business. The table sets forth certain information about these coal
mines.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ¥KEREE)

Enhancing Upstream and Further Improvement in the Coal it E—SxSERUENHEZ)
Supply Chain (continued)

As at 31 December 2012
RZB-Z§+=ZA=t-H

Operation Total coal Total coal
Location Ownership  Site area status reserves resources
i 2 BRI & EERR HERFHE HBEARERE
sQ. km million tonnes  million tonnes
FhTK BER [EL- 1
Huameiao Energy Shuozhou 80% 43 Under operation 80 118
— Xingtao Coal (Note 1) Shanxi 2B
EERR-BEER () LA
Huameiao Energy Shuozhou 80% 24 Under operation 48 76
— Fengxi Coal (Note 1) Shanxi HiEH
EXRER-BEEEMTI)  LFEHMN
Huameiao Energy Shuozhou 80% 2.9 Under operation 49 78
- Chongsheng Coal (Note 1) Shanxi (scheduled to be in
EXRER-SAREWE)  LEEMN full production in 2013)
ZER

(BRR-_T—=F2ELE)

Ruifeng Coal (Note 2) Datong 87.88% 2.7 Under development n.a. 67
I (i 2) Shanxi FEH TEF (Note 3)

WAEAR (Bt5E3)
Tiaro Coal Limited Australia 19.88% n.a. Under exploration n.a. n.a.
Tiaro Coal Limited M TER BT i N
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Enhancing Upstream and Further Improvement in the Coal
Supply Chain (continued)

Note:

M

The Group engaged an independent mineral industry consultant to
estimate the total coal reserves and resources as at 30 September
2011 in accordance with the JORC Code. For the period from
1 October 2011 to 31 December 2012, there was no material
change in total coal reserves and resources. The total coal
reserves and resources as at 31 December 2012 were derived
from the estimated figures after deducting the raw coal production
for the period from 1 October 2011 to 31 December 2012.

The total coal reserves represent proven and probable reserves.
Details are summarised as follows:

B

EBmEE)

bz E-SEERREEEE)

Wi

AEEZFE KB LREBREQIRE
JORCFEMEIEZ—ZE—F A=+
AmMBERFEERBERERE - st
T——F+/—BE-_ZT——F+_-A
=+—HLHENE  fEKEERE
HRKEREWEERNEY RZT—=
FT+ZA=1T—HBRREKREE REK
RERENENBR —_E——F+H—H
HBEZE—-—F+-A=1+—H1-HH
REESBEBGFETEMSE

=

B RGEEEEHENBORE -
(ELZ318 UNNE

Coal reserves (million tonnes)

HREE(EEH)

Proved Probable Total
BE ) et
Xingtao Coal B % 66 14 80
Fengxi Coal VPSS 21 27 48
Chongsheng Coal RFEE 31 18 49
Total st 118 59 177

The total coal resources were estimated under the PRC @ BEKERESIREPREEMS -

standards.

The Group acquired Ruifeng Coal at the end of February 2010.
Pursuant to the estimation conducted by a PRC mineral industry
consultant, the total coal resources of Ruifeng Coal was 67 million
tonnes as of 30 September 2011 under the PRC standards.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ¥EEEE)

Enhancing Upstream and Further Improvement in the Coal BinEH E-—SmE=ERUEHEHEE)
Supply Chain (continued)

The following table sets forth the historical full-year production TRIIREMERBNFAREIE N 2 ERE

figures at the abovementioned mines for the periods indicated:—

SEERH

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+—BLFE

2012 2011 2010

—E-=F —E——F —E-TF

Raw coal production volume (’000 tonnes) (000 tonnes) ('000 tonnes)

REEE (Fmg) (Fmg) (Fmg)

Huameiao Energy — Xingtao Coal ~ ZEXEREER — FfgE 2 2,075 2,800 2,837

Huameiao Energy — Fengxi Coal ~ fEEEEER —HiaEE 1,851 1,862 860
Huameiao Energy — EXRER - SHEE

Chongsheng Coal 1,726 486 -

Ruifeng Coal ImREEZ 1,052* 300* -

Total 1Bt 6,704 5,448 3,697

Year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=1+—HLEE

2012 2011 2010

=F-—-F % ZT-TF

Commercial coal production volume (’°000 tonnes) ('000 tonnes) ('000 tonnes)

BEEESE (Fmg) (Fug) (Fma)

Huameiao Energy — Xingtao Coal ~ fEEERER — EfEE % 1,349 1,820 1,844

Huameiao Energy — Fengxi Coal ~ #EEXHBEEER — HiE % 1,203 1,210 559
Huameiao Energy — EXRELR SR

Chongsheng Coal 1,122 316 -

Ruifeng Coal e 1,052* 300 -

Total et 4,726 3,646 2,403

* These represented development coal produced from construction * BRERESRERNEE ZFEK -

of the coal mines.

According to the competent person’s report issued on 30
September 2011, the volume of commercial coal is calculated by a

BRE-_Z——FAA=THERNEGE
RALHRE - 7 amEARE ) 65% ¥t

yield rate of 65% of raw coal. EEHE o

BE_T——F+-A=-+—HLEE
EHE - KERFAZEHTEATEA
AR ¥ 432,600,0007C °

Expenditure on exploration, mining and development activities for
the year ended 31 December 2012 were RMB432.6 million.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Handling and Trading Volume

Revenue WA
Coal business B IR TS
Shipping transportation Mg

i

Handling and Trading volume — AF& X &5

Coal handling and trading HrgeakES

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s coal
production capacity increased substantially. The increase was
principally due to the commencement of production of the four coal
mines operated by Huameiao Energy and Ruifeng Coal and the
increased efficiency of the entire coal supply chain operated by the
Group. Hence, the Group achieved a significant growth in the coal
handling and trading volume during the year ended 31 December
2012, as compared with 2011. The total coal handling and trading
volume of the Group in 2012 was 22,093,000 tonnes, representing
an increase of 6,166,000 tonnes or 38.7% as compared with 2011.

However, the monthly average selling prices of coal during the year
ended 31 December 2012 were in range between RMB451 per
tonne and RMB635 per tonne, which were lower than the average
selling prices between RMB563 per tonne and RMB677 per tonne
in 2011. The decreases in monthly selling prices were mainly
attributable by the increasing volume of clean coal produced by
Huameiao Energy which was sold at mine-mouth price (excluding
the transportation cost charged to customers) and was lower than
the average selling prices of coal sold by the Group. The decrease in
the average selling prices was also due to slow down in the overall
demand for coal in China in 2012.

China Qinfa Group Limited FE=3%&EEER AT
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Bt %5 o R
WANEREEREZE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-BLFE

2012 2011
—F-—-F —ZT—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT
10,918,570 9,836,259
166,715 134,847

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1T—-HLEE

2012 2011
—E-—F T
’000 tonnes 000 tonnes
g F g

22,093 15,927

HE—_ZT——F+-_A=+—RIFE"
REBRERENKIBRA - EBTER
HEXRELR R IR EE QSRR
72 DA R A 5 [ 4 8 0 B (IR o AL B S A R
IR TES - Aty - BT ——FAL
AEBEREERESENHEZE-_T——
F+-_A=Z+—HUIFERSEEEER -
KREBR T —FHBEERKEENES
£ /522,093,000 - |R_T——F L H
6,166,000 M85} 38.7% °

KM RBEE-_E——F+-_A=+—
BIFFERRERNSGAFHEENTE
WA A REE 451 o R FMEAREE 635 7T+ 1K
RZE——FNFEREARKS63TREE
MEAR 677 THFHEE - TAEER
BEZEAREXZREREERNOE
HEMNBEHSE EACTIEEREFUWE
RBEwER)  WERNAEBATHEER
WIEHERE - FTHEEBRETEAPEL
HIREBERN T — —FRIEFRH -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) B S EIRE ()
Revenue and Handling and Trading Volume (continued) IMANBERENESE(Z)

The average coal selling price and the coal handling and trading HE—T——F+-_A=+—HIF=&
volume for each of the three years ended 31 December 2012 are set FEZE  FHEIREE B EE KK
forth in the table below: BRNESEHINTEK :

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1T—BHLEFE

2012 2011 2010

—E-CF —E——F —E-TF

Average selling price FHEE 494 618 579
(RMB per tonne) (B ARETT)

Average monthly handling and FHEAKE 1,841 1,327 910

trading volume (thousand tonnes) KREZ S & (THE)

The Group sells blended coal which is sourced from both overseas REEHHEEBINEF AT % B S
and the PRC domestic markets to customers, including power BRI R B E TEHEMR - KB
plants, cement plants and coal traders. Most of the Group’s FEREGEERP - AEERPZH
customers are located in the coastal regions of China. Power plants AR B /R - 355 RISk A
purchase coal for use in the combustion processes to produce RIREBRE  UEAZKABRRBEE R
steam for power and heat. Cement plants consume coal as primary 2o mAKEMEERERFNOEERE R
fuel in their production process. The following table sets forth Bk o TREBIAEBER_T—ZFR
information regarding the Group’s coal sales by industry segment T —FHRERITED FE DR K
during 2012 and 2011: IHEER -

Year ended 31 December

BE+t=-A=+—-BHLFE

2012 2011
—E——fF —T——%F
Percentage of Percentage of
Net sales Net sales
Netsales {h#EASHEFEE Net sales 1H4BHE =58
HEFE MBS THEHRE F0l=laNvd
RMB’000 % of total RMB’000 % of total
AR¥T T (%) ARETIT (%)
Power plants HEM 3,106,142 28.5 4,666,856 47.4
Coal traders RXES% 3,858,550 35.3 3,683,752 37.5
Cement plants and others*  7KJE/Bi K H h* 3,953,878 36.2 1,485,651 15.1
Total st 10,918,570 100.0 9,836,259 100.0
* Others mainly represented large State-owned coal suppliers. * HAIg KA BB H ikt rEs -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Revenue and Handling and Trading Volume (continued)

The segment turnover for shipping transportation from external
customers for the year ended 31 December 2012 was RMB166.7
million, representing an increase of RMB31.9 million or 23.6% from
RMB134.8 million in 2011. The increase in turnover was primarily
brought by the addition of the two new Kamsarmax bulk carriers to
the Group’s fleet, which came into full operation during the period.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by RMB425.0 million during
the year ended 31 December 2012 to RMB1,513.4 million from
RMB1,088.4 million in 2011, mainly because of the substantial
increase in the coal handling and trading volume and increased
percentage of sales of coal produced by the four coal mines of the
Group.

The Group’s gross profit margin has increased from 10.9% to 13.7%
as compared with 2011. The increase in the gross profit margin was
due to the higher profitability of Huameiao Energy.

Other Income

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s other
income amounted to RMB35.8 million, representing a decrease of
66.2% as compared with RMB106.0 million in 2011. The decrease
in other income was mainly due to the absence of non-recurrent
bargain purchase gain and deemed disposal gain on the acquisition
of interest in Huameiao Energy in 2011 in the total amount of
RMB76.9 million.

Cost of sales
Cost of sales of the Group in 2012 amounted to RMB9,571.9 million,

representing an increase of 7.8% as compared with RMB8,882.7
million in 2011. The increase was in line with the increase in turnover.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Cost of sales (continued)

The following table set forth the cost of sales of the coal business
segment:

BA RS EI R (42)

HERAR(E)

TREGIRREBS D BRHISHERA -

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—BLEFE

2012 2011

—E--F —ET—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT AR®ETT

Cost of coal purchased AN R B K AR 7,755.6 7,769.4

Cost of coal transportation* IR B B A 945.6 776.1
Cost of self-produced coal BER KA 672.2 728.1%

Materials, fuel, power R R B 122.9 137.9

Staff costs B ITKA 89.4 81.2

Transportation iEd 18.1 21.3

Depreciation and amortisation 78 5 2 44 92.4 71.6

Others Hith 349.4 416.1

Other costs H b A 30.4 46.6

Total cost of sales of coal IR TG S4B SH B A
business segment 9,403.8 9,320.2

* Cost of coal transportation refers to the transportation cost before * B ERK AR HEANERK
elimination on consolidation. IR o
# The cost of self-produced coals represented the full-year cost # B E B R K AN B EE X R AR K In B R

BHEFERA - REEEA T ——
FHr-—AZT=H(EEXREERKAK
EEMBARZA)RKBEEXRER
80% A% -

of Huameiao Energy and Ruifeng coal. The Group has acquired
80% equity interest of Huameiao Energy since 23 December 2011
(the date of which Huameiao Energy became a subsidiary of the
Group).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Cost of sales (continued)
The Group purchases coal from both overseas and the PRC

domestic market. The following table sets forth information regarding
the Group’s origins of coal based on sales volume and net sales in

B ) i B2 40

ISR (E)
HERAR(E)
AEEB B EH P T 45 5% B R

Ko NREINERAKRER -_T——F
R-T——FHRREENHEFRZ

2012 and 2011: R Y B

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLFE

2012 2011
—E——F —ET——%F

Origins of coal Sales volume Net sales Sales volume Net sales
B BRR HE HEFH HE HEFEE
’000 tonnes RMB’000 '000 tonnes RMB’000

Mg AR®T T ol AR®TT

China H 17,074 7,987,764 6,906 3,890,176
Indonesia Effe 2,941 1,523,943 6,237 3,920,590
Canada mex 553 445,247 843 855,182
Australia SEM 604 400,064 443 313,036
South Africa Ik 537 309,450 532 318,304
Viethnam i) 196 112,016 966 538,971
Others Eith 188 140,086 - -
Total BET 22,093 10,918,570 15,927 9,836,259

AEBESTRSIMIERMEE - A
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The Group keeps expanding the network of overseas suppliers to
ensure a supply of coal with reliable and stable quantity and quality.

The Group has established stable cooperative relationships with its
key overseas and PRC domestic coal suppliers and has developed
business relationships with the majority of them over a period of
not less than three years. The Group has also been undergoing
upstream expansion through acquisition of companies holding coal
mines. This enables the Group to obtain a reliable supply of quality
coal.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Administrative Expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s
administrative expenses amounted to RMB348.9 million,
representing an increase of 71.3% as compared with RMB203.6
million in 2011. Such increase was mainly contributed by the
acquisition of Huameiao Energy in late December 2011, which came
into full operation in 2012, and the increase in staff cost.

Distribution Expenses

Distribution expenses increased slightly by 24.5% to RMB158.2
million during the year ended 31 December 2012. Such increase was
mainly contributed by the increase in the coal and trading volume of
the Group in 2012.

Net Finance Costs

Net finance costs of the Group in 2012 amounted to RMB476.9
million, representing an increase of RMB290.8 million or 156.3%
from RMB186.1 million in 2011. This increase was principally due
to the increase in the use of trade finance to support the increase in
the coal handling and trading volume of the Group in 2012 and the
acquisition loan of Huameiao Energy.

Income Tax Expense

The Group’s income tax expense in 2012 was RMB119.1 million,
representing an increase of approximately 20.2% from RMB99.1
million in 2011. The Group’s effective income tax rate was 26.3%
in 2012 and 14.2% in 2011. The increase in effective tax rate was
mainly due to the absence of one-off bargain purchase gain arising
from the acquisition of Huameiao Energy in 2011, and the effect
of unused tax losses not recognised in certain subsidiaries of the
Group.

g C) 6P
BB

HEe-_FZ——F#+=-_A=Z+—H1I
FE AEEMNTBREAZIAAR
348,900,0007C * HZT——FHIARK
208,600,000 7T L #3E iN71.3% - B @
EhNFrEgREgE—_=——F+=-AT
AYREXRER(N_Z——F2HK

B ) & B TRAIEINFTEL
DR

DA MM MNM2UA5%EHE-Z
——F+ A=+ BUHEFENARKE
158,200,000 7T * F EJh A A& B &
NBFERN T — _FHEMAH -

B A AR

REBR -_ZT——FNHERANFE
# AR #476,900,0007T ° B —F ——
F A R #186,100,0007T + Ft A R #&
290,800,000 7T 8% 156.3% ° £ F+ + Z
RENMBEE SRE AT AEE KK
BERBHEN T _FMENNEE
ERRBEEE RS

FrigBimM

AEERR—_ZT—_FHEHRAIAR
#119,100,000 T - M=F——FARK
99,100,000 7T MN4720.2% ° AREEHK =
T - FHERMEHER26.3% M=
T——FR142% - EBRBERRSEETY
HRBRAOR —_E——FREEZREL
W—RMEEWRERE R AEERIHBMHD
B AR RER Z REA B IEEIED
FOBFTEN o
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2012 was RMB257.7 million, representing
a decrease of 50.0% from the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of RMB515.5 million, excluding the bargain purchase
gain on the acquisition of Huameiao Energy in 2011. The decrease
was principally due to the decrease in the price of and the demand
for thermal coal in China, and an increase in the Group’s finance
costs due to the acquisition loan of Huameiao Energy in 2011.

The Board refers to the announcement of the Company dated 10
March 2013 on the decrease in the net profit of the Group in 2012 as
compared to with the same in 2011. The announcement stated that
the decrease was not attributable to any significant non-recurring
item during the six months ended 31 December 2012. The Board
would like to clarify that there was a non-recurring item in 2012 in
the sum of RMB77.8 million as the compensation paid by the Group
to coal suppliers because of early termination of the relevant supply
contracts.

Trade and Bills receivable

As of 31 December 2012, trade and bills receivable of the group
were RMB3,703.2 million (as of 31 December 2011: RMB1,341.0
million). The increase was mainly because there were substantial
increase in sales in the 4th quarter of the year (especially in
November and December) and the credit term of some customers
falls after year end. The relevant receivables are gradually collected
in early 2013.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group adopts stringent financial management policies and
maintains a healthy financial condition. The Group funds its business
operations and general working capital by internally generated
financial resources and bank borrowings.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group recorded net current liabilities
of RMB1,938.6 million which were mainly due to full settlement of
the balance of consideration of acquiring Huameiao Energy by cash
during the period and the reclassification of some of the non-current
bank loans as current bank loans.

The Group has taken initiative to enhance the financial flexibility by
diversifying the funding bases and obtain medium term loans to
replace short term loans.

The Group has also taken initiative to strengthen its working capital
during the year. As at 31 December 2012, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group amounted to RMB1,190.5 million (as at
31 December 2011: RMB592.0 million), representing an increase of
101.1% as compared with the balance as of 31 December 2011.
The increase in cash and cash equivalents was mainly due to (a) the
contribution of Huameiao Energy, (b) the increase in the volume of
sales of coal pursuant to which some customers were required to
make a prepayment of 50% to 70% when the vessels arrive their
designated ports and (c) the issue of the perpetual subordinated
convertible securities.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents,
except amounts of RMB5.9 million and RMB205.6 million held in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) and United States dollars (“USD?”),
respectively, were held in RMB. The Group’s interest-bearing
borrowings made in RMB, USD and HKD were RMB6,836.1 million,
RMB427.6 million and RMB9.7 million, respectively.

RBET  MBERRELRE

RNEERMNERZEN 5 EEBR L4
BRAOMBEHKRL  AEERBATEE
W B EIRRIRITEER N E XSS
R—WELEES -
R_ZE——F+-_fA=+—8 A&EH
SIS mB B EFEE AR 1,938,600,000
T XEZRARBMANE R %ﬁﬁﬁ
ERERHBERESRE LGS IER
HIRITEREF D EAIRITER -

I=IN
=5

AEEDRBIEREBZ TCRE EE
R EE IR - WS EERIAR
REHER -

RNEBNF AR INE REE B o8 &8
BEL RZE—=—ZF+=ZA=+—
H ZEEBRESEBECESEBMEARE
1,190,500,000 (R = F ——F+ = A
=+—H: AR#592,000,0007T) * &H
—E——F+ - A=t+—HZEREM
101.1% - RE LB EEMEMEETY
MR (a) EXRERMER - (b)EIREE
R EmMETEFAREMWKERLE
EA O S50% % 70% 2 Faft 3% (c)
BATR AR BT FE 5 o

RZF-—ZF+ZA=+—0 &5H
Be kB2 EEWAREKS5900,000

7T K A R # 205,600,000 7T 7 Bl LA 7T
(IBrDERET(ERDEERING
NARERE  MASEUARYE - =
TTRBTETZFEEBEDIAAREK
6,836,100,0007C * A & ¥ 427,600,000
TR AREE 9,700,000 7T °
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the total bank and other borrowings of
the Group were RMB7,273.4 million (as at 31 December 2011:
RMB3,348.1 million), RMB5,103.4 million of which were repayable
within one year and carried interest at market rates ranging from
1.21% t0 8.00% (31 December 2011: 3.47% to 11.50%) per annum.

Non-current bank loans as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December
2011 carried at variable and fixed interest rates.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had total banking facilities
of RMB13,497.5 million (as at 31 December 2011: RMB13,024.9
million), of which RMB8,461.3 million (as at 31 December 2011:
RMB4,894.0 million) were utilised.

The gearing ratio (calculated as interest-bearing borrowings netted
off sum of cash and cash equivalents plus pledged deposits divided
by total assets) of the Group as at 31 December 2012 was 24.4%
(as at 31 December 2011: 17.0%). The increase was mainly due to
the increase in the balance of interest — bearing borrowings for the
Group’s daily operation.
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES
AND RELATED HEDGING

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held predominately in
RMB, HKD and USD. Operating outgoings incurred by the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly denominated in RMB while
overseas purchases are usually denominated in USD. The Group’s
subsidiaries usually receive revenue in RMB. Hence, the Directors
do not consider that the Group faces significant exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuation risk.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS OF THE GROUP AND GUARANTEE

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s assets in an aggregate
amount of RMB7,416.2 million (as at 31 December 2011:
RMB5,837.0 million) in forms of property, plant and equipment, coal
mining rights, inventories and bank deposits were pledged to banks
in Hong Kong and the PRC for the credit facilities granted to the
Group.

As at 31 December 2012, Mr. XU Jihua, the chairman of the Board
and an executive Director, provided guarantees to banks for granting
banking facilities of an amount equivalent to RMB3,870.8 million (as
at 31 December 2011: RMB4,226.4 million) to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

BE R B L B K B A

AEBEZHRERBASFBWEIZUAR
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SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 28 November 2012 (after trading hours), the Company entered
into the subscription agreement with a controlling shareholder of the
Company (the “Subscriber”) pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to issue the perpetual subordinated convertible
securities in the principal amount of HKD194.7 million to be issued
by the Company to the Subscriber.

The issue has been approved by the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) at the extraordinary general meeting held
on 31 December 2012. Accordingly, the convertible securities
amounted HKD194.7 million were issued on the same day.

Save as the above, there was no change in the share capital
structure of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2012.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK cents 3.0
per Share payable to Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 7 June 2013, making a total
dividend for 2012 of HK cents 5.0 per Share.

The final dividend will be paid in the form of scrip, with the
Shareholders to be provided with an option to elect cash in respect
of part or all of such dividend (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”). The
Scrip Dividend Scheme is conditional upon the Listing Committee of
the Stock Exchange granting listing of and permission to deal in the
new Shares to be allotted and issued pursuant thereto. A circular
giving full details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme and the election form
will be sent to the Shareholders as soon as practicable. Dividend
warrants and/or Share certificates for the scrip shares are expected
to be sent to the Shareholders on or around 19 July 2013.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from 15 May 2013 to 20
May 2013 (both dates inclusive). During such period, no transfer
of Shares will be registered for the purpose of determining the
entitlement to attend and vote at the annual general meeting. Al
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office, Union Registrars Limited of 18th Floor,
Fook Lee Commercial Centre, Town Place, 33 Lockhart Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on 14
May 2013.

The register of members will be closed from 4 June 2013 to 7
June 2013 (both dates inclusive). During such period, no transfer
of Shares will be registered for the purpose of determining the
entitlement to receive the proposed final divdend. All transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar
and transfer office, Union Registrars Limited of 18th Floor, Fook Lee
Commercial Centre, Town Place, 33 Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on 3 June 2013.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2012, the Group employed 1,745 employees.
The Group has adopted a performance-based reward system to
motivate its staff and such system is reviewed on a regular basis. In
addition to the basic salaries, year-end bonuses may be offered to
staff members with outstanding performance.

Members of the Group established in the PRC are also subject
to social insurance contribution plans organised by the PRC
government. In accordance with the relevant national and local
labour and social welfare laws and regulations, members of the
Group established in the PRC are required to pay on behalf of their
employees a monthly social insurance premium covering pension
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance and other
relevant insurance. Members of the Group incorporated in Hong
Kong have participated in mandatory provident fund scheme, if
applicable, in accordance with the applicable Hong Kong laws and
regulations.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION (continued)

In addition, a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted in June
2009 to retain staff members who have made contribution to
the success of the Group. As at 31 December 2012, there were
outstanding share options to subscribe for a total of 15,200,000
Shares granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to an
executive Director and 21 employees of the Group. On 17 January
2012, the Company has further granted share options to subscribe
for a total of 20,751,196 Shares to 15 employees under the Share
Option Scheme adopted on 12 June 2009. As at the date of this
report, the total number of share options outstanding is 29,933,954.
The Directors believe that the compensation packages offered by the
Group to its staff members are competitive in comparing with market
standards and practices.
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Despite the slowdown in the PRC economy in 2012, which affected
the level of demand for coal, the Directors are cautiously optimistic
on the future of the coal industry in the PRC because of the following
reasons:

o The government of the PRC expects that the GDP of the PRC
will achieve a growth of 7.5% in 2013. Hence, the domestic
coal market is expected to maintain a positive growth.

° Cancellation of the policy for key coal-fired power generation
contracts by the National Development and Reform
Commission is beneficial to the development of open market
for coal in the PRC.

° Positive signs of economic recovery shown in the domestic
economy in the PRC together with the recovery of the
downstream industry have driven the demand for coal.

° Rail transport in the PRC is still in the development bottleneck
and hence, the logistics advantages are crucial to the coal
trading business.

o New energy development has yet to be fully implemented
and adopted in the PRC and coal will continue to be the most
economical source of energy in China would not be replaced
in the near future.

The Group is principally engaged in coal supply chain business of
coal mining, procurement, filtering, blending, storage, transportation,
sales, shipping and port integration. The Group has four quality coal
mines in Shanxi Province, of which the Xingtao coal mine operated
by Huameiao Energy was a Grade 1 Safety Demonstration Mine
appraised by China National Coal Association. China will gradually
raise the lowest operational scale for coal industry and encourages
entities to phase out backward production capacity and enhance
the industrial concentration through mergers and restructuring.
Huameiao Energy has the required operational scale in Shanxi
Province, which will be an advantage to the Group’s plans for further
expansion of upstream resources and acquisition of high-quality coal
mines.
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Upon successful acquisition of Huameiao Energy, the Group is
benefited from the stable coal supply, higher gross profit margin and
strong cash flow. With the growing coal production from Huameiao
Energy, the Group can provide sufficient coal to meet the demand
from customers which require a stable source of coal supply. The
Group also operates an integrated logistic network which allows
ample absorption and realisation of the coal produced. The Directors
expect that the gross profit margin of the Group will continue to
improve with the increased proportion of self-produced coal. The
strong cash flow of the Group also enables it to improve its working
capital position. This vertical integration strategy enhances the
Group’s competitiveness and further strengthens the relationship
between the Group and its customers.

In addition to maintaining the existing well-established business
relationship, the Group has proactively taken the initiative to increase
the coal sales to new and existing customers. Despite many of the
Group’s customers are large scale Stated-owned enterprises in
China operating power plants in China, the Group’s supply to them
still accounts for only a small portion for their total demand. Thus,
the Group will continue to promote the sales of coal to these existing
customers. Moreover, the Group uses Taizhou port, Rugao port
and Zhenhai port and Huangpu port in Eastern China, and Nansha
port and Zhuhai port in South China as the transit base and further
expand the customer base of “sea to river” (from coastal areas to the
river banks of Yangtze River and Pearl River).

In 2013, the Group will enhance the joint and strategic cooperation
with large upstream and downstream customers. Benefit from
the cancellation of the price intervention of power coal by the
National Development and Reform Commission and the emerging
opportunity of completing open marketisation of coal trading in the
PRC, the Group will fully utilise the opportunity to maintain a rapid
and quality growth. The Directors are confident that with their joint
efforts, they could bring the Group’s operation in 2013 to a new level.
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The Board presents this annual report, together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012 (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in the coal operation business involving
coal mining, purchase and sales, filtering, storage, blending,
shipping and transportation of coal. The activities of the subsidiaries
of the Company are set out in note 20 to the Financial Statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 71 of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year under review are set out in note 15 to the
Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year under review are set out in note 32 to the Financial
Statements.

DONATION

Charitable and other donation made by the Group during the year
under review amounted to RMB6.6 million.

RESERVES
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the

Company during the year under review are set out in note 32 to the
Financial Statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in
share premium account are distributable to Shareholders, subject
to the condition that immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be made, the Company is able
to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
The aggregate amount of distributable reserves of the Company
as at 31 December 2012 was RMB337.5 million (2011: RMB387.5
million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares
on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s result for each of the five years ended
31 December 2012 and the Group’s assets and liabilities as at 31
December 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 is set out on page 9
of this report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year of 2012 and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive directors:

Mr. XU Jihua (Chairman)

Ms. WANG Jianfei (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. LIU Xiaomei

Mr. WENG Li

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. HUANG Guosheng
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Dr. QIAN Pingfan
(resigned on 22 January 2013)
Mr. XING Zhiying
(appointed on 22 January 2013)
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles, the Directors shall have the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition
to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
Shareholders after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed pursuant to Article
83(3) of the Articles shall not be taken into account in determining
which particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
an annual general meeting at least once every three years and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(the “Annual General Meeting”), Mr. XING Zhiying will retire
in accordance with Article 83(3) of the Articles and Mr. HUANG
Guosheng and Mr. LAU Sik Yuen will retire by rotation in accordance
with Article 84 of the Articles.. All retiring Directors, being eligible,
would offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting has an unexpired service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save for the Structure Contracts (as defined in the Prospectus), the
details of which are set forth in the paragraphs under “Connected
Transactions” below, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company and any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director is or was materially interested or
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the Board considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on page 12 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO”)), which were required (a) to be recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO; or (b) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

EERESTRAEBRKSD - HERD
RESFFZEERAR(E)

1. Interests in the Company

Approximate percentage
of issued share capital

of the Company (%)
Number of shares EARQATC BITRA
RHEE 2N B D (%)

Long Short Long Short

Name of Director  Nature of interest positions positions positions positions

EEgR REEME e RE e KB

Mr. XU Jihua* Corporate 1,199,696,000 (Note 1) Nil 57.8 Nil

TREELE AA] 1,199,696,000 (Fff7E1) i 57.8 i

Ms. WANG Jianfei Beneficial Owner 100,000,000 Nil 4.8 Nil

FRIRLZ+ EanEEA 100,000,000 i 4.8 i

Mr. WENG Li Beneficial Owner 6,000,000 Nil 0.3 Nil

Sk E=EAA 6,000,000 i 0.3 i

Ms. LIU Xiaomei Beneficial Owner 1,200,000 (Note 2) Nil 0.1 Nil

BlEtg Lt E=AA 1,200,000 (KizE2) i 0.1 i
Notes: MisE

1.

1,186,000,000 Shares are held directly by Fortune Pearl
International Limited (“Fortune Pearl”) which is wholly-
owned by Mr. XU Jihua. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. XU is
deemed to have interests in the 1,186,000,000 Shares. The
remaining shares are held directly by Mr. XU on behalf of
Fortune Pearl.

The beneficial interest represents Shares that may be issued
pursuant to the full exercise of the options granted to Ms.
LIU under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme adopted by
the Company on 12 June 2009.

Mr. XU Jihua, being a Director, is also acting as the
Chairman of the Board.

1. 1,186,000,000 B DA EBEBR S
RAR(IBRDEERESE  MZA
RIRBREELERERE - RIEE
FREEEG  REELEWEA
M 3%551,186,000,000 XD A
B T 2RO BBREEARRE
BEHERE -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS BEERBRSTHAERK®G - HERG
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING REET I REERKE(E)
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

2. Interests in associated corporations 2. AIBESEEZRER
Name of

Name of associated Number of Percentage of
Director corporations Capacity shares issued shares (%)
=i HEEE A 514 ROEE ERITRABE DL (%)
Mr. XU Jihua Fortune Pearl Beneficial owner 1 100
REERE 2ia BE=BA 1 100
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none M FYPTIEEIN N_TB——F
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had +-A=+—"H " XRAREZHH
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or ST A BMEmNAANT REFE [
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations BB EE(EERBANEBEEXV
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required =Y 2B - IR S EERES
(a) to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the () BH R HIE & PI5E 352 163 E A
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (b) to be SRR RN BIFEERMA ¢ 5 (b)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to BEEESFABEANS AN R MR
the Model Code. T EZZ AR o

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND TERIREAATIBRAPZERZR AR

SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE

COMPANY

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the RZE—=—F+=-_A=Z+—H" ' THA
persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, in T(BRARTEERESITBRAEINR
the Shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the RArlz B @RS - ERE
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to BH N EEIEDIEE 336 K17 B ZRERER
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows: MEraesk e B KRR -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

TERRRERDAREP 2 EBERAXR
(%)

RAREREEO10B T2 Eimik

Approximate percentage
of issued share capital

of the Company (%)
Number of shares EARQATE BHTRAR
RHEE ZBAE D (%)

Long Short Long Short

Name of shareholder positions positions positions positions

RERHEH e RE HE RE

Fortune Pearl (Note 1) 1,186,000,000 Nil 57.2 Nil

IZE R 1,186,000,000 i 57.2 i

Mr. XU Da 160,000,000 Nil 7.7 Nil

WELE 160,000,000 i 7.7 i3

Notes: 5T -
1. Fortune Pearl is wholly-owned by Mr. XU Jihua, a director of the 1. ERAAQRESREELLEZEER
Company. B

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the Company B EXXTIFEEN  RZE——F+ =

had not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or the
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

A=1t—8 #MEETAL(TEEAR
AEFNRSITRAB)MEARRAER
ARBBAD BB T - BAERIEE
M EEIRPIEXVERSE 2 53D A R
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SHARIBRE T M B 5 {) 58 336 fRACERM
RAFFE 2 BRMAZERZIORE
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than in pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and
the Share Option Scheme detailed in note 28 to the Financial
Statements, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2012 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debts securities (including
debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate and none
of the Directors (save for Ms. LIU Xiaomei who had options granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe for 1,200,000
Shares), their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any rights
to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such rights.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group to reward its employees
is based on their performance, duties and responsibilities,
qualifications and competence displayed. The Group has adopted
a performance-based rewarding system to motivate its employees
and such system is reviewed on a regular basis. In addition to
the basic salaries, year-end bonuses will be offered to those staff
members with outstanding performance.

Emoluments payable to the senior management of the Group are
decided by the remuneration committee of the Board, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual experience, performance
and responsibility, and the compensation levels adopted by
companies of comparable size engaging in similar business.

Emoluments payable to the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee of the Board, having regard to the compensation levels
adopted by companies of similar size engaging in similar business.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in notes 10 and 11
to the Financial Statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers were as follows:

Purchases R

— the largest supplier — A frER

— five largest suppliers in aggregate — R RHEEER
Sales HERE

— the largest customer —\&AREP

— five largest customers in aggregate —HEREP&R

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or
customers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group carried out the following continuing connected
transactions (other than continuing connected transactions that are
exempted under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules) during the year
ended 31 December 2012:-

On 12 June 2009, Zhuhai Qinfa Logistics Co. Ltd. (“Qinfa
Logistics”), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
each member of the China Qinfa Group (as defined in the
Prospectus), and their respective equity interest holders (which
include Mr. XU Jihua, an executive director and the chairman of
the Board, Mr. XU Da, Mr. LIU Jingwei and Ms. ZHOU Lusha, all
being controlling shareholders of the Company) entered into the
Structure Contracts (as defined in the Prospectus) for a term of 10
years pursuant to which Qinfa Logistics agreed to pay an annual fee
of RMB10,000 to each member of the China Qinfa Group for the
exclusive management and operation of the coal operation business
and the inland shipping transportation business of the China Qinfa
Group, and all economic benefits and risks arising from the business
of the China Qinfa Group are transferred to Qinfa Logistics. Further
details of the Structure Contracts are set forth in the section headed
“Reorganisation and the Structure Contracts” in the Prospectus.

The Stock Exchange has granted a perpetual waiver pursuant
to Rule 14A.42(3) of the Listing Rules to the Company for all
transactions under the Structure Contracts from strict compliance
with the applicable announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

In accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform procedures on
the above continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The auditor has confirmed that:

a.  nothing has come to the auditor’'s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company’s board
of directors; and

b.  nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions.

The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the
above-mentioned continuing connected transactions were entered
into: (i) in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business; (i) in
accordance with the terms of the respective agreements governing
such transactions on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and (i)
either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to
the Group than those available to or from independent third parties.

Besides, the independent non-executive Directors have conducted
an annual review on the Structure Contracts and have confirmed
that (i) the transactions carried out during 2012 have been entered
into in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business; (ii)
the transactions carried out during 2012 have been entered into in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Structure Contracts
and so that all revenue generated by China Qinfa Group has been
retained by Qinfa Logistics; and (i) any new contracts or renewed
contracts have been entered into on the same terms as the existing
Structure Contracts and are fair and reasonable so far as the Group
is concerned and in the interests of the shareholders as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2012 are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements. The related party transactions with Qinfa
Industry and Mr. XU as disclosed in note 36 (a) and (b) to the
consolidated financial statements constituted exempt continuing
connected transaction and exempt connected transaction,
respectively, under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and accordingly,
are exempted from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and a
Share Option Scheme on 12 June 2009. The principal terms of the
two schemes are as follows:

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written resolutions passed on
12 June 2009, the Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme whereby one executive Director and 25 employees of the
Group were granted the rights to subscribe for Shares.

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to recognise
the contribution by certain employees towards the growth of the
Group and/or the listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange.
The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
substantially the same as the terms of the Share Option Scheme,
except that:

(i) the exercise price per share; and

(i) the total number of Shares which may be issued pursuant to
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Save for the options which have been granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme, no further options will be offered or granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, as the right to do so has
been terminated upon the listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange.
The total number of Shares available for issue under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is 14,000,000 Shares, representing 0.67% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 22 March 2013.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
Set out below is further information on the outstanding options

granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at the date of
this report:

BBRRERT&I(E)
BRAFRERBEREEI(E)
RABRERH  REAXIRABEEE

PrrEst Bl RTTRM SR LB ERE
—FRHEEINT

Number of options
BREZE Approximate
percentage
Outstanding of issued
Outstanding at asat  share capital
1 January Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 31 December of the
2012 during during during 2012 Company
RZE-Z% the period the period theperiod RZZE-ZF AR
Name -A-H RER RER RER t=ZA=+-B EBRTRAN
#H AT (x4 *% B HARTE  BHESKL
%
Director B
LIU Xiaomei s 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 0.06
Employees &8 14,000,000 - - - 14,000,000 0.67
15,200,000 - - - 15,200,000 0.73
Notes: BaE
1. The exercise price per share is HK$1.26 per share. 1. BRI HTEEAEIR1.2687T °

2. Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
has a vesting period of one to three years commencing from
3 July 2009, being the listing date of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange. The Company has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the option in cash.

3. Each of the grantees to whom options have been granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme will be entitled to exercise:

(@)  30% of the total number of the options from the expiry of the
first anniversary of the Listing Date;

(b)  30% of the total number of the options from the expiry of the
second anniversary of the Listing Date; and

(c) 40% of the total number of the options can be exercised
from the expiry of the third anniversary of the Listing Date.

The fair value of options granted under Pre-IPO Share Option

Scheme was determined using the “Binomial Option Pricing
Model”.

China Qinfa Group Limited FE=3%&EEER AT

2. SOHREEXAHESHBEETSIM
BEHMBRERBER A —=E=F(AK
RN Em AR - ZTAFLA
= B#Er) c ARBWEEENEER
£ AIREEEKENERE -

3. BRREAEALHESHBERETEE
ETYBBRENSARA - B :

@ BLEtmBMm—RAFEZHERTT
EEREABNAS Z=T

b) BEmBEmWASZHERTT
EERERENAED2=1 &

© BLEtmBEm=—RAFZHEATT
EEREARNAD 2MT -

REBEERAREEf B B LA
BREN R AR ETRE [ Z A=A RE
FEERE | BEE




Directors Report &€ # i

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes: (continued)
The significant inputs into the model were:
e risk-free rate of return — 3.029% per annum;
e forecast fluctuations in share price — 56%; and
e forecast dividend yield — 1.50% per annum.

Based on the inputs above to the “Binomial Option Pricing Model”,
the total fair value of the outstanding options as at the grant date
(i.e. 12 June 2009) was HK$7,649,893.

The “Binomial Option Pricing Model” is designed to assess the fair
value of options and is a common choice among various option
pricing models for assessing the fair value of options. The value of
the options depends on the valuation arrived at based on certain
subjective assumptions on variables. Any changes in the variables
used may cause a substantial effect on the assessment of the fair
value of the options.

Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or
reward to eligible persons (including full time or part time employees,
executive, non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors of our Group) for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company and to enable
the Company and its subsidiaries to recruit and retain high-caliber
employees.

The total number of Shares issued and which may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme to
an employee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue. Any further grant of options in excess of this limit
shall be subject to the approval of shareholders in a general meeting.
The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 15,933,954 Shares, representing 0.77% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 22 March 2013.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

On 17 January 2012, the Company has further granted share
options (the “Options”) to subscribe for a total of 20,751,196
new ordinary shares of the Company under the Share Option
Scheme to 15 eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme (the
“Grantees”). None of the Grantees is a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company or an associate (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of any of them. The closing price of Shares
immediately before the date on which the options were granted was
HK$1.39 per Share.

The principal terms of the Options granted are as follows:

U

(i)

the exercise price per share is HK$1.50 per share (which
represents the highest of (i) the closing price of HK$1.50 per
Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of HK$1.392
per Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (i) the nominal value of HK$0.10 per Share);

The Options are valid for a period of 10 years from 17 January
2012 to 16 January 2022 (the “Option Period”); and

The Options may be exercisable at any time during the Option
Period, provided that the maximum number of Options which
each Grantee is entitled to exercise at the below period shall
not exceed:

(@ in respect of the period from 17 January 2012 to 16
January 2013, 40% of the total number of Options
granted to him;

(b) in respect of the period from 17 January 2013 to 16
January 2014, 30% of the total number of Options
granted to him; and

(c) in respect of the period from 17 January 2014 to 16
January 2015, 30% of the total number of Options
granted to him.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

Set out below is further information on the outstanding options
granted under the Share Option Scheme as at the date of this report:

BT EI(E)
AR 8(E)
RARE B - RIBEB AR 8 RTT

B B IR ) — B T 1
T

Number of options
EREHA Approximate
percentage
Outstanding of issued
asat  share capital
Granted at Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 31 December of the
17 January 2012 during during during 2012 Company
RZE-Z% the period the period theperiod R-Z--f Y NG
Name -At+tA RER AR B8R +=A=+-B EBTRAN
#E BF x:d X% T HATE BRI
%
Employees EE 20,751,196 - 1,862,785 - 18,898,411 0.91
20,751,196 - 1,852,785 - 18,898,411 0.91

As at the 31 December 2012, the total number of share options
outstanding is 34,098,411.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The total bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2012 amounted to approximately RMB7,273.4 million
(2011: RMB3,348.1million). Particulars of the bank loans and other
borrowings are set out in note 27 to the Financial Statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float with at least 25% of the Shares held
by the public as required by the Listing Rules as at the date of this
report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart
from the Group’s business, that competes or is likely to compete
(either directly or indirectly) with the Group’s business at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2012 and up to the date of this
report, save for Mr. XU Jihua’s legal ownership in the equity interest
in members of the China Qinfa Group (as defined in the Prospectus).

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Controlling Shareholders (as
defined in the Prospectus) and the executive Directors (collectively,
the “Covenantors”) have entered into a deed of non-competition
dated 12 June 2009 in favor of the Company. The Convenantors
have provided the Group with written confirmations that they and
their associates (other than members of the Group) have fully
complied with the deed of non-competition throughout the year
ended 31 December 2012.

The independent non-executive Directors have conducted an
annual review on the Covenantors’ compliance with the deed of
non-competition, the options, pre-emptive rights or first rights of
refusals provided by the Controlling Shareholders (as defined in the
Prospectus) on their existing or future competing businesses.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Covenantors and
their respective associates did not direct any Business Opportunity
(as defined in the Prospectus) to the Group. Therefore, the
independent non-executive Directors did not conduct any review on
the decision made in relation to Business Opportunity.
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TAXATION OF HOLDERS OF SHARES

Hong Kong

The purchase, sale and transfer of shares registered in the
Company’s Hong Kong branch register of members will be subject
to Hong Kong stamp duty. The current rate charged on each of the
purchaser and seller (or transferee and transferor) is 0.1% of the
consideration or, if greater, the fair value of the shares being bought/
sold or transferred (rounded up to the nearest HK$'000). In addition,
a fixed duty of HK$5.00 is currently payable on an instrument of
transfer of shares.

Profits from dealings in the share arising in or derived from Hong
Kong may also be subject to Hong Kong profits tax.

Cayman Islands

Under the present Cayman Islands laws, transfers and other
dispositions of shares in the Company are exempt from Cayman
Islands stamp duty.

Consultation with professional advisers

Intending holders and investors of the Company’s shares are
recommended to consult their professional advisers if they are in
any doubt as to the taxation implications (including tax relief) of
subscribing for, purchasing, holding, disposing of or dealing in
shares. It is emphasized that none of the Company or its Directors or
officers will accept any responsibility for any tax effect on, or liabilities
of, holders of shares in the Company resulting from their subscription
for, purchase, holding, disposal of or dealing in such shares.
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AUDITORS

The financial statements in this report have been audited by KPMG
who will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2012, neither the Company

nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed
securities of the Company.

On behalf of the Board,
Xu Jihua
Chairman

Guangzhou, 22 March 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring high
standards of corporate governance practices. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise on accountability
and transparency and are adopted in the best interest of the
Company and its Shareholders. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of Shareholders and to fulfill its commitment to
excellence in corporate governance.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company was in full compliance
with the applicable code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (effective until 31 March 2012) and the
Corporate Governance Code (effective from 1 April 2013) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December
2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Board takes responsibility to
oversee all major matters of the Company, including the formulation
and approval of the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
internal control and risk management systems, monitoring its
operating and financial performance, performing the corporate
governance duties and evaluating the performance of the senior
management. The Directors, individually and collectively, have to
make decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company and
its Shareholders.

All Directors have access to the senior management of the Group
and the company secretary. Management information is provided
to enable them to participate at the meetings or as and when
requested. The company secretary provides secretarial support to
the Board and ensures adherence to Board procedures and the
relevant rules and regulations which are applicable to the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Responsibilities and Delegation (continued)

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are managed by the executive Directors and
senior management of the Company under the leadership of the
Chief Executive Officer. The Board has delegated a schedule of
responsibilities to these officers for the implementation of Board
decisions. The Board periodically reviews the delegated functions
and work tasks. Prior to entering into any significant transactions, the
aforesaid officers have to obtain Board approval.

Board composition

The Board currently consists of seven Directors, four of whom
are executive Directors and three are independent non-executive
Directors.

Executive directors:

Mr. XU Jihua (Chairman)

Ms. WANG Jianfei (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. LIU Xiaomei

Mr. WENG Li

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. HUANG Guosheng
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Dr. QIAN Pingfan
(resigned on 22 January 2013)
Mr. XING Zhiying
(appointed on 22 January 2013)

All four executive Directors are responsible for implementating the
business strategies and managing the business of the Group in
accordance with all applicable rules and regulations, including,
but not limited to, the Listing Rules. All Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) have been consulted on all
major and material matters of the Group. The Company maintains
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board composition (continued)

The number of independent non-executive Directors has met the
requirements under the Listing Rules and Mr. LAU Sik Yuen has
appropriate accounting professional qualifications. The independent
non-executive Directors bring a variety of experience and expertise
to the Company. Biographical details of the independent non-
executive Directors are set out on page 14 of this annual report. Each
of the independent non-executive Director has confirmed in writing
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

All the appointments of Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Articles.

Minutes of Board meetings are being kept by the company secretary
of the Company and are available for inspection by the Directors and
auditors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board held six
meetings, all of which were convened in accordance with the
Articles, and the individual attendance of each Director is set out
below:

Name of directors EEHE
Mr. XU Jihua REESLE
Ms. WANG Jianfei FRIFR L+
Ms. LIU Xiaomei 2lEtg it
Mr. WENG Li & MkAE
Mr. HUANG Guosheng =R LA
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen 2IHIRE &
Dr. QIAN Pingfan B RIEL

(resigned on 22 January 2013)
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. XU Jihua is the chairman of the Board and an executive Director,
responsible for providing advice for the overall management and
strategic development and overseeing the operation of the Board.
The other executive Director Ms. WANG Jianfei acts as the Group’s
chief executive officer who is responsible for the Group’s overall
management, corporate development, strategic planning and the
supervision of day-to-day operation. The segregation of duties and
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief executive officer
ensures a balance of power and authority.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a remuneration committee on 12 June
2009 with specific written terms of reference. The remuneration
committee consists of an executive Director, Ms. WANG Jianfei,
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. HUANG
Guosheng and Mr. XING Zhiying. Mr. HUANG Guosheng is the
chairperson of the remuneration committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee of the Board
are to review and determine the terms of remuneration packages,
bonuses and other compensation payable to the Directors and
senior management of the Group. The remuneration committee
is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by
reference to the performance of the individual and the Company as
well as market practice and conditions.

China Qinfa Group Limited FE=3%&EEER AT

EERTHRAR

EESIRRVTESHRETERLERES
PEBEEMRRERERER Y&
BEEeEF - 5 2HTEFIRR
RERFEEAEETRAER  REAE
EEEEE CEER-  REREAR
EBRTERF- - TRETHRAR B
KRB Gy - FERED ERE D
YA o

FMWEES

EEEeN _ETENF AT ZHRUF
MEZEg UHFIAENEEBESR
cFHMEEERRE - RNTEFTH
Rt AEMBBILIFNTES B
BEBEENMBERLEE - EEBELE

FEZEe X BRE T RETE H
8 EARENAEEEERSRE
BEHEMHE 2GR - FHEZ BT
BEMVASHAEZERF  UHEBH
FBRERE  BRBEESFIRE
BB A TR 2 ERE K2 B AF B
BRAFHE2EBARERRRENR
mIGE I SAREE




Corporate Governance Report fE3EEIGHEH

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The remuneration committee met once during 2012 to assess
performance of executive Directors and certain senior management
and review their remuneration. The duties of the remuneration
committee include determining, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of Directors and senior management. All the
members attended the meeting.
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Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

HERE,

Name of directors EEHE BREERY

Ms. WANG Jianfei FRIFR L+ 1/1

Mr. HUANG Guosheng EmRIRE LA 11

Dr. QIAN Pingfan = AIEL 1/1
(resigned on 22 January 2013) (RZE—=F—HZ+=H#&T)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established a nomination committee on 12 June
2009 with specific written terms of reference. The nomination
committee consists of an executive Director, Ms. WANG Jianfei,
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. HUANG
Guosheng and Mr. XING Zhiying. Mr. HUANG Guosheng is the
chairperson of the nomination committee.

The primary duties of the nomination committee of the Board include
determining the policy for the nomination of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors, and assessing of the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors. The nomination committee
carries out the process of selecting and recommending candidates
for directorships by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of
such individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The nomination committee met once during 2012 to ensure that the
Board has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate
to meet the requirements of the business of the Company. All the
members attended the meeting.

REZES(H)
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CHEREFSABEENER K
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Number of attendance/
Number of meetings
entitled to attend

Name of directors EEHH
Ms. WANG Jianfei FRIRLZ+
Mr. HUANG Guosheng | LA
Dr. QIAN Pingfan BT BT
(resigned on 22 January 2013) (RZZT—=F—A=Z+=HET)

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing on
12 June 2012. All the independent non-executive Directors entered
into renewed appointment letters with the Company in 2011 for a
term of three year. Such term is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance
with the Articles.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. Directors are reminded
of their obligations under the Model Code on a regular basis.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2012
and up to the date of this report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established an audit committee on 12 June 2009 with
specific written terms of reference. The audit committee consists
of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. HUANG
Guosheng, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen and Mr. XING Zhiying. Mr. LAU Sik
Yuen is the chairperson of the audit committee of the Board.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and approve
the Group’s financial reporting process and internal control system.
The audit committee had reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 and had also
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including accounting practices and principles adopted by the Group.

During the year, the audit committee held two meetings and all the
members attended the meetings.

Name of directors BEEHE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen LI IR A
Mr. HUANG Guosheng EEIRE LA
Dr. QIAN Pingfan = AL

(resigned on 22 January 2013)

During the meetings, the audit committee had reviewed and
recommended the Company’s results announcements and annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2011 and interim report for
the six months ended 30 June 2012 to the Board for approval. The
audit committee also reviewed the accounting issues raised by the
independent auditor of the Company and their fees and concluded
with satisfaction with respect to the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

We provide to all the Directors a comprehensive induction package
which includes introduction on the business operations, internal
procedures and general policy of the Company and a summary of
statutory and regulatory obligations of directors under the Listing
Rules and other relevant laws and regulations. During the year,
the Directors are provided with regular updates on the Group’s
business, operations, risk management and corporate governance
matters to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties. The Directors are also encouraged to attend
both in-house training and training provided by independent service
providers. During the period under review, all Directors participated
in various trainings organized by the Company, including the
“Disclosure Obligation for Listed Companies and Officers”, “Financial
Reporting for Mining Sector” and “Update on the requirements under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules, Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance”. Ms. WANG
Jianfei participated in trainings including “Organisational Behavior
and Strategic Human Resources Management”, “Statistics and
Decision Making”, “Strategic Marketing Management”, “Business
Law”, “Leadership Skill” and “Project Management”. Ms. LIU Xiaomei
attended trainings including “Continuing Education on Accounting”
and “Time and Efficiency Management”. According to the training
records maintained by the Company, each Director has confirmed
that he/she has obtained reading and training materials during the
year under review and has attended the trainings in relation to various
aspects, including but not limited to, Director’s duties, update on
Listing Rules amendments and corporate governance practices.

China Qinfa Group Limited FE=3%&EEER AT

ESERERARSEERER

BMAMEESERHEEZENMNERNE
g ERERmARRRBEE A
BFEE—BBREONE  AREFR
E EMRA R EMRRAREXRAE
THEEEFNHBE - FR EFEE
HRHARERE 28 BEREER
CEEAFENRMEN  FEFEE
BLBERRETHERBE - ARATE
BE S F AR E I M A B SRS R
AR RET - REERAR . 2RES
SERRNARPNZIAET - B £
MRABALRSRITRAENREREET]
[(RBEENBBREI R[BBELTR
A BB RRMRDI RELE NS K
PIEFHMRE] - TRIRMEXEEX T Z A
ol BRIASTARBEEANE
REE ] THRETERR | [ERE2HE
B [ei] [RE8] R [THEERE] -
it 2T BIE [ St lEEHRE
Ko [BS B R E IR | ER ZIRIEH
BRBEARRREZBILHE  SEFE
R BRREBEFEACERFHER
BEIER  YEHEEHLEHE S
gl REBREETRRESTHRER LT
MANEFT AR ERERNRNER




y,

Corporate Governance Report fE3EEIGHEH

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has clearly defined the responsibility and authority of the
Board and its senior management.

The Group has adopted certain internal control policies to manage
and minimize financial and other risks, to ensure timely and accurate
preparation and reporting of financial information, and to monitor
compliance with laws by the senior management of the Group in the
performance of their duties.

The Group has also established an audit committee under the
Board, which has the functions of monitoring compliance with laws
by the Group’s senior management and in its daily operations, and
of carrying out investigations for suspected breaches of law. The
Company convened meetings with the audit committee periodically
to discuss financial, operational and risk management control.
During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group and the Directors are of the view
that the existing system of internal control is effective and adequate
to the Group.

REVIEW ON THE GROUP’S EXPOSURE ON COAL
PRICE FLUCTUATIONS AND ITS RISK MANAGEMENT
PROCEDURES

The Group engaged one of the leading international accounting firms
to perform an annual review of the Group’s written risk management
procedures over the exposure on coal price fluctuations and
inventory management. The review covered, and recommendations
have been given on, the following areas:

° preparation and renewal of coal price risk management
procedure flow;

° management on price of purchase orders and sale orders;

° implementation, supervision and management of sales
contracts;
° inventory management;

o hedging arrangement for oversea coal sales and purchases.
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REVIEW ON THE GROUP’S EXPOSURE ON COAL
PRICE FLUCTUATIONS AND ITS RISK MANAGEMENT
PROCEDURES (continued)

The Board will ensure that the recommended levels will be adhered
to and the risk control policies will be complied with, and significant
breach incidents will be escalated to the attention of the Board.
In addition, the Board will take necessary measures to rectify the
deficiency identified in the report prepared by the accounting firm.

The Board will continue to engage a leading international accounting
firm to perform annual review until the coal operation business has
less than 50% contribution to the Group’s revenue.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to oversee
the preparation of the financial statements for each financial period
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and
of results and cash flow for the year.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, adopted appropriate
International Financial Reporting Standards, and made prudent
and reasonable judgments and estimates, and have prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors also
warrant that the Group’s financial statements will be published in a
timely manner.

The statement of the auditors of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 69 of
this report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the remuneration to the
Group’s external auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group is set forth below:

Audit services Z RS
Non-audit services IERZERTS
Total 1l

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company strictly complies with and implements the Listing
Rules to disclose discloseable information on a true, accurate,
complete and timely basis and all other information that might
have significant impact on the decisions of shareholders and
other concermned parties in an active and timely manner. Also, the
Company takes effort in ensuring all shareholders have equal access
to information.

The management believes that effective communication with the
investment community is essential. The executive Directors and
the chief financial officer of the Company hold regular briefings
and results presentation, attend investor forums and respond to
investors’ call-in enquiries, participate in interviews with institutional
investors and financial analysts in the PRC, Hong Kong and overseas
countries to keep them abreast of the Company’s business and
development as well as operating strategies and prospects. In
delivering information to investors, the Company also listens to
their advice and collects the feedback from them, in the interests of
developing an interactive and mutually beneficial relationship with the
Company's investors.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
shareholder meeting.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company can make a written requisition to the Board or the
Company secretary to convene an extraordinary general meeting
pursuant to article 58 of the Company’s articles of association.
The written requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and
must be signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and deposited at
the registered office of the Company, which is presently situated
at Room 1303, 13th Floor, MassMutual Tower, No. 38 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

There are no provisions under the Company’s articles of association
or the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding procedures for
Shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings other
than a proposal of a person for election as director. Shareholders
may follow the procedures set out above to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for any business specified in such
written requisition.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.
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IMPROVED CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND
CONTINUOUSLY FULFILLED SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is a continuous supporter of corporate social responsibility,
directing its energies towards nature preservation and helping the
underprivileged — contributing to the society.

The Group has entered into an agreement with the Conservancy
Association to launch the plan “Move Towards Green 2012,
The 3-year plan includes a “Walk for the Environment”, several
environmental seminars to be held in several Hong Kong primary
schools and a tree planting activity in Guangzhou Fogang. The plan
raises the concern among the staff regarding the environmental
impact by the Group’s operating activities. The Group also
encourages the staff to participate in these environmental protection
activities and raise their environmental protection awareness and
knowledge.

About 60 participants, including staff of the Group and recipient
families of Baptist Oi Kwan Social Service, were gathered to
participate in the “Walk for the Environment 2012” organized by
the Conservancy Association in March 2012. The enjoyable walk
doubled as an educational journey aimed at enhancing appreciation
for environmental conservation.

In December 2012, Conservancy Association organized a Sapling
Protection Day for the Group. During the process when our staff
were clearing weeds and adding fertilizers for the saplings, they
could have further understanding in the Fogang county tree planting
project and its significance.
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Since 2011, the Group took a solid step on promoting the
coordination and effectiveness of greening efforts within our coal
mining districts, and to make greening an integral part of future public
works projects.

The Group’s major effort initiatives being undertaken in Shanxi
province of PRC included active planning and greening programme,
enhancing opportunities of quality greening, community support and
tree preservation.

In addition, the Group has received unconditional grants of RMB28.9
million from PRC government during 2012 as recognition of the
Group’s contribution to the development of the local economy.

All the financial information and other disclosures, including
interim result, final result, announcement, circular and other notice
of the Company are available on the Company’s website at
www.qginfagroup.com and the Stock Exchange’s website at
www.hkex.com.hk.
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Independent Auditor's Report J& 37 4% S it

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
China Qinfa Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 71 to 204, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2012, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2013
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‘'onsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income HZaEmiiAFE

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE-"ZT——F+-A=1+—HIFE

2012 2011
—E-——F —T——%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE ARBET T AREFIT
Turnover = 5,6 11,085,285 9,971,106
Cost of sales SHERA (9,571,906) (8,882,698)
Gross profit EA 1,513,379 1,088,408
Other income EH YA 7 35,793 105,966
Distribution expenses baKah:a (158,212) (127,036)
Administrative expenses TR 2 (348,857) (203,614)
Other expenses H b 8(c) (110,742) (3,927)
Results from operating activities RETENEE 931,361 859,797
Finance income ARSI 34,535 84,476
Finance costs BATER AN (511,471) (270,555)
Net finance costs Ly 9% 8(a) (476,936) (186,079)
Share of (loss)/profit of associates paK ik A=
(E518), &= 18 (2,157) 23,419
Profit before taxation MRB DR 8 452,268 697,137
Income tax expense FriS iR > 9 (119,118) (99,105)
Profit for the year FERRF 333,150 598,032
Other comprehensive income HihZmEUA
Foreign currency translation differences YN EIEELEZ
for foreign operations HNEE I = RE (565) (45,736)
Other comprehensive income for FREMEEIA
the year (after tax and (RAERKEH
reclassification adjustment) DIEAE) 13 (565) (45,736)
Total comprehensive income FREEBALEE
for the year 332,585 552,296

The notes on pages 80 to 204 form part of these financial 802204 B MM 5E MR AN B 75 R = Y — 7B
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of Do MARNAERTFE ABIEREE & F
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in Note FES IR B FFIBE M 5E 32(F) ©

32(f).
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income AW AFE

For the year ended 31 December 2012  &f;

E-E——HF+-A=+—HIFE
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Profit attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

The notes on pages 80 to 204 form part of these financial

statements.

PEAEER] -
AAEEmFTAA
IR R

FREF

FEfE 2 E WA

ARAEIEmFAA

FEIERRHE R

FRAEHEBALE

BRER
BRERBTN

SIRBERF

China Qinfa Group Limited FE=3%&EEER AT

2012 2011

—E-——F —T——F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE ARET T ARET T
257,748 570,470

75,402 27,562

333,150 598,032

257,183 524,734

75,402 27,562

332,585 552,296

148) AR¥o0127T AR¥0277T

14b) AR¥0127t AR¥O027T

F80E 204 B MK i A A 53k A — 2B
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position Zg& MBIIRIEFER

At 31 December 2012

R_FB——F+_H=+—H

2012 2011
—E--F —T——%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE ARET T AREF T

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y%~ BB MEE 15 4,662,712 3,924,147
Coal mining rights B IRER R 16 4,479,614 4,458,446
Lease prepayments HETERFKIA 17 129,588 129,728
Investment in associates RIS N R ZIRE 18 57,485 38,308
Deferred tax assets BETIRE = 19(b) 56,373 4,075
9,385,772 8,554,704

Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 21 506,119 504,840
Derivatives PTETHE 22 - 466
Trade and bills receivable JEUWE 5 BR R K FE W = 4% 23 3,703,237 1,341,025
Prepayments and other receivables TR FRI8 & E b e U FRIE 24 1,759,774 1,550,282
Pledged deposits [RELETIES 25 1,641,244 535,745
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 26 1,190,541 592,027
8,800,915 4,524,385
Current liabilities REEE

Loans and borrowings BERREE 27 (5,103,416) (1,565,273)
Trade and bills payable BN B SRR RIENEE 29 (3,353,794) (2,012,289)
Other payables H fth e 5RIE 30 (1,971,384) (1,737,558)
Derivatives PTETH 22 - (2,127)
Current taxation ENIE 19(a) (310,872) (269,348)
(10,739,466) (5,586,595)
Net current liabilities REBAEFHE (1,938,551) (1,062,210)
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABRRBAR 7,447,221 7,492,494

Non-current liabilities ERBARS
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIBEE 19(c) (1,158,344) (1,151,071)
Other payables H {th e 5RIE 30 (153,516) (1,232,000)
Loans and borrowings BERREE 27 (2,169,967) (1,782,778)
Accrued reclamation obligations TEIR1EZ2RER 31 (76,728) (71,797)
(3,558,555) (4,237,646)
Net assets EEFE 3,888,666 3,254,848

The notes on pages 80 to 204 form part of these financial £ 80ZE 204 B MM s K AR Sk &) — &P
statements. b

o

N
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position & M BEIRILFE

At 31 December 2012 W-ZE——F+=-A=+—H

2012 2011
—B—C=fF —F——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE ARET T ARET T
Capital and reserves BARwHE
Share capital &7 32(b) 176,266 176,266
Perpetual subordinated KRR AT AR 75 75
convertible securities 32(c) 156,931 -
Reserves e 2,298,878 2,069,400
Total equity attributable to AATERFEA
equity shareholders of PE(LRER 4 %E
the Company 2,632,075 2,245,666
Non-controlling interests EEE IR 1,256,591 1,009,182
Total equity DB 3,888,666 3,254,848

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of China RZE—=F=A-+-—HERRRES

Qinfa Group Limited on 22 March 2013. EERARESTSHEREETIE
Director Director
EFE EFE
XU Jihua WANG Jianfei
#®hEE F B

The notes on pages 80 to 204 form part of these financial 802204 B HY P 5T AL 2B 75 = A — 7B
statements. 7 e

N
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Statement of Financial Position BRI

At 31 December 2012 R-Z——F+—-A=+—H

2012 2011
—E-——F —T——%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR®T T ARETIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries R B ARIHIKE 20 658,807 658,807
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other receivables TEAS FIE & E At fE U F0E 24 1,016,198 1,054,276
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 26 76,785 624
1,092,983 1,054,900
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables H b e RO 30 (456,467) (530,248)
Net current assets REEETFHE 636,516 524,652
Net assets EERE 1,295,323 1,183,459
Capital and reserves BAR#HE 32(a)
Share capital &N 32(b) 176,266 176,266
Perpetual subordinated KA IR AR AT AR 75 5
convertible securities 32(c) 156,931 -
Reserves it 962,126 1,007,193
Total equity ERBEE 1,295,323 1,183,459

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of China RZEBE-—=F=A-T-BEFREEFEE

Qinfa Group Limited on 22 March 2013. EERAREFSHEREERET
Director Director
EF EZE
XU Jihua WANG Jianfei
#BEE T B

The notes on pages 80 to 204 form part of these financial 802204 B MM sE A BT 75 R 3= Ay — 3B

statements. 5 e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity LEERESS B E R

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZE—ZT——F+_-_A=+—HILEE

76

RRRERE AR
Share-based
compensation
reserve Non-
Share Share Merger Bxchange IRAE Retained controling Total
capital premium feserve Reserves reserve B eamings Total interest equity
BE RiEE AR fe  EiBR  WeRR  REEW & HikiEE  BRLE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i ARETT  ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETRT  ARETRE ARETR
At January 2011 Ro®--5-5-8 U AR M2 M MY 4Gl RS 17IOSN 5500 177462
Total comprehensive ~ ERZERALE
income for the year
Proft fo the year ERE - - = = = - 5040 5040 R 598032
Other comprehensive ~ Efi2EKA
income
Foreign curency BIENELL
iranslation differences NEpERE
for foreign operations - - - - (45,736) - - (45,736) - (45,736)
Total other comprehensive {2 FRALEE
income - - - - T - - -
Total comprehensive FEHAEE
income - - - - (45,736) - 570,470 524,734 27,562 562,296
Transactions with equity  EEREAAZRS
shareholders, and REERESR
non-controlling RERERTR
interests, recorded
directly in equity
Non-controling interests i —FEHBAR
aisngfomacquiston ~ EAERFFERIER
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - 926,521 926,521
Share option exercised B 320l 5 162 - - - (40) o 127 o 127
Appropriation toreserves  BEAE 32(c)i) - - - 44,001 - - (44,027) - - -
Capitalisation issue BT 32(b)vi) 84,787 (84,787) = = S o o o o o
Equity-settled DEREZTIN
sharebasedpayments  IRGARRERT 321 - - - - - 1275 - 1275 - 1275
Total transactions with HEFHEA
equiy shareholders IRH8E ML e - oo - 125 (40 142 988 979
At31 December 2011 R=F--%
TZA=1-H 176,266 410,008 127,442 366,268 (123,179 5,847 1,283,014 2,245,666 1,009,182 3,254,848

The notes on pages 80 to 204 form part of these financial

statements.

China Qinfa Group Limited FE=3%&EEER AT

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

N

4 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity %£H HE

At1 January 2012

Total comprehensive
income for the year
Proft for he year

Other comprehensive
income

Forelgn curency
ranglaton difierences
for foreign operations

Totalother comprehensive
income

Total comprehensive
income

Transactions with
equity shareholders,
and non-controlling
interests, recorded
directly in equity

Issue of perpetual
subordnated
convertble securties

Peretual subordinated
convertble Securties
IssUe expenses

Dividends eclared and
paid during the year

Captal contoution received
ina non-wholy owned
subsidiary fom
non-controling
shareholoers

Captalrepayment for
liuicaton of a non-wholly
owned subsilary fo
non-contoling
shareholoers

Appropriaton of
malntenance and
production funds

Utiisation of maintenance
and production funds

Appropration to reserves

Equity-setfled
share-based payments

Total transactions with
equity shareholders

At 31 December 2012

The notes on pages 80 to 204 form part of these financial

statements.

Note
3

R-§-2£-B-B
ERRANALE
R

L TTN
:E‘;%%%EEZ

e

AR

Efe2@q)g8

2ARAER

SREEEALRS
REERRES
RERERSIR

B
GEVED

MARRTER
ERUAAR

EAEERR
1R

~F2RIE
ATEFAR
RRETaR
&

S-Fr2ENE
DFEERAER
BRERAR

0

20

S

ARELR

S0
e
sEAE 320
EAR 320
EREEUI
i BERS

SEERAA

Sl

For the year ended 31 December 2012 & ZE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

—=

—=

3% L

i 5

LiEs

ZF+ZA=+T—HIEFE

FAARERAAES
Perpetual Share-based
subordinated compensation
convertible reserve Non-
Share Share securities Merger Exchange WRBE Retained controlling Total
capital premium KAkf reserve Reserves reserve -t eamings Total interest equity
& RsE  TEERS it} L] EiRf Hekk REEH G 2 | i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR ARMTn ARMTn ARMTn ARETn ARETr ARETR AREfR
L L . L A MEIM | RMGR MIR LM
] U S . 2 I L S ne W
- - - = 5 565) 5 5 (565 5 [
L I T i S . 9
] . S S . o BT RS
- - 157,872 - - - - - 167,872 - 157,872
. - o4) - - - - - o41) - (o41)
- (33,748) - - - - - - (33,748) - (33,748)
- - - - - - - - - 176,456 176,456
: : - - - - - g g b9 {4449
: : - - iR - - [ty g . g
: : - ] - - 0807 . . .
= = = = 49511 . . (#9511 5 5 5
- - - - - - 6,043 - 6,043 - 6,043
L A2 . BT AT 2 T 2
176,266 376,260 156,931 121,42 448,080 (123,744) 11,890 1,438,950 2632075 1,286,591 3,888,066

AN

7]

o

5802204 B K ERE A A B 15 R 10— &P
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ZZ&HEMER

For the year ended 31 December 2012  &f;

E-E——HF+-A=+—HIFE

78

Operating activities
Cash (used in)/generated
from operations
Interest paid
Tax paid:
— PRC Income Tax paid

Net cash (used in)/generated
from operating activities

Investing activities
Interest received
Proceeds from sale of property,
plant and equipment
Deposits received
(Payment for)/proceeds from sales of
derivative financial instruments
Cash acquired from
acquisition of a subsidiary
Acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
Acquisition of coal mining rights
Payment for investments in
subsidiaries and associates
Deposits for equity investments
Dividends received from an associate

Net cash used in investing activities

reeE® (FrA),/
PIiSRE
EfFE
EffHIA -
— BRI EMEH
RgsEe (FrA),/~
ISR &8
REEE
EYFLE
HEWE - WE KRB
P{S7RIR
Bz e
HETESRMT A
(), PriSsoR

WHEINB L RESRS
WiEME - BE MR

U R R IR A

ERIEEPNCINSE N
BENZK

A B LS

YER — B A R) 2 BB,

REFBAR S FHE

The notes on pages 80 to 204 form part of these financial

statements.

China Qinfa Group Limited FE=3%&EEER AT

2012 2011

=F—=-F —T—F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FiHaE ARBTRE  ARETRT
26(0) (182,091) 1,255,075
(377,599) (271,715)
19(a) (122,619) (34,764)

.. 682309 948,996

34,535 21,610

31,352 15

- 200,000

(791) 9,439

- 124,264
(837,411) (248,860)
(30,000) (5,000)
(983,386)  (1,300,000)

(42,768) (308,221)

- 32,000

(1,828,469)  (1,469,753)

5580204 B K ERE A A B 15 R 10 — &P
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ZF&HEmMEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #HE-"ZT——F+-A=1+—HIFE

2012 2011
—E—-F —E——fF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B EE ARBT T ARET T
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from perpetual subordinated AR AR TR

convertible securities BHFT1SKIA 32(c) 156,931 -
Proceeds from loans and other borrowings * m&ﬁﬁﬂfﬁgﬁﬁ (C Q] 12,927,801 12,725,149
Repayment of loans and other borrowings EEER R EMEE (9,001,908) (12,319,667)
Change in pledged deposits Eﬁ?ﬁﬂﬁ KB (1,105,499) 416,062
Capital contribution received in a —REE BB AR

non-wholly owned subsidiary TEIEERRAR R 4 T

by non-controlling shareholders BEALE 176,456 -
Capital repayment of liquidation of a —MFEEEWE

non-wholly owned subsidiary to NAERMAZEER

non-controlling shareholders AR EEE AR (4,449) -
Proceeds from exercised TEERAREEH]

Pre-IPO share option HE AR AT 1S SIE - 127
Dividends paid to equity shareholders iR AETR S 32(f) (33,748) -
Net cash generated from REEEMEREFE

financing activities 8,115,584 ¢ 821,671
Net increase in cash RERRLEEY

and cash equivalents ENFEEE 604,806 300,514
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—BZzBL2k

at 1 January HEZEEY 26(a) 592,027 287,161
Effect of foreign exchange EREENE

rate changes (6,292) 4,352
Cash and cash equivalents R+t=ZA=+—Hxz

at 31 December ReRESEEY 26(a) 1,190,541 592,027
Major non-cash transactions BEXFBELRS

Save as disclosed in Note 15 to the consolidated financial BRERE SRR 15 R AT IR EE I

statements, there is no other major non-cash transactions during the REBEEZZE——FR=-F—F+=A
year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011. =t HLEFESEARNEMERNIERS

The notes on pages 80 to 204 form part of these financial EE80ZE 204 B KM T AN B 7 ek ) — 30
paN

o

S

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 32 Ml et

80

1

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

1.1

1.2

General information

China Qinfa Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 March 2008
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (2007 Revision) of the Cayman Islands.
The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 3 July 2009 (the “Listing Date”). The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are coal mining,
purchase and sales, filtering, storage, blending of coal,
shipping transportation and port business.

Basis of preparation

(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IAS”)
and related Interpretations, promulgated by
the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”), and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

China Qinfa Group Limited FE=3%&EEER AT

DARAERREREE

1.2

— AR
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 738k 3% Mt 51

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The IASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is rounded to the nearest
thousand, except when otherwise indicated. They
have been prepared on the historical cost basis
except that the derivatives are measured at fair
value (see Note 2(e)(iv)).

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other resources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

RAERRRHUEE(F)

1.2 WEEEE)

(@)

(b)

()

SRBAE)

EilS- e byl
TETH REETHE
B SEHmE LR RFE
AR AR E R AR BIH AR
R E PN E TN
REHM - MESFIRR
EMMEE ST HRRES
KRR EAREBREAZ
SRR R BRI AN B 75
RANSETHRED -

BRIES BRI - AR
RUAARE(TARE DR
BRUHR  MEAAZER
BONTUEE  ZE
SERRAE RS - EDTAE
TADBEAAREFER
HIEE2()(iv)) ©

Fi iz fl st B 4

ERERCRRA AR
B 595 2 RO T 4
R IR - 1 3 R B
B e SN - (E R
REYERHRENER
GEEETEL N
WONBR K i ) 2 4R
HE R ERBRRE
IR IR DA AR AOE B 15
RTRA NS EL
RESEE - HERERT
BB E R R R
B BN AERA EE
B A AR T RO 2T &
PR3 P B B
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 32 Ml et
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1

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are described as follows:

(i) Impairment losses for trade and bills
receivable

Impairment losses for trade and bills
receivable are assessed and provided based
on management’s regular review of ageing
analysis and evaluation of collectability. A
considerable level of judgement is exercised
by the management when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history
of each individual customer. Any increase
or decrease in the impairment losses for
bad and doubtful debts would affect the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in future years.

China Qinfa Group Limited FE=3%&EEER AT

DRAERREREE(F)

1.2 WEEEE)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 32 M et

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

(i)

(i

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking into
account the estimated residual values. The
management periodically reviews changes
in technology and industry conditions,
asset retirement activity and residual values
to determine adjustments to estimated
remaining useful lives and depreciation
rates. Actual economic lives may differ from
estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could
result in a change in depreciable lives and
therefore depreciation expenses in future
periods.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience of
distributing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a
result of competitor’s actions in response to
severe industry cycles or other changes in
market condition. Management will reassess
the estimations at each reporting date.

RAERRRHUEE(F)

1.2 WEEEE)
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P Rz (b5t R IR ()

(i)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 32 Ml et

1

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF 1
PREPARATION (continued)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

()

Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

(iv)

Fair value of derivatives

The fair value of derivatives traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices
at the reporting date. The fair value of
derivatives that are not traded in an active
market is determined by using valuation
techniques in which all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly based on observable
market data.

Coal reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group’s
coal reserves are inherently imprecise
and represent only approximate amounts
because of the subjective judgements
involved in developing such information.
There are authoritative guidelines regarding
the engineering criteria that have to be
met before estimated coal reserves can be
designated as “proved” and “probable”.
Proved and probable coal reserve estimates
are updated on a regular basis and have
taken into account recent production and
technical information about each mine. In
addition, as prices and cost levels change
from year to year, the estimate of proved and
probable coal reserves also changes. This
change is considered a change in estimate
for accounting purposes and is reflected on
a prospective basis in related depreciation
rates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 32 M et

1 COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF 1 LAFABEERGREX(EZ)
PREPARATION (continued)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued) 1.2 REEE(E)
(c) Use of estimates and judgements (continued) (c) FTRAZfhEEtRHE (&)

(v)  Coal reserves (continued) V)  HEIRFEEE)
Despite the inherent imprecision in these BREZZELREME
engineering estimates, these estimates are FHEREABTIE®E
used in determining depreciation expenses M ZEGE TR
and impairment loss. Depreciation rates REBEEMERI X
are determined based on estimated proved REERE ITE L
and probable coal reserve quantity (the KRB EE T
denominator) and capitalised costs of mining B R et B R =
structures and mining rights (the numerator). (EBH ) RERE
The capitalised cost of mining structures and HEBRREENE
mining rights are amortised based on the N A N ==
units of coal produced. F)MET - HFIELE

BREEENER
£ B AR B 3% P A4 B
B B R B8 A i 1T
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1

COMPANY BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(c)

Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

(vi)

Obligations for reclamation

The estimation of the liabilities for final
reclamation and mine closure involves the
estimates of the amount and timing for
the future cash spending as well as the
discount rate used for reflecting current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability.
The Group considers various factors,
including future production volume and
development plan, the geological structure
of the mining regions and reserve volume,
to determine the scope, amount and timing
of reclamation and mine closure works to
be performed. Determination of the effect
of these factors involves judgements from
the Group and the estimated liabilities may
turn out to be different from the actual
expenditure incurred. The discount rate used
by the Group may also be altered to reflect
the changes in the market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability, such as changes of
the borrowing rate and inflation rate in the
market. As changes in estimates occur
(such as mine plan revisions, changes in
estimated costs, or changes in timing of
the performance of reclamation activities),
revisions to the obligations will be recognised
at the appropriate discount rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 738k 3% Mt 51

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are
taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see Note 2(g))
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(Kk)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 32 M et

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if
any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post
acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s
net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment (see Note 2(k)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in profit or loss,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Associates (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see Note 2(g)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 32 M et

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©)

Goodwiill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When (ji) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination
is allocated to each cash-generating unit (“CGU”), or
groups of CGU, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see Note 2(k)).

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

2

BEXEHBEE(E)

(©)

5]

I

BERATME ZZ5

HERENALE R
WeiE 75 BT ] FEFE R M 2
B & 5 R A S B SR
WEFRFEREN DA
ROZBFN ; B2

=
=

(i) WUEBEIT MR E E R
BEREBERESAEN
RIEFHEE

N

B (i) AP () B - R ZHEEBIRERS
B R A ERE Al

BEERARRTREBEA
R AXBaMEENEED
EERRSELEM((REE
ABEU ) —HERSELE
i ReELBEMBEHRTAEA
PR EES - WAEF
EITRERF (2B 2(K) °

FALERSELENK B
ABENEAEGESEERER
AELENERA -

Annual Report 2012 —Z2——F&3% 91




Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 32 Ml et

92

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

©)

Foreign currency

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each entity in the Group are measured using
the currency that best reflects the economic
substance of the underlying events and
circumstances relevant to the entity (the “functional
currency”). The financial statements are presented
in RMB (the “presentation currency”).

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
to the respective functional currencies of Group
entities at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting
date are retranslated to the functional currency
at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign
currency gain or loss on monetary items is
the difference between amortised cost in the
functional currency at the beginning of the year,
adjusted for effective interest and payments
during the year, and the amortised cost in foreign
currency translated at the exchange rate at the end
of the year.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
retranslated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the date that the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured based on historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 32 M et

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Foreign currency (continued)

(iii)

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations,
including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated to RMB at
exchange rates at the reporting date. The income
and expenses of foreign operations are translated
to RMB at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income, and presented in
the foreign currency translation reserve (translation
reserve) in equity.

When the settlement of a monetary item receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation is neither
planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, foreign
currency gains and losses arising from such item
are considered to form part of the net investment
in the foreign operation and are recognised in other
comprehensive income, and presented in the
translation reserve in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

€)

Financial instruments

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets

The Group initially recognises loans and
receivables on the date that they are originated.
All other financial assets are recognised initially on
the trade date, which is the date that the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in
such transferred financial assets that is created or
retained by the Group is recognised as a separate
asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group has a
legal right to offset the amounts and intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group has the following non-derivative
financial assets: loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Such assets are
recognised initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses (see Note 2(K)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B4 738k 3% Mt 51

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

€)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables comprise cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivable, and
prepayments and other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
balances and call deposits with maturities of three
months or less from the acquisition date that
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
their fair value, and are used by the Group in the
management of its short-term commitments.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Group initially recognises financial liabilities on
the trade date at which the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial liability
when its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire.

The Group classifies non-derivate financial
liabilities into the other financial liabilities category.
Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at
fair value less any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities comprise loans and
borrowings, trade and bills payable, and other
payables.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)  Financial instruments (continued)

2 EXEHBE#E)

€ SRMIE#E

(i) Share capital (i)  BRA
Ordinary shares AR
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. TRRED M Ak o B
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue TEBR BEEREE
of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction PR AR TER R EIR - 4
from equity, net of any tax effects. BREAIBETE -
Perpetual subordinated convertible securities KR KR AT LR AE 55
Perpetual subordinated convertible securities IREE B BT R K AR AR AT
(“convertible securities”) issued by the Group MR ES ([T HRRES])
gives the right to the holder to convert these BTEB AR - AIRER
securities into a fixed number of the Company’s REENFRITEERKZ
shares at any time at a fixed exercise price per EBFABMBARNREE
share. Convertible securities with no contracted H MR o THAEM
obligation to repay its principal nor to pay any BEASHXMNDIKZE
distribution are classified as equity. Respective HEER AT RREBE ST D
distributions if and when declared are treated as HAERD  FEDIKRE
equity dividends. PRERF AR R R IR B ©

(iv) Derivative financial instruments (iv) fT£EE®TA

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At each reporting date,
the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss
on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment

(i)

Recognition and measurement

ltems of buildings, vessels, plant and equipment
and other properties are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see Note 2(k)).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The
cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost
of materials and direct labour, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to a
working condition for its intended use, the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located and capitalised
borrowing costs (see Note 2(s)) and changes in
the measurement of existing liabilities recognised
for these costs resulting from changes in the
timing or outflow of resources required to settle
the obligation or from changes in the discount
rate. Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is capitalised
as part of that equipment.

When proved and probable coal reserves have
been determined, costs incurred to develop coal
mines are capitalised as part of the cost of the
mining structures. All other expenditures, including
the costs of removing waste materials, the cost of
repairs and maintenance and major overhaul, are
expensed as they are incurred.

When parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

f)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement (continued)

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment (calculated as the difference
between the net proceeds from disposal and the
carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit
or loss.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the
future economic benefits embodied within the part
will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
component is derecognised. The costs of the day-
to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Cost incurred in replacing or renewing the
separate assets in vessels (dry-docking costs)
are capitalised and depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated period until the next dry-
docking.

Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset
less its residual value. Significant components of
individual assets are assessed and if a component
has a useful life that is different from the remainder
of the asset, that component is depreciated
separately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(iii)

Depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each component of an item of property, plant and
equipment, other than mining structures.

The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative years of significant items of property,
plant and equipment are as follows:

Plant and buildings 10-30 years
Machinery 3-30 years
Electronic and other equipment 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-15 years
Vessels 10-30 years

Mining structures are depreciated using the units-
of-production method, utilising only proved and
probable coal reserves in the depletion base.

No depreciation is provided for assets under
construction until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and available for intended
use. Assets under construction are transferred
to the relevant categories of property, plant and
equipment upon the completion of their respective
construction.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

@

Coal mining rights

Coal mining rights represent coal mining rights acquired
from the government or through a business combination.
Coal mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see Note 2(k)).

Coal mining rights are amortised using the units-of-
production method, utilising only proved and probable
coal reserves in the depletion base.

LLease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent the cost of land use rights
and sea use rights paid to PRC government authorities.
Lease prepayments are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see Note 2(k)).

Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the respective periods of the rights except
that the amortisation is included as part of assets under
construction when the amortisation can be directly
attributable to the cost of relevant assets during the
construction period.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing
them to their existing location and condition. In the case
of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost
includes an appropriate share of production overheads
based on normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Obligations for reclamation

The Group’s obligations for reclamation consist of
spending estimates at both surface and underground
mines in accordance with the PRC rules and regulations.
The Group estimates its liabilities for final reclamation
and mine closure based upon detailed calculations of
the amount and timing of the future cash spending to
perform the required work. Spending estimates are
escalated for inflation, then discounted at a discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the liability such
that the amount of provision reflects the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The Group records a corresponding asset
associated with the liability for final reclamation and mine
closure. The obligation and corresponding asset are
recognised in the period in which the liability is incurred.
The asset is depreciated on the units-of-production
method over its expected life and the liability is accreted
1o the projected spending date. As changes in estimates
occur (such as mine plan revisions, changes in estimated
costs, or changes in timing of the performance of
reclamation activities), the revisions to the obligation
and the corresponding asset are recognised at the
appropriate discount rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets

A financial asset not classified as at fair value
through profit or loss is assessed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is
objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial
asset is impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset,
and that the loss event(s) had an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset that can
be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are
impaired includes default or delinquency by a
debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the
Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer
will enter bankruptcy, adverse changes in the
payment status of borrowers or issuers, economic
conditions that correlate with defaults or the
disappearance of an active market for a security.
In addition, for an investment in an equity security,
a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value
below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

The Group considers evidence of impairment
for financial assets measured at amortised cost
(loans and receivables) at both a specific asset and
collective level. All individually significant assets
are assessed for specific impairment. Those found
not to be specifically impaired are then collectively
assessed for any impairment that has been
incurred but not yet identified. Assets that are not
individually significant are collectively assessed
for impairment by grouping together assets with
similar risk characteristics.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

In assessing collective impairment, the Group
uses historical trends of the probability of default,
the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss
incurred, adjusted for management’s judgement
as to whether current economic and credit
conditions are such that the actual losses are likely
to be greater or less than suggested by historical
trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost is calculated as
the difference between its carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit
or loss and reflected in an allowance account
against loans and receivables. Interest on the
impaired asset continues to be recognised. When
an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised causes the amount of impairment loss
to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial
assets, other than inventories and deferred tax
assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwiill
and coal mining rights assets that have indefinite
useful lives or that are not yet available for use,
are tested annually for impairment. An impairment
loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an
asset or cash-generating unit (‘CGU”) exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is
the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGU. For impairment testing, assets are
grouped together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use
that are largely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or CGUs. Subject to an operating
segment ceiling test, CGUs to which goodwill has
been allocated are aggregated so that the level
at which impairment testing is performed reflects
the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored
for internal reporting purposes. Goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to groups
of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Non-financial assets (continued)

The Group’s corporate assets do not generate
separate cash inflows and are utilised by more
than one CGU. Corporate assets are allocated to
CGUs on a reasonable and consistent basis and
tested for impairment as part of the testing of the
CGU to which the corporate asset is allocated.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the CGU (group of
CGUs), and then to reduce the carrying amounts
of the other assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on
a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the
end of the financial year.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EAEHBEE)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued) k) BEREE)

(ii) Interim financial reporting and impairment (iii) PEARAESIRE RIEE (&)
(continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an interim HAFF B HA R ot e 2 S K
period in respect of goodwill and unquoted equity A5 EBRAVIE E TR ATE S
securities carried at cost are not reversed in a ERZBEBEETZRE
subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, & BRI B[O - BER R+
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised BRHARE A0 R B 5T 7R B R
had the impairment been assessed only at the end FEFEREITMIEE
of the financial year to which the interim period 18 EEREMN - A
relates. BB BRI T EE -

()  Employee benefits ) 1EERF

(i) Short-term employee benefits (i) =EHESEF
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and M- BEELL - BEE
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued BREIEEERERIKA - B
in the year in which the associated services are BERHBEEARSE < FE
rendered by employees. Where payment or WRET o MEBRNHET
settlement is deferred and the effect would be REATE  ZEEHEEE
material, these amounts are stated at their present TRIBEFIER o
values.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan (i) TEEMHITEMKE
Obligations for contribution to local government RIEFEFERES THRAKX
defined contribution retirement schemes pursuant ERRB SRR TES
to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the SHEE B 13 5 B R 5B
PRC and the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident HFGRIRET EIE H (3
Fund Scheme Ordinance are recognised as an EEREAREERANRE
expense in profit or loss as incurred. REFRX -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the Binomial Model and Binomial
Lattice Model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value
of the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
share-based compensation reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to
the share premium account) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained profits).
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss
as follows:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Revenue (continued)

(i)

(i)

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods in the course
of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, net
of returns, trade discounts and value added tax.
Revenue is recognised when persuasive evidence
exists, usually in the form of an executed sales
agreement, that the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
recovery of the consideration is probable, the
associated costs and possible return of goods
can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing
management involvement with the goods, and
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
If it is probable that discounts will be granted and
the amount can be measured reliably, then the
discount is recognised as a reduction of revenue
as the sales are recognised.

Income from charter hire

Income from time charter, which is of operating
lease in nature, is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the period of each charter.

Income from voyage charter is recognised on
a percentage-of-completion basis, which is
determined on the time proportion method of each
individual voyage.
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110

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)  Revenue (continued)

(iii) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

(iv) Dividends

= Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(0) Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as
an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term
of the lease.

China Qinfa Group Limited FEI=3%&EER AT

2

BEREHBEEE)

(i) BUFHBIE

i 5 392 R R 7S5 S R KPS 4
Pe - MAKEKETHE
fif s e ft - AIBUT B &
15 R A T AR 2 P e
R o AR B ATE LN
AXHmEBE  eREL
5 52 89 R — HARE A VE 2 i
#0A RSHNE S TR
MERNKEEEKARDMH
Bye & EREES
B HR&acrmir
ERXRNEERERFH
AR BRRHER -

(ivy RE

— REFLHREN
A B M AR BER M
HRASF 3R B0 2 ) 2

£ 7
STRFRERR ©

- XEBLWEREMK
B AREE &
B A (B BR B 2 B

2 o

pe]

REMREMK

REMERTONREREE
FHUREREREEERDR
FERR o FTURERH) TH & 22BN
EFHRRAEER X ERYN
ARER D




2

Notes to the Financial Statements B4 7 38k 3% M 51

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

P

Finance income and costs

Finance income comprise interest income and foreign
currency gains. Interest income is recognised as it
accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest
method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings,
bank charges and foreign currency losses. Borrowing
costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are
recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest
method.

Foreign currency gains and losses on financial assets
and financial liabilities are reported on a net basis as
either finance income or finance cost depending on
whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or
net loss position.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purpose and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@

Income tax expense (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax assets can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 32 Ml et

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EAEHBEE)
(@ Income tax expense (continued) @ FIERFAXZ(#E)

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution SR B B EERE
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the B 5 RIE B EA ZBINFTIS R
related dividends is recognised. FER o

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and BV HA 56 78 4% £ N 3l A 7% T8 45 B4
movements therein, are presented separately from each WRBEBES B2 EF 25
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset RAEKE o tnARR Al ARE
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets AIEROETT (0 4 ) 5 BN BR A 78
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the EERHENHAHIEGE  WiE
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current BFETHEMIEHEZBFRT
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following BEATR 18 & 2 77 & B BN HR A 18
additional conditions are met: BERE UWRREHIEEE

T ERTEHIAR B -

- inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the — WMERHBEEEKRE
Company or the Group intends either to settle on (- NN NS E TE DN
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the SRR S (B R E R
liability simultaneously, or BEWEEARE =k
- inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if - WBEREHEEEKRE
they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax & WA — TR A1 8 3 LA
authority on either: TEBBURFSTHIMESE
- the same taxable entity, or — R EAERHRES
573
-  different taxable entities, which, in each - TRAMERHRE
future period in which significant amounts of . EARRET
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected T8 HA 145 )5 B sk W B
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise EAHEBELER
the current tax assets and settle the current HEENBENH
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and M- Z5EEENU
settle simultaneously. FRE IR B HA R 18

BENMBERESR
RS ME FIRETT ©

Annual Report 2012 —Z2——F#% 113




Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 32 M et

114

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

("

Dividends payable

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in
which they are declared.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per
share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 32 Ml et

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2 EARBHBEE)
(v)  Related parties (continued) ) BaER (&)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the (o) EFFE THNEM A - BT
following conditions applies: ERREASEBRE
()  The entity and the Group are members of the () ZEREXNEES
same group (which means that each parent, A—%5E2 E)Z B
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to (AN &E & AR
the others). = NEIDN A
BREEtEEE
) o
(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture i) —HEBAEE—EZ
of the other entity (or an associate or joint MBS ARIKE
venture of a member of a group of which the Er¥E(XS—F
other entity is a member). BARKERAZE
ETKERAEZ
fENRHEE D
%)
(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same (i) MEEEHRBR-—
third party. F=THEEDRE -
(v) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy —HEBEE=F
and the other entity is an associate of the ERBHNEERE-
third entity. mMeE—ERBRZE
=HEBHEER
EJ o
(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan v ERERAEEE
for the benefit of employees of either the REEBHEZE
Group or an entity related to the Group. B EEMNZER T
BB ARG &l o
(v The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by V) BEEX(a)FTHEAIA
a person identified in (a). THEHI = R =
il o
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) A (a)() Fraskpll A =3
influence over the entity or is a member of ERBBEEATES
the key management personnel of the entity NBZERE (S _}ZME
(or of a parent of the entity). BOEAR)EEE
BREKE -
Close members of the family of a person are those T/\E’U?E%E%EE‘Z?\TE?EHH—J
family members who may be expected to influence, or B AXRBAZERES
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the ZEERHNREKE °
entity.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The IASB has issued a few amendments to IFRS that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. None of the developments are relevant to the
accounting policies applied in the financial statements for the
years presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES

(@  Property, plant and equipment

The fair value of property, plant and equipment
recognised as a result of a business combination is
the estimated amount for which a property could be
exchanged on the date of acquisition between a willing
buyer and a willing selling in an arm’s length transaction
after proper marketing wherein the parties had each
acted knowledgeably. The fair value of items of plant
and equipment is based on the market approach and
cost approaches using quoted market prices for similar
items when available and depreciated replacement
cost when appropriate. Depreciated replacement cost
reflects adjustments for physical deterioration as well as
functional and economic obsolescence.

(b)  Coal mining rights

The fair value of coal mining rights is based on the
discounted cash flows expected to be derived from the
use and eventual sale of the assets.

(c) Inventories

The fair value of inventories acquired in a business
combination is determined based on the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and sale, and a
reasonable profit margin based on the effort required to
complete and sell the inventories.
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4 DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES (continued)

©)

Trade and bills receivable, prepayments and other
receivables, trade and bills payable and other payables.

The carrying values of these financial assets and liabilities
approximate their respective fair values due to the short
maturities of these instruments.

Derivatives

Foreign exchange option contracts, interest rate swap
contracts, foreign exchange forward contracts and coal
trading put options are stated at their fair value using
valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly based on observable market data.

Loans and borrowings

The carrying amounts of loans and borrowings
approximate their fair values based on the borrowing
rates currently available for bank loans with similar terms
and maturity.

Share-based payment transactions

The fair values of share options under the Pre-IPO Option
and Share Option Scheme are measured using the
Binomial Model and Binomial Lattice Model. Measuring
inputs include the offer price, the exercise price, the risk-
free rate of interest, expected option period, expected
volatility and expected dividend. Service and non-market
performance conditions attached to the transactions are
not taken into account in determining the fair value.
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SEGMENT REPORTING

(@)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

The Group has three major reportable segments-coal
business, shipping transportation and port business-
which are the Group’s strategic business units. These
strategic business units offer different products and
services, and are managed separately because
they require different technology and marketing
strategies. For each of the strategic business units,
the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”) reviews internal
management reports on a monthly basis.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the CEO
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
adjusted profit before net finance costs and taxes. ltems
not specifically attributable to individual segments, such
as unallocated head office and corporate administration
costs are further adjusted.

Segment assets include all tangible assets, coal mining
rights and current assets with the exception of deferred
tax assets and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include trade and bills payable and other payables
attributable to activities of the individual segments
and loans and borrowings managed directly by the
segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments.
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5 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

Reconciliations of reportable segment turnover, profit or

loss, assets and liabilities

Turnover

Reportable segment turnover
Elimination of inter-segment turnover

Consolidated turnover

Profit

Reportable segment profit
before taxation
Elimination of inter-segment profit
Unallocated head office
and corporate expenses
Net finance costs

Consolidated profit before taxation

=

o)
I

ERE

3F

=

HENT

Dk

D BRI 2 H 8

Pa) YNNG
RATRX

B RSP AF5E

LR BRTR B A

>|.|.

BEDEEEE
7 B[R & R B

BER AR A

gl

2
2012 2011
—E-C—F =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET ARBFTT
11,348,629 10,517,034
(263,344) (545,928)
11,085,285 9,971,106
Y Kl
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT
949,480 894,914
(2,774) (633)
(17,502) (11,065)
(476,936) (186,079)
452,268 697,137
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5

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

5

Reconciliations of reportable segment turnover, profit or

loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

Assets

Reportable segment assets

Elimination of inter-segment
receivables and inventories

Elimination of receivables from
head office

Deferred tax assets

Unallocated assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Reportable segment liabilities
Elimination of inter-segment payables
Elimination of payables to head office
Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Unallocated liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

China Qinfa Group Limited FE=3%&EEER AT
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PEBHRE (&)
(b) AHREDHAEHETE B
BERBEHRGE)
BE
2012 2011
—E-——F —T—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
18,712,493 13,927,249
(202,943) (322,832)
(456,443) (530,224)
56,373 4,075
77,207 821
18,186,687 13,079,089
af&E
2012 2011
=F-=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREBTTT
14,047,652 9,775,557
(202,709) (320,474)
(1,016,162) (1,051,285)
310,872 269,348
1,158,344 1,151,071
24 24
14,298,021 9,824,241
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SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(©)

Geographic information

The Group’s total assets are primarily dominated
by assets handling its coal business and shipping
transportation. The coal are sold primarily to the PRC
domestic customers and investments in most of the
coal mines are physically located in the PRC. Therefore,
related assets and liabilities are almost all located in
the PRC. The vessels are primarily deployed across
geographical markets for shipping transportation
throughout the world. As a result, the directors consider
that it will not be meaningful to allocate the Group’s
assets and their related capital expenditure to specific
geographical segments. Accordingly, geographical
segment information is only presented for turnover,
which is based on the geographical location of
customers.

Turnover from external customers

Mainland China FR B K B
Outside Mainland China R B R BESR S
Total A&f

5

4

-~

pal

©

BB E (&)

iR 13 & A

AEENBEEETERRKEH
BRKE S MEEHEBNE
E-RREZBETHFHEEAR
B BBEAHFIREEE LU
KPR - Bt HENEER
BEATFEHMURTE - Ef
FEREZHEE AR HE
MHAR - Wt - EFRR/K
HEBwEH N AEEEE
RERBEARXTERSE -
At AREPAEMENUE
AAENERERIIMENSFE
o

IBEFERE
2012 2011
—E——F =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARBTT
10,802,216 9,779,018
283,069 192,088
11,085,285 9,971,106
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6 TURNOVER 6 EXH
Turnover for the year mainly represents the sales of goods and ARELEBHFERFPEETRIMA LA
A °

charter hire income.

The amount of each significant category of turnover RERNREEER|S YN

recognised during the year is as follows: T @
2012 2011
—F-=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTIT
Sales of coal BEIRHE 10,918,570 9,836,259
Charter hire income el A 166,715 134,847
11,085,285 9,971,106

AEBZEFPEREZ  BEE—XP
ROBEAREREEZ T ——F+=
A=1+—BLEFEZEEHE10% AL

The Group’s customer base is diversified and no single
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s turnover during the year ended 31 December 2012

124
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(2011: Nil). ZE——F )
7 OTHER INCOME 7 Habug A
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE ARET T ARBTIT
Government grants BB & () 28,882 20,212
Bargain purchase gain on EBEtzHE
business combination BA S - 28,057
Bargain purchase gain on s — Bt = A Al
acquisition of an associate ZEEE AR - 26,880
Gain from deemed disposal  fR{EH &R —fEH;E
of interest in an associate NEIRES A - 21,974
Gain on derivatives PTHET Bz 22 2,093 7,000
Others Hi 4,818 1,843
35,793 105,966
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7  OTHER INCOME (continued) 7  HttlkA (&)
)  The Group received unconditional grants from local () AEERAFEEWEREH BT
government during the year as recognition of the E AR 7K & B S 5 ih 45 7 3%
Group’s contribution to the development of the local RETEERAE BRI & -
economy.
8 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8 ERBiIADZA
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): B A NS (GTA) -
(@ Net finance costs (@ WIIEAFEE
2012 2011
=F-=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Interest income FEHA (34,535) (18,856)
Net foreign exchange gain b W a) F 3R - (65,620)
Finance income B (34,535) (84,476)
Interest on borrowings BEEHE 524,510 256,639
Less: interest capitalised into B - BB R
property, plant and RiEFE
equipment* =N (i (69,750) (6,208)
454,760 250,431
Bank charges SRITE M 49,836 20,124
Net foreign exchange loss b BB F R 6,875 =
Finance costs BARS R AR 511,471 270,555
Net finance costs TS AN 558 476,936 186,079
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate * BEEBABRFFX6.53%
of 6.53%-7.36% per annum (2011: 4.13%). 5736%( = B — — &
4.13%) TLAE AL o
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8

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 8
(b)  Staff costs
Wages, salaries and other benefits ~ T& r%&ﬁi\ﬁﬂ%f |

Contribution to defined [7E
contribution plan

Equity-settled share-based %

A E
payment expenses AERER R

The Group participates in pension funds organised
by the PRC government. According to the respective
pension fund regulations, the Group is required to pay
annual contributions during the year. The Group remits
all the pension fund contributions to the respective social
security offices, which are responsible for the payments
and liabilities relating to the pension funds. The Group
has no obligation for payment of retirement and other
post-retirement benefits of employees other than the
contributions described above.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance for all of its employees
employed by the Company in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employee’s
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

China Qinfa Group Limited FE=3%&EEER AT

BTG RIS

AR 7

BRBEATEF (42)
(o) BIKA
2012 2011
—E——F —T—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREBT T
266,725 89,240
7,977 1,090
6,043 1,275
280,745 91,605
7N 55 (B £ B Fh B RS 4B A A R

Ke BEEENRKESR
Bl AEBERFRAINFE
R AEBEEMNZHRAS
HREZAERRSEANTRR
BEMNSEALSRENSE -
Br Bl RN AEBERES
EX TR IE R E A E B R
RI&REH o

RAZR SR TE 5 EIGE]
AEERATRBHAEETERE
ERBEEBEHARAHMERTE
i%&ﬁﬂmﬂ AEl(TeEE st
2 HARTDRIBEEEANH
EZXEBEDLFE IR
@i At 82 R A ABAT R
R B ER A HNRR - BB 53
CEERAKSEZEENF
HBEYEEZESRE A&
BENZAEREHFINEFA
miEERERAEREEHRA -
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8 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 8 BRBIANEF (&)
()  Otheritems ) EmIaHE
2012 2011
=F-=F =—F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Cost of inventories (see Note (i) FERA (R K G) 9,159,297 8,258,507
Operating lease charges EHERY ¢
— properties — 6,538 4,496
— vessels — &M 181,116 353,059
Depreciation for the property, M - B NREETE
plant and equipment 187,120 88,887
Amortisation of lease prepayments THETE (I TR 3 140 140
Amortisation of coal mining rights T IR R A £ 51,847 1,047
Auditors’ remuneration Z AR &
— audit services — B RIS 3,681 5,260
— non-audit services —IEEERT 719 588
Other expenses HbA
— compensation on termination —RIFERIMEE
of contracts (see Note (ii)) (RLBREE (i) 77,836 -
— loss on disposal of property, —BEYX  BE
plant and equipment RAEEE 21,562 —
(i) Cost of inventories includes RMB265,889,000 (2011: (i) FERABFEEIRA - #7
RMB9,471,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation EREERIAENARE
and amortisation expenses, which amounts are also 265,889,000 ( = & — —
included in the respective total amounts disclosed F: AR¥9,471,0007T) -
separately above for each of these types of expenses. BHSBNEFAREZE

R RN EXEBREN
HHEAR SR

(i)  The Group paid compensation of RMB77,836,000 (iiy HERIRIEBEBERESR -
during the year to coal suppliers as a result of early AN ER B R R A 1) Bk A R S
termination of the relevant purchase contracts. > 58 A R % 77,836,000

=
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9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(@ Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of @ 4%

comprehensive income represents:

Current tax expense
— PRC Corporate Income Tax
— Overprovision of PRC Corporate
Income Tax in prior years
(see Note (vi))

Deferred tax
— Origination and reversal of
temporary differences

9 FAEHHX

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands,
the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made for the subsidiaries located in Hong Kong as
these subsidiaries did not have assessable profits
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during the year
(2011: Nil).

No provision for income tax has been made for the
subsidiary located in Macau as the subsidiary did
not have assessable profits subject to income tax
in Macau during the year.

China Qinfa Group Limited FE=3%&EEER AT

(i)

)

AR ERANFTEH
SR
2012 2011
—E-C-F —F——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETFIT
BNEAFH B
- RS R 221,746 142,794
- BEFEFRHCE
FRfS 5 A RE 4
(RBREE (vi)) (57,603) (48,015)
RIEFIE
- B ERARIR
K EEE (45,025) 4,326
119,118 99,105
() WBEFESHEREBRL

BHENRAURAM - KE
Bl fld e
BRZESNEMMRE
i o

BRI R E BRI K E R R
RERRETAIRARE
78 M B O AE (] R A ) 7
(ZF——%F: &) ¥AX
SEYESFENSHIE
B -

A AL R P # B B 2 )
A LR (AR FE A R
P9 P 15 40 SE AR O A (AT R AL
A - AN S B I A AR
FIFT{S R SRR L B
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9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(@)

Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income represents: (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

The provision for the PRC corporate income tax
was based on the statutory rate of 25% of the
assessable profits of subsidiaries which carried on
businesses in the PRC.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of
the PRC, 5% withholding tax is levied on the
foreign investor in respect of dividend distributions
arising from a foreign investment enterprise’s
profits earned after 1 January 2008. As at 31
December 2012, temporary withholding tax
differences relating to the undistributed profits
of PRC subsidiaries amounted to approximately
RMB1,036,814,000 (2011: RMB738,108,000).
Deferred tax liabilities of RMB51,841,000 (2011:
RMB36,905,000) have not been recognised
in respect of the tax that would be payable on
the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
PRC subsidiaries and it has been determined that
it is probable that undistributed profits of these
PRC subsidiaries will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

Certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group made
income tax provisions of RMB57,603,000 for
potential tax exposures in respect of certain
income in previous years. Pursuant to a formal
consultation with the local tax authority in 2012,
it is understood such income are non-taxable
under the current local tax practice. As such,
the directors believe that such tax exposure has
become remote and therefore have decided to
release it to profit or loss in 2012.

9 FEBRX(E)

(@) mEEEEERANMEHRFE
Xt (&)

(V)

PRI RAER RN T
Bt EXB2MERRE
AR M) 2R TE K 25%
i

BB B ERERA
SNBIIR BB A INE RS
RZZEZENF—H—H%
SREN A 4 ) i 2 A A AR B
2R IR B R 5% B FE N
FeMZE—=—F+=H
=+—H BETEHE
A AE AL 9 K i ) B B
ENHEEENAARE
1,036,814,0007T(=ZF——
F: A R #738,108,000
TL) ° AR AR AR %
%R B BT /B R A B AR B
& WEREERIRARRK
1§ E 5K 5% %5 B b
RNAIMRD R A - Bk
I 4 5k 9 IR 7% SR BB i A
AR IB R RIR LT
1H B & A R % 51,841,000
TT(ZE——F : AR
36,905,0007T) °

AEBETHEMME AR
RiBEFEREE WA
BRAMNBERERREL
A R ¥57,603,0007T A
FIisBilgeE - RBER=-F
—ZF R BB PIE
HIEXFERERGH - 1B
WAKER B 7l E i 518
BIBERR - At - =
R BT ERE R
MR ZE——FREHE

B ES SR
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9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 9 FSBiEx(#E)

(@ Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of (a)
comprehensive income represents: (continued)

(vi)  (continued)

A subsidiary of the Group made provisions for
PRC corporate income tax of RMB48,015,000
in previous years. During the year ended 31
December 2011, the Group started to implement
a business plan to enhance the subsidiary’s
operations and the directors believed that the
likelihood of utilization of this PRC corporate
income tax provision had become remote and
therefore had decided to release it to profit or loss
in 2011.

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b)
accounting profit at applicable tax rate:

Profit before tax FrE A A

Notional tax on profit before tax, FREATEAERN
calculated at the applicable tax rate  BR#¢ Al M) B IR

Tax effect of non-taxable income BERTIRAZ TG 2

Tax effect of unused tax losses not ~ KRIERZ KB EEE 2
recognised (see Note 19(b)) FRis s 2 (2B M5 19(0)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1~ AJFIEF X2 2 Fi 755 52 28

Overprovision of PRC corporate BEFERBIRESEH
income tax in prior years FRRE
Actual income tax expense BEREHRAZ

China Qinfa Group Limited FE=3%&EEER AT

ReEEmKER AN TEHFE
Xt (&)

) (&)

AEE—FHHRBRAR
BAFERFRHEEMR
SRIELBEBEAR
48,015,000 ¢ ° REZE =
T——F+-A=+—H
IHFE - AEERRER
¥R EIAREN B AR
e AESERBBA%
EHhEPEMEHRED
AJEEEE &M - MERTE
BHERNE _—_T——%18

S o

BX

BERARERFE ZERAX
K&sHaM Bk :

2012 2011
=F-=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTTT

452,268 697,137
107,983 149,803
(8,388) (35,555)
33,232 20,695
43,894 12,177
(57,603) (48,015)
119,118 99,105
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10 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of directors’ remuneration are as follows:

Name of directors ESpE

Executive directors HTES

Mr. Xu Jihua (‘Mr. Xu”) BREELRE(HREED
Ms. Wang Jianfei TRl L

Ms. Liu Xiaomei BBzt t

Mr. Weng Li § UkHE

Independent non-executive BV FHTES

directors
Mr. Huang Guosheng HEBLE
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen )i
Mr. Qian Pingfan EFNEE
(see note below) (2B )

Directors’
fee
E=ne
RMB’000

Salaries,
allowances

10

Contri-

and butions to

benefits retirement

in kind

benefit

#4+ schemes

RER
BNEN
RMB’000

BIEN
EIE U2
RMB’000

ARBTT ARMTR ARBTR

EE=ME
EEME 2FFBOT ¢
Share-
based
Discre- payment 2012
tionary DYl Total
bonuses Sub-total AEHE —F-—F
Higia Mt 2R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR

582 1,089 8 1,430 3,109 - 3,109
582 712 3 1,430 2,727 - 2,727
211 174 3 - 454 30 484
429 508 3 915 1,855 - 1,855
286 - - - 286 - 286
289 = = = 289 = 289
2,445 2,483 17 3,775 8,720 30 8,750
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10 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10 E=M< (&)
Salaries,
allowances Contri-
and  butions to Share-
benefits  retirement based
in kind benefit Discre- payment 2011
Directors’ & schemes tionary PARR {7 Total

fee  2BER  R{EN  bonuses Sub-total  AER —F——4F
EZie EWER HEER BERA Nt ZE wt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Name of directors EENF ARETT ARETT ARETT AREBTL ARETT ARETT ARETT
Executive directors HITES

Mr. Xu Jihua (“Mr. Xu”) REELE(R%EE]) = 1,856 7 1,794 3,657 - 3657
Ms. Wang Jianfei TR L - 1,416 4 1,794 3214 - 3214
Ms. Liu Xiaomel BlEEtg L - 461 4 - 465 115 580
Mr. Weng Li g u4 - 102 3 1430 2459 - 2459

Independent non-executive BuFH{TES

directors
Mr. Huang Guosheng HEBLE 286 - - - 286 - 286
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 2R E 275 - - - 275 - 275
Mr. Qian Pingfan B %

(see note below) (2R HEE) - - - - - - =

561 4,759 18 5,018 10,356 115 10,471

Mr. Qian Pingfan was appointed as an independent non- BENEER=ZZE—ZTFNLA=1+H
executive director of the Company on 20 September 2010 EZTARNRAR 2B IERITES
and resigned on 22 January 2013. He agreed to waive any R-E—=F—A-+_H&E- &
directors’ fee throughout the term of his appointment. REREEZREETHANZEMAEZEEE
There were no amounts paid during the year (2011: Nil) to the FN - ARRWEMES (T ERE
directors in connection with their retirement from employment AREEEZRINA B2 FRIBSAERN
with the Group, or inducement to join. BEE(ZT——F: 8|
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11 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 11 BEFMAL

FR - ARBRERSHFMIALE
BRARARZ=ZRER(ZF——%F:
=H) HFEMRUALEDTZES - @\
AEBESKSHFMA LN ZHE

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
include three directors of the Company (2011: three), whose
remuneration are reflected in the analysis presented above.
Details of remuneration paid to the remaining highest paid

individuals of the Group are as follows: BT
2012 2011
—F--F —T—f
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Salaries, allowances and e - EEh
benefits in kind REDET 2,093 1,615
Contributions to retirement RORBFIET IR
benefit schemes 19 10
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 2,726 1,828
Share-based payment LARRAD R BERE 2 1F 5Kk 1,806 199
6,644 3,652

The emoluments of the two (2011: two) individuals with the

ME(ZT——F : BB)RSHMA

highest emoluments are within the following bands: TZHMAT
2012 2011
—E-C—F —F——%F
Number of Number of
HKD individuals individuals
BT A AEK
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 - 2

2,500,001 - 3,000,000
3,000,001 - 3,500,000
3,500,001 - 4,000,000
4,000,001 - 4,500,000

FR - YEFAL AR HMES T
ER R E QAN EBRKE /R Z50R
SHAEfRIINEREER) (T ——5F : |&) -

There were no amounts paid during the year (2011: Nil) to the
five highest paid employees in connection with their retirement
from employment with the Group, or inducement to join.
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12 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 12 XA REREFE AEGRER
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of AARERFE ABIGERE & EiE
the Company includes a loss of RMB16,229,000 (2011: loss ERARRMBHREREEZEEBAR
of RMB10,309,000) which has been dealt with in the financial #16,229,000 L (ZZE——4F : Fig8
statements of the Company. AR #10,309,0007L) °
13 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 13 Hti2EEA
Tax effects relating to each component of other A 2E AR F BRI BB
comprehensive income: &
2012 2011
Z8-CF T—F
Tax Tax
(expense)/ (expense)/
Before-  benefit  Net-of-  Before- benefit ~ Net-of-
tax Hg tax tax ] tax
amount (%i)/ amount amount (it)/  amount
BAI£H ks HEeE HEed K& HEeE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETL ARBTT ARETT

Foreign currency translation differences BN EE 2 SN
for foreign operations BEEE (565) - (565)  (45,736) - (45,73p)
Other comprehensive income Hit2ERA (565) - (565)  (45,736) - (45736
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14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@)

Basic earnings per share

14 SREFN

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based

on the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB257,748,000 (2011:
RMB570,470,000) and the weighted average number of
2,075,120,000 (2011: 2,075,104,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Ordinary shares issued at 1 January
Effect of share option exercised
(see Note 32(b)(vi))
Effect of capitalisation issue
(see Note 32(b)(vii))

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares at 31 December

R—HA—RETEER
IEERENTE
(RHFE32(0)(vi ))
B EBITHRE
( 5B £ 32(0)(vii))
B+=—A=+—H
T3 AR hndE 198K

(@ EREXEN

FESRERBFTIAFAR
L\m%éﬁﬂvﬁ}\ﬁéfa@ﬂ/\ﬁ
#257,748,0007L( = & — —
F: A K %570,470,0007C )
KB ETE AR A hnAE 398K
2,075,120,000 g (=T ——4F :
2,075,104,000 1% ) &% - 3
STEIT

EIERAINEE IR
2012 2011
—B—C=F —B——F
Number of Number of
shares shares
REE Rin& B

2,075,120,000 1,037,500,000

- 44,000

- 1,087,560,000

2,075,120,000 2,075,104,000
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14 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 14 BREFE)
(b) Diluted earnings per share b) EREERF
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based i 8 E &R B E AR A
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders A ARGEENARE
of the Company of RMB257,748,000 (2011: 257,748,000 ( =& — — & :
RMB570,470,000) and the weighted average number of AR #570,470,0007T) k&8
2,075,709,000 (2011: 2,080,233,000) ordinary shares & hn#E 5% 2,075,709,000 A%
(diluted). (ZZ——%F : 2,080,233,000

B (BE#EE)FHE -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) HE—_E——F+-_A=1+—
for the year ended 31 December 2012 is calculated as HIEFE 2 @R METFHE
follows: (BEEE)TEWNT :
2012 2011
—B-=F 2
Number of Number of
shares shares
R EE M2 E

Weighted average number of ordinary W+—-—A=+—HZ

shares at 31 December ERBNEF 192 2,075,120,000 2,075,104,000
Effect of perpetual subordinated KA IR R AT HRRR 75 5

convertible securities (see Note 32(c)) V52 (R MIFE32(c)) 323,000 -
Effect of deemed issue of Pre-IPO BIEE IR AFEE B AR

share options (see Note 28(a)(ii)) BT R E (5T 5 28(a)(ii)) 266,000 5,129,000
Weighted average number of ordinary R+ A=+—HzE@k

shares at 31 December (diluted) MEFEE (BEEE) 2,075,709,000 2,080,233,000
The share options granted during the year ended 31 HE2_—_Z—_—_F£+ A
December 2012 were not included in the calculation of =t —HIEFERLANERE
diluted earnings per share because they are anti-dilutive. AEREENE  WMRETES

BEERAFRTETA
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y% BMERRZRE
The Group REE
Electronic
and other Assets
Plant and equipment Motor Mining under
buildings ~ Machinery 7% vehicles Vessels  structures ~construction Total

RERET B AR i Bk REREN  EREE it
RVBOD  RVBOO  RWBODD  RVBON  RWBOO  RWBO  RVBON  RWBOWD
ARBTT  ARMTL  ARRTL  ARRTR  ARMTR ARMTR  ARRTR ARRTR

Cost AR

At 1 January 2011 NF—E-A-H 53425 17490 3,861 24467 1,061,871 6,183 512817 1,680,114
Addtons HE 4360 31,213 1461 4443 - 71,798 753,043 866,308
Adising from busiess combnation - E¥EARFEE 03258 3286 15,357 75,001 - o628 788 17345t
Disoosas i3 - - - %) - - - %)
Transfers & 1,964 - - - 447,449 0,118 (689,531) -
Exchange difirence EXZE - - - - (25,299 - (12818 (38,117
At 31 December 2011 RF-—F+2f=1-B DT U 069 108612 148400 1084383 9149 424440
Addtons HE 4583 4130 7,26 17310 18371 28 884,260 976,138
Transferred fiom Well Deep Limited #25 Wel Deep Limited - - - - 1B4T% - - 1847%
Tranferred toWel Degp Limied & Wel Deep Limied - - - - (268,147) - - (268,147)
Disposals it - - - - (14899 - - (148969
Exchange difirence EiZE - - - - (1,229 - (266) (1.491)
At 31 December 2012 3 gl o 267,590 421,489 21915 12092 1208850 1084601 179423 4986790
Accumulated depreciation ~ Ei#E

At 1 January 2011 H=E—5-f-H (0214 (3909 2469) (18077 10211 - - (2881
Charge for the year EpfE @13 474 (694 {131 (74860 (154 - (68,887
Witen back on cisposals HERE - - - 284 - - - 24
Exchange diference EiER - - - - 7,163 - - 7,163
At 31 December 2011 A-E-—#+-A=1-A (11.927) (8,644) 3,362) (16,924) (21 914) (1542) = (320313)
Charge for e year EpfE (1562 (55369 Bos) (155 @41 (1278 - (8
Transferred toWel Degp Limited A Well Deep Limited = = = = 8,722 = = 8,722
Witten back on isposals HERD - - - - 97,768 - - 97768
Exchange diference EiZE - - - - (18] - - (135)
At 31 December 2012 R-E-—&+ZR=1-A 21549 (64,009) 7,049 (2449 (178,699 (14329 - (340
Carrying amounts il

At 31 December 2011 RZE-—ETZA=1-R 251,080 368,715 17,307 8,008 1206107 1082841 949 344
At 31 December 2012 R-B-—f12f=1-A U000 87480 20866 88473 1000157 1070212 1795428 4G62TH2
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15

16

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15 Y% MERRE(E)
The Group was in the process of applying for the title AEBEFRERZER - ——F+=
certificates for certain items of plant and building with an A=t —BEERB2EAARK
aggregate carrying amounts of RMB43,927,000 as at 31 43,927,000 (= E——F : ARK
December 2012 (2011: RMB45,910,000) which related to the 45,910,0007T) 2 & THE RIEFIHE
newly acquired properties from the business combination in BHEiERE . NE_F——F%5%
2011. The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the AHEENTINEYXERE o ~AT
Group is entitled to lawfully and validly occupy or use the above EEDAE AEEBAESERERL
mentioned properties. B EA i o
On 2 November 2012, the Group and Well Deep Limited, R-—E——+—F—F . AEEE
a transportation company, entered into an asset swap Well Deep Limited (— @& A ]) 5T
agreement whereby the Group transferred a vessel with TEEESRIGSE B AEEE—
carrying amount of RMB182,425,000 to Well Deep Limited, in B BE E (A 5 AR HE 182,425,000 7T 7
return for a vessel with carrying amount of RMB184,796,000. R85 T Well Deep Limited + FBIA
The difference between the carrying amount of the vessels A — S BE LS A R #5184.796.000
exchanged of RMB2,371,000 was paid in cash by the Group. T o AEE RS T AR
The carrying amounts of the vessels in exchange approximate (SRS TE{E B 258 A R 2 371 000
respective fair values at the date of the exchange. TT o IR B E AR SR A
RXME 2 AAEIRE ©
COAL MINING RIGHTS 16 HIRITEERE
The Group AEE
RMB’000

ARBTIT
Cost RS
At 1 January 2011 R-_ZT—%—H—H 210,659
Additions NE 5,000
Additions through business combination — BBEEAE FIAE 4,243,834
At 31 December 2011 R=_Z——F%+-A=+—H 4,459,493
Additions (see Note (i) wE (M i) 73,015
At 31 December 2012 RZF-—ZF+-A=1—H 4,532,508
Accumulated amortisation 25T
At 1 January 2011 R-_T—%—H—H -
Charge for the year F N (1,047)
At 31 December 2011 R-_TB—%+-_A=+—H (1,047)
Charge for the year F N (51,847)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=-HA=+—H (62,894)
Carrying amounts BREE
At 31 December 2011 RZB—F+-A=+—8H 4,458,446
At 31 December 2012 R_ZE——F+_HA=+—H 4,479,614
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16 COAL MINING RIGHTS (continued)

)

(i)

The balances represent coal mining rights of Shanxi Hun
Yuan Ruifeng Coal Co., Ltd. (“Ruifeng Coal”) and Shanxi
Huameiao Energy Group Co., Ltd. (“Huameiao Energy”).
The amortisation of the coal mining rights is based on
the units-of-production method, utilising only proved and
probable coal reserves in the depletion base.

During the six months ended 30 June 2012, Ruifeng
Coal received a payment notice issued by the local
government for the coal mining rights. The directors
considered that the economy value and normal
operation of Ruifeng Coal would not be affected
due to the additional payment. As a result, the total
estimated additional payment of coal mining rights of
RMB93,015,000 was recognised as expenses in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the six months ended 30 June 2012.

In September 2012, Ruifeng Coal entered into an
agreement with the local government agreeing to an
additional payment of RMB73,015,000 for the coal
mining rights of Ruifeng Coal (“the additional payments”),
and clarified with the local government that without
the timely payment of this additional amount, the coal
mining rights of Ruifeng Coal would be revoked. The
local government also committed that the mining area
covered under the coal mining rights of Ruifeng Coal
would be extended if the additional payments are paid
on time. As a result, the directors considered that the
additional payments for the coal mining rights of Ruifeng
Coal should be capitalised as part of the cost of coal
mining rights in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2012.

16 HRFEERE(Z)

U)

(i)

HEREUAERRAREZGR
BEERE(REKZE ] R
EXREREBARQB (N
KREEER ) MR R RTERE - K
RIRTRREEE A RA R
Bk fEE - ARREENAE
EBADAT A#H -

RNEBEE-—E——FA=+8
WEAREA - WmREEEER
IR 3t O o R A B I 9 5P 3K
BA--EBERAE  WmRAKED
KEEERERSLKEIEREE
IMIRMZ B2 - Bt - K
IREEE R ET R IMI AR REA
R#93,015,000tREE -
——FANA=tHLEAEAZ
REEARERAERBFRY °

RZZE—ZFNA - WmEKEE
BE BTG RER
ity [ 6 35 1 R SR B A RE OMT K
A K ¥73,015,0007c ([ 28 sh
ER]) - 3 ERE i B T e AR AL
B AR RR X ZEREINK
18 - I [ 5 9 B IR BRI A
WEUH o & H BT IR« i
BRI EIMT R T B 2
B R R P 7B R AE R K 4
AR o B - B R SR
RTINS RIBEE AR
IRERERER — B KAERZ
TE——F+-_A=+—HzZ#&
BRI TANE R -
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17 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 17 HEBEGRE
The Group EE
Sea Land
use rights use rights Total
S A T fE FoH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT ARETT
Cost R
At 1 January 2011 RZZ——%—A—H 45,971 6,998 52,969
Additions RE = 77,984 77,984
At 31 December 2011 R_F——F+-A=1—H 45,971 84,982 130,953
Additions NE - - -
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-A=1—H 45,971 84,982 130,953

Accumulated amortisation EGE £

At 1 January 2011 R=E——%—A—H - (1,085) (1,085)
Charge for the year FREH - (140) (140)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+-A=1—H - (1,225) (1,225)
Charge for the year FREH - (140) (140)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-A=+—H - (1,365) (1,365)
Carrying amounts HREE

At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+-A=1—H 45,971 83,757 129,728
At 31 December 2012 RZZB——F+-A=t—-H 45,971 83,617 129,588
Lease prepayments represent cost of sea use rights and land MEENFIBERE L AHAAEH
use rights, both with a lease period of 50 years at the date of 155 50 F B985 150 5 FA 4 R b 55 AR
grant. B o
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18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18 REEQARZRE
The Group EE
2012 2011
=F-=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AR¥ETT

Listed investments: EmRE
Listed shares, at cost EmG - BRAME 49,947 48,207
Share of losses FEfLEs1E (8,988) 6,671)
Exchange differences MEH =5 (3,311) (3,228)
37,648 38,308
Unlisted investments: JELETIRE :
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR - HAKANME 19,677 =
Share of profits iyl 160 =
19,837 -
57,485 38,308
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18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18 REEQT2RE(E)
The Group (continued) rEE (&)
The following list contains the particulars of associates, which TRENEEZEAEEEEREE
principally affected the results or assets of the Group: o) l/NEI =

Proportion of ownership interest

ERRERERL
Place of Group’s Held by Held by
establishment/ Listed/unlisted effective the a
incorporation company interest Company subsidiary

Name of associate R/ s tw/ AEH AT MEB/AR Principal activities

BENE A FRL 3t 2k FLEHAT BRER 58 ST TEEY

Tiaro Coal Limited Australia Listed 19.88% = 19.88%  Coal exploration,
(“Tiaro Coal”) BN company evaluation and
(see Note () iG] development

Tiaro Coal Limited REEREIER
([Tiaro Coall) B GE
(2BARTEE ()

Tongmei Qinfa PRC Unlisted 49% — 49% Sales of coal
(Zhuhai) Holdings H company R SHE
Co., Ltd.(“Tongmei S A /NE]

Qinfa”) (see Note (ii)

IR () 1E8%
BRAR (R
RE])

(2 BABTEE (i)

Paragon Coal Pty Ltd. Australia Unlisted 16.67% = 16.67% Coal exploration
(“Paragon Coal") SN company and development
(see Note (i) FEEMAF] 7S

Paragon Coal Pty Ltd. K
([Paragon Coal |)

(2 BB EE (Gif))
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18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18 REZEQATZRE(E)

Summary financial information on associates:

BB E ARNMEEREE

Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Profit/(loss)
BE af Ex WA &R/ (ER)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT AR¥ETr AR®TR AR¥ETRT ARET:R

2012 “E-CF
100 percent 100% 955,344 (774,313) 181,031 1,165,047 (10,854)
Group’s effective interest AEENERER 419,115 (378,933) 40,182 570,873 (2,157)
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Loss
BE BE o WA B
RMB'OO0O ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR®ETT ARETT ARET:H

2011 —2——F
100 percent 100% 79,350 (650) 78,700 = (21,040)
Group’s effective interest AEBENERER 16,783 (137) 16,646 - (4,749)

(i)

In 2012, Tiaro Coal issued 12,463,180 new ordinary
shares, and the Group acquired 1,200,000 shares for
a total consideration of AUD264,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,740,000). As a result, the Group’s equity interest
in Tiaro Coal was diluted from 21.15% to 19.88% during
the year. The directors consider that the Group still has
significant influence on Tiaro Coal.

Tongmei Qinfa was established on 28 May 2012 by
Datong Coal International Trading Co., Ltd., a fellow
subsidiary of Datong Coal Mine Group, and Zhuhai
Qinfa Logistics Co., Ltd. with the total registered capital
of RMB100,000,000. Tongmei Qinfa has its registered
office and principal place of business in Zhuhai in
the PRC. The Group owned 49% equity interest.
Up to 31 December 2012, the Group paid capital of
RMB9,800,000 to Tongmei Qinfa.

MR =—ZF— — 4  Tiaro Coal %
712,463,180 A% ¥ L A% - M
7N £ [ LA 481X {8 264,000 2 7T
(R AR¥E 1,740,000 7T) K EE
1,200,000 &g 5 Bt - A&
@7 Tiaro Coal # & HIRZHE A F
NE21.15%#8519.88% - &

R A NEE ¥ Tiaro Coal /)
BEAFE -

RERZEHAARKEEERE S
EREFRAR(AREESR
WRZEKBAR) RKSFH
MRBRARIR-TE—=FHh
B+ N\BKY  BiFfMEAR
& A R #100,000,0007T ° [A
REENEAMBERRETES
EHMBEURPEKE A&
EHEBONEE - HEZZT
——F+-_A=+—H K&
ERREREINERARK
9,800,000 7T °
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18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18

(i)  On 22 November 2012, the Group entered into a share
subscription agreement with Paragon Coal, whereby
the Group acquired 50,000,000 shares of Paragon Coal
for a total consideration of AUD1,500,000 (equivalent to
RMB9,877,000). Paragon Coal is a proprietary limited
company and has an issued share of 300,000,000
ordinary shares, of which 66.67% are owned by Tiaro
Coal and 16.67% are owned by Paragon Holdings
Pte. Ltd.. The Group’s equity interest in Paragon Coal
was 16.67% as at 31 December 2012. The directors
consider that the Group has significant influence on
Paragon Coal.

19 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 19
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group

(@ Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents:

Balance at beginning of the year FAEEER
Provision for income tax for the year FAMERERE
(see Note 9(a)) (23 9@)

Overprovision of PRC corporate income  BEFEHBEIMEASH

tax in prior years (see Note 9(a)) FBRER A (2 BEE9(@)
Income tax paid during the year FASHIEH
Balance at the end of the year FIREERR

China Qinfa Group Limited FEI=3%&EER AT

RBENR 2 RE (&)

(i)

RZE——F+—-—A=Z+=
B - A& EEParagon Coals]
Y RMDABERE - KU - A%
& LA 48 X & 1,500,000 2 7T ( 17
# MW A R %9,877,000 7T ) I
## Paragon Coal Z 50,000,000
B% B% {5 - Paragon Coal & L
EERAR HEZHTRKRM
/300,000,000 i% & 3@ f% » H
7R 66.67% i Tiaro Coal %A
16.67% B Paragon Holdings
Pte. Ltd.#E B - A& E R =
E——_F#+-_A=+—HRN
Paragon Coal# & HR%#ELL I &
16.67% - EERE AEEH
Paragon Coal  EAF £ o

REFEMBRRRFRER

A%H

(@)

RERE BB OR K &9 BN BT 1R
? .

my

2012 2011
—g2-=f —T——F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

269,348 209,333
221,746 142,794
(57,603) (48,015)
(122,619) (34,764)
310,872 269,348
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19 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 19 RESHERARNAER (Z)
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets b) BEEMIBEE
Deferred tax assets recognised and the movements of N-E——F DEZANEE
the deferred tax assets during 2012: MEEENREED -
Credited
to consolidated
At1 statement At 31
January of comprehensive December
2012 income 2012
R=Z-=f HON ) R=B-ZF
—R—H 2EBAR +=A=+-8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR#TR ARBT T

Deferred tax assets arising from: E4£RT5I&EH

ELHEEE

Taxable losses carried forward R AT EE 2,130 37,732 39,862
Deferred tax assets recognised for ~ #Liz SR &AL

inventory provision RIEHIEERE - 3,492 3,492
Deferred tax assets recognised for ~ FLAZFAAEE R

maintenance and production KEEDHERN

funds not yet used RICHIERE - 10,689 10,689
Unrealised profit arising from HEEERANARRRS

intra-group transactions elimination 4 )R B3R5 A 1,945 385 2,330

4,075 52,298 56,373
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19 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

19 REEMBRRROFEHR (&)

(b) Deferred tax assets (continued) (o) BELEFRIBEE (&)

Deferred tax assets recognised and the movements of RZZTE——F ' EERAEIL

the deferred tax assets during 2011: MEEENRHEED :
Charged
to consolidated
At statement At 31
January  of comprehensive December
2011 income 2011
RZE——F BEEEE RZZ—F
—A—8 WAFHR +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETFT
Deferred tax assets arising from: E4£R 5B EH
BEEHEEE
Taxable losses carried forward RE ERDER 3,240 (1,110) 2,130
Unrealised profit arising from REHEENARRR 5
intra-group transactions elimination &4 )7 23 EF 5,408 (3,463) 1,945
8,648 (4,573) 4,075

BRI E AN AR R &
BT AR 17 1E 7] R R E9
ZREMIEEIEMNERDEF -
NS B ERIR F R 2(q) 35
VEETBRMZEEBARKE
215,708,000 ( =& — — & :
AR # 82,780,000 7T ) FERIE T
MIBEE °

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note
2(g), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of cumulative tax losses of RMB215,708,000
(2011: RMB82,780,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which these losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entities.
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19 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 19 RESHERARNAER (Z)
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

() Deferred tax liabilities ) EEMIBEER
Deferred tax liabilities recognised and the movements of N-E——F DEZANEE
the deferred tax liabilities during 2012: BB ELEES :
(Credited)/
charged
to consolidated
At1  statement of Arising At 31
January comprehensive from business December
2012 income combinations 2012
RZB-ZF RGRZERA BB RZT-=F

—A—8 RGA)/ Mk X¥att +—A=t+-8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE  ARMTR  ARBTR  AR%Txn

Deferred tax liabilities E£E T 5 EMEL
arising from: BIEEE:

Revaluation surplus EBAHEENSHRS
arising from business

combinations 1,140,396 (16,056) - 1,124,340
Depreciation allowances  tRiA1E#H & R 5 H)
in excess of the nERE
related depreciation
and amortisation 10,675 23,329 - 34,004
1,151,071 7,273 - 1,158,344
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19 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 19 RESHERARNAESR (Z)
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

() Deferred tax liabilities (continued) ) EEFIBAEGEE)
Deferred tax liabilities recognised and the movements of N-E——F  EERHNELE
the deferred tax liabilities during 2011: HIBAELHEES :
Credited
to consolidated
At statement of Arising At 31
January  comprehensive  from business December
2011 income  combinations 2011
RZZ——F PN EEXR RIT——F
—A—8 2ERAK %66 TZA=1—H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  AR%TR

Deferred tax liabilities EEB TIEEMEL

arising from: BEaE:
Revaluation surplus arising ERAHEENER
from business combinations 8% 48,992 (247) 1,091,651 1,140,396
Depreciation allowances hERERARBTE
in excess of the NEER 2R
related depreciation
and amortisation - - 10,675 10,675
48,992 (247) 1,102,326 1,151,071
20 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 RKHBARNERE
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBT T
Unlisted shares, at cost FE ERR - KA E 658,807 658,807
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20 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20 RHBARNERE(E)
As at 31 December 2012, the Company has direct and indirect RZZB——F+-_A=+—H ' &R
interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are private AN T B ARIHA B M EERE
companies. The particulars of these subsidiaries are set out @ FTEWB AR AIART - %
below: LHB A RIMFEIBHIINT
Proportion of ownership interest
HEERERERLA
Place of Group’s Held by Issued and
establishment/ effective the Held by a fully paid-up/
incorporation interest Company subsidiary registered capital

Name of company AL/ wE AEE HEQH H B BBTRHE Principal activities

NCIEE: FROL 3 2 B ER 58 2AEEE & TEEK

Qinfa Investment British Virgin 100% 100% = UsD4,801/ Investment
Limited (“Qinfa Islands USD50,000 holding
Investment”) B e 480137,/ BEER

RERERRAR 50,000% 7T
(IRERE D)

Bright Rock British Virgin 100% = 100% UsD1/ Investment
Holdings Limited Islands USD50,000 holding
(“Bright Rock”) KEELES 1%x/ BERR

Bright Rock 50,000 37T
Holdings Limited
(Bright Rock |)

Yuen Hoi Limited British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/ Investment
(“Yuen Hoi") Islands USD50,000 holding

REVER AR REEZHS 1%7w,/ REFER
(MREN) 50,000 37T

Hong Kong Qinfa British Virgin 100% = 100% uSD1/ Sales of coal
Coal Trading Islands USD50,000 BEREHE
Limited (“Qinfa EBRIHS 17T,/

Coal Trading”) 50,0007

Hong Kong Qinfa
Coal Trading
Limited
([Qinfa Coal
Trading])

Glory Explore British Virgin 100% - 100% USD1/ Investment
International Limited Islands USD50,000 holding
(“Glory Explore”) REBEZES 1%,/ BEER

Glory Explore 50,000 37T
International Limited
(['Glory Explore |)

New Far Trading British Virgin 100% - 100% USD100/ Investment
Limited Islands USD50,000 holding
(“New Far Trading”) EBREZEHE 100%7T,/ AR

New Far Trading 50,0007
Limited
(INew Far Trading )
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20 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20 HRHBARNKRE(Z)
Proportion of ownership interest
HEERERERLH
Place of Group’s Held by Issued and
establishment/ effective the Held by a fully paid-up/
incorporation interest Company subsidiary registered capital

Name of company AL EE AEE HBAEALQTH FA Ff B BRTREE

NCIEE: BB ERER B8 2AEEE &

More Star British Virgin 100% = 100% USD1/
Development Limited Islands USD50,000
(“More Star”) REBRLHS 1%L,/

More Star 50,000 37T
Development Limited
(TMore Star )

Billion Base British Virgin 100% = 100% uSD1/
Enterprises Limited Islands USD50,000
(“Bilion Base”) HBRELES 157,/

Billion Base 50,0007
Enterprises Limited
(' Billion Base |)

Hong Kong Qinfa Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD30,000,000/
Trading Limited BB HKD30,000,000
(“Qinfa Trading”) 30,000,000,

BERBEFGARAA 30,000,000 77T
(IREE5])

Hong Kong Qinfa Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD592,810,000/
International B HKD592,810,000
Trading Limited 592,810,000 77T,/
(“Qinfa International ™) 592,810,000/57C

ERREERESER
RAN([REER )

Lead Far Development Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKD10,000/
Limited BB HKD10,000
(“Lead Far”) 10,000557T,

NEREFERBRAF] 10,000 % 7T
(rh&l

World Victory (Asia) Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD10,000/
Limited BB HKD10,000
(“World Victory™) 10,0007t/

World Victory (Asia) 10,0007 7T
Limited
(TWorld Victory |)

World Success (Asia) Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD10,000/
Limited B HKD10,000
(“World Success”) 10,000 7T,

World Success (Asia) 10,0008 7T

Limited
(T'World Success |)
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Principal activities

EBER

Investment
holding
RERR

Investment
holding
HEZER

Sales of coal
and investment
holding

B HE &
HEZR

Sales of coal
BRI E

Investment
holding
REERR

Not yet
commenced
operation

ArE=E

Not yet
commenced
operation
RFIREE
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20 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20 RHBARKRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

HEEREERLA
Place of Group’s Held by Issued and
establishment/ effective the Held by a fully paid-up/
incorporation interest Company subsidiary registered capital

Name of company KL EE TEE HAAF i BRBTRHE  Principal activities

YNGR M3 — BERER 58 2AEEE & A TEEK

Gerrards Agents (Macao Macau 100% - 100% MOP100,000/ Not yet
Commercial Offshore) SBPY MOP100,000 commenced
Limited (“Gerrards 100,000/2F9 7T,/ operation
Agents”) 100,00032F7T REAIREE

Gerrards Agents
(Macao Commercial
Offshore) Limited
([Gerrards Agents |)

Qinhuangdao The PRC 100% - 100% RMB68,000,000/ Sales of coal
Development Zone + RMB68,000,000 BRI E
Qinfa Trading Co., Ltd.? AR 68,000,0007T,

(“Qinhuangdao AR ¥ 68,000,000 7T
Trading”)

BHHER AR

(REBES])

Datong Xiejiazhuang The PRC 100% = 100% RMB20,000,000/ Sales of coal
Jinfa Trading and H RMB20,000,000 IR EHE
Transportation AR 20,000,000 7T,/

Co., Ltd.0 AR # 20,000,000 7T
(“Datong Jinfa™)

ARBREE R ER
ABRATO
(TRRIEE])

Yangyuan Guotong The PRC 100% - 100% RMB10,000,000/ Sales of coal
Coal Trading and H RMB10,000,000 R HE
Transportation AR%10,000,0007T,

Co., Ltd.0 AE#10,000,000 7T
(“Yangyuan

Guotong”)

ARATO

(ME5 B )

Zhuhai Qinfa The PRC 100% - 100% RMB5,000,000/ Sales of coal
Trading Co., Ltd.? H RMB5,000,000 HEPSHE
(“Zhuhai Qinfa AR 5,000,000t/

Trading”) AR# 5,000,000 7T

WEREESARDF0
(MREREES])

Zhuhai Qinfa The PRC 100% - 100% HKD215,000,000/ Sales of coal
Logistics Co., Ltd. ® + HKD215,000,000 BERSHE
(“Qinfa Logistics”) 215,000,00087T,/

WEREMRARLDRO 215,000,000 % 75
(I=%wR))
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20

Name of company

DEEH

Zhuhai Qinfa Resource
Development
Co., Ltd.0
(“Zhuhai Resource™)
WERERRER
ARATO
(MRERER])

Baotou Danghui
Materials Trading
Co., Ltd. 0
(“Baotou Danghui”)

BETEBNEES
ABRAT0
(eEE=R])

Ordos Dongsheng
Yifa Materials
Co., Ltd.®
(“Ordos Yifa")
SBRZHTTRBEF
BEMEERARO
(TSP HnREE])

Ordos Jinfa Materials
Co., Ltd. "
(“Ordos Jinfa")

SRLHHEEME
ARAT0
(ISP ZHEE])

Shuozhou Guangfa
Energy Investment
Co., Ltd.?

(“Shuozhou Guangfa”)

PN T EERERIRE
ARATE0
(F¥AMEEE D)

Shenchi Shenda Energy
Investment Co., Ltd.?
(“Shenchi Shenda™)

BRI ER R E
ARARO
(MesthieE 1)

Place of

establishment/

incorporation
BRI
FR 371t 26

The PRC
E

The PRC
5

The PRC
F

The PRC
B

The PRC
A

The PRC
Eid

Proportion of ownership interest

HEERERERLH
Group’s Held by

effective the Heldbya
interest Company subsidiary
AEE @EAE GAHE
B ER B8 ATEE
100% - 100%
100% - 100%
100% = 100%
100% = 100%
100% - 100%
100% = 100%

RHBARNERE (&)
Issued and
fully paid-up/
registered capital
BRTRMEE,~ Principal activities
& TEER
RMB1,000,000/ Not yet
RMB1,000,000 commenced
AR¥ 1,000,000 7T, operation
AR #1,000,0007C KRB EE
RMB10,000,000/ Sales of coal
RMB10,000,000 HERIHE
AR 10,000,0007T,/
AR # 10,000,000 7T
RMB5,000,000/ Investment
RMB5,000,000 holding
AR 5,000,0007T,/ BB R
AR 5,000,0007T
RMB10,000,000/ Investment
RMB10,000,000 holding
AE#10,000,0007T, BEER
AR 10,000,000 7T
RMB10,000,000/ Investment
RMB10,000,000 holding
AE#10,000,0007T, BERR
AE# 10,000,000 7T
RMB10,000,000/ Investment
RMB10,000,000 holding
AR 10,000,0007T, BEER
AR ¥ 10,000,000 70
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20 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20 RHBARKRE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

HEERERERLG
Place of Group’s Held by Issued and
establishment/ effective the Held by a fully paid-up/
incorporation interest Company subsidiary registered capital

Name of company KL EE TEE HAAF i BRBTRHE  Principal activities

YNGR M3 — BERER 58 2AEEE & A TEEK

Shenchi Shenfa Coal The PRC 100% - 100% RMB30,700,000/ Not yet
Trading and F RMB30,700,000 commenced
Transportation AR ¥ 30,700,0007t, operation
Co., Ltd.0 AR 30,700,000 7T REAIREE
(“Shenchi Shenfa”)

At SR B ROE 8
BRARTO
(M5t ieEs 1)

Huairen Shunfa Materials The PRC 100% - 100% RMB20,000,000/ Not yet
Co.,Ltd.0 # RMB20,000,000 commenced
(“Huairen Shunfa”) AR¥ 20,000,0007t, operation

BCHIERYEE S AR 20,000,000 7T REAIREE
BRATO
(MEZligzs )

Ruifeng Coal The PRC 87.88% - 87.88% RMB17,000,000/ Coal mining

T [R5 0 # RMB17,000,000 and operation

AR 17,000,000t/ BR R &

AR 17,000,000 7T
Huameiao Energy ! The PRC 80% = 80% RMB300,000,000/ Coal mining
EXHEERO H RMB300,000,000 and operation
AR 300,000,000, xR R &

AR # 300,000,000 7T

Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu The PRC 80% - 80% RMB129,590,000/ Coal mining
District Huameiao F RMB129,590,000 and operation
Xingtao Coal Co.,Ltd. AR129,590,0007T, R RS E
(“Xingtao Coal”) AR #129,590,000 7T

PN T EmERR
HEEFRAF0
([ PR 1)

Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu The PRC 80% = 80% RMB32,000,000/ Coal mining
District Huameiao + RMB32,000,000 and operation
Fengxi Coal Co.,Ltd. 0 AR 32,000,000t/ BRI S &
("Fengxi Coal”) AR # 32,000,000 7T

LIPS B R EE R R
SRR ERR R0
(MSAaLERE])
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20

China Qinfa Group Limited FE=3&EEAER AT

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of company

DEEH

Shanxi Shuozhou Pinglu
District Huameiao
Chongsheng Coal
Co.,L td.?
(“Chongsheng Coal ")

PR T B R EER
SHEERRARO
(&R

Shanxi Ruifeng
Pharmaceutical
Co.,Ltd.?

(“Ruifeng Pharmacy ")

I Paih R S B RR A A0
=)

Super Grace
Enterprises Limited
(“Super Grace”)
Super Grace Enterprises
Limited ([ Super
Grace)

Oriental Wise
Group Limited
(“Oriental Wise")
Oriental Wise Group
Limited ([ Oriental
Wise])

Qinfa Chartering Limited
(“Qinfa Chartering”)

Qinfa Chartering Limited
(I'Qinfa Chartering |)

Qinfa Shipping Group
Limited (“Qinfa
Shipping Group”)

Qinfa Shipping Group
Limited ([ Qinfa
Shipping Group )

Hong Kong Qinfa
Shipping Limited
(“Qinfa Shipping”)

BEREMEARAA
(TREME])

Place of
establishment/
incorporation
BR SR AR
Jove: k]

The PRC
E

The PRC
i

British Virgin
Islands

RBERES

British Virgin
Islands
HBELES

British Virgin
Islands

S peed

British Virgin
Islands

KBRS

Hong Kong
Bt

20

Proportion of ownership interest

HEEEERL)
Group’s Held by

effective the Heldbya
interest Company subsidiary
AEE @AAE GAHE
B ER BE ATEE
80% - 80%
100% - 100%
100% = 100%
100% - 100%
100% = 100%
100% = 100%
100% - 100%

REBLARNRE ()

Issued and

fully paid-up/
registered capital
BRIRER
&

RMB107,290,000/
RMB107,290,000
AR#107,290,0007T,
AER#107,290,000 7T

RMB1,200,000/
RMB1,200,000
AR 1,200,000 7T,
AER#1,200,000 7T

USD50,000/
USD50,000
50,0007,
50,0003 7T

usD1/
USD50,000
1%L,/
50,000 7T

usD1/
USD50,000
1%,/
50,000 T

usD1/
USD50,000
1%,/
50,000 7T

HKD10,000/
HKD10,000
10,0007,/
10,000 7T

Principal activities

EBER

Coal mining
and operation
BRI ER I 98

Not yet
commenced
operation
RFIIREE

Goods transport
and logistics,
and charter hire
[EE L)L
AR EMIEE

Goods transport
and logistics,
and charter hire
P& R
AEREMAE

Goods transport
and logistics,
and charter hire
P i s R
AR EmMEE

Goods transport
and logistics,
and charter hire
[EEEE b
AREMIEE

Goods transport
and logistics,
and charter hire
iR E b
AREMAE
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INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

20 RBARNRKRE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

HERRERERLG
Place of Group’s Held by Issued and
establishment/ effective the Held by a fully paid-up/
incorporation interest Company subsidiary registered capital

Name of company R EE TEE HBHAAF H B BRBTRHE  Principal activities

NCIEE: XLt 26 B ER 58 2AEEE & A TEEHB

Liberal City Limited Hong Kong 100% - 100% HKD1,000/ Goods transport
(“Liberal”) B HKD1,000 and logistics,

Liberal City Limited 1,00087T,/ and charter hire
([Liberal]) 1,00077T & &8 X

AREMBE

Perpetual Goodluck Hong Kong 100% = 100% HKD1,000/ Goods transport
Limited (“Perpetual”) a5 HKD1,000 and logistics,

Perpetual Goodluck 1,000t/ and charter hire
Limited ([ Perpetual]) 1,000787C 7 an & 8 S P

AR EMEE

Harbour Well Limited British Virgin 100% - 100% USD1/ Goods transport
(“Harbour Well") Islands USD50,000 and logistics,

Harbour Well Limited REBRELHS 1%E7m/ and charter hire
([Harbour Well ]) 50,0003 7T 2 aniE 8 S R

AR EMHAE

Merit Sino British Virgin 100% = 100% uSD1/ Goods transport
International Limited Islands USD50,000 and logistics,
(“Merit Sino”) REBREIHS 1%E7m/ and charter hire

BEBRARLDA 50,0007 B LR
(ME=)) AR EMEE

Zhuhai Qinfa The PRC 100% - 100% RMB5,000,000/ Goods transport
Shipping Co., Ltd.? H RMB5,000,000 and logistics,
(“Zhuhai Qinfa AR¥ 5,000,000, and charter hire
Shipping”) AR¥ 5,000,000 7T B mmiEsR YR

WEREMBARAR0 AR EMHEE
(MR =REmME])

Zhuhai Qinfa The PRC 60% - 60% RMB344,319,040/ Terminal
Port Co., Ltd. @ # RMB519,000,000  under construction
(“Zhuhai Port”) AR 344,319,040 7T, e

WEREBEAR AT AR ¥ 519,000,000 7T
(B3]

(i)  These entities were established in the PRC as domestic i) ZEERARTPEKNAB AT °

companies.

(if) This entity was established in the PRC as a wholly foreign-
owned enterprise.

(i) This entity was established in the PRC as a sino-foreign

equity joint venture enterprise.

(i)

ERASNPERIMNINEEED

(iy ZERBSNPEKINFIIGED

ERBEREEEYRERARRN
T FER-

(iv) V)

Zhungeer Banner Qinfa Huazhun Logistics Co., Ltd. was
liquidated in 2012.
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21 INVENTORIES 21 FE
The Group EE
2012 2011
—E——F —T—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Finished goods BIPK o 291,188 93,535
Goods in transit HEEED 192,892 401,511
Fuel ey 22,039 9,794
506,119 504,840

R-ZEB——FE+-_A=+—HBFE%
&5 A R #13,968,000 7T I 1 B % &
BURK o A # IR FEE R BREERFHE
(ZE—F &\&)o

Provision for inventories amounted to RMB13,968,000 were
made against those finished goods with net realisable value lower
than carrying value as at 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil).

22 DERIVATIVES 22 fT4IR
The Group KEE
2012 2011
—E-C-f —F—F
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
gE =i BE =i
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR®TR ARETT AR%TR
Foreign exchange option ~ 4MNEHEI#EA %)
contracts (see Note (i) (2BAKTEE () - - 466 -
Interest rate swap FEBHEL
contracts (see Note (ii) (2 BRI (i) - - = (1,397
Foreign exchange forward ~ SMEZRHIA 4
contracts (see Note (i) (2B (i) - - - (323)
Coal trading put options R E S0h ik
(see Note (iv)) (2BKTEE (v) - - = (407)
- - 466 (2,127)

156
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22 DERIVATIVES (continued)

0

(i)

(i

(v)

Foreign exchange option contracts
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no outstanding

foreign exchange option contracts (2011: two).

The Group has recorded a realised gain of RMB14,655
in other income during the year ended 31 December
2012 (2011: RMB2,375,000).

Interest rate swap contracts

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no outstanding
interest rate swap contracts (2011: three).

The Group has recorded a realised gain of RMB847,510
in other income during the year ended 31 December
2012 (2011: loss of RMB918,000).

Foreign exchange forward contracts

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no outstanding
foreign exchange forward contracts (2011: three).

The Group has recorded a realised loss of
RMB1,222,966 in other expenses during the year ended
31 December 2012 (201 1: Nil).

Coal trading put options

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no outstanding
coal trading put options (2011: six).

22 f$TAETHA(E)

M

(i)

(iv)

SNERRRE A 4

RZE—=—F+=H=1+—8 -
SR BT A (T AR] 1 AR B AT O N
AN (ZZE——F : Wp) °

HE_=——F#+-_HA=+—
BIEFEAREEREMmKA
NEBHEZEH ks ARK
14,655 L (ZE——F : AR¥
2,375,0007C) °

M EF AL

W=B——F+=A=+—8
AR EBEEARTATIER
BH(=F——F =) -

REEREE_T—Z—F+=
A=+t—HLEFEREMK
AREFEEZFRKREARE
847,510 (=T ——% : E
AE#918,0007T) °

HNE IR BB 4
RZZE——F+=—A=+—H -
AN BB R 2 INE R

BR(CE——F: =fp) -

REBNBE-_ZE——5+=
A=+—BLFEEEMHE

TAEBEZEEEAREK
122296670 ( — T — —
) o

HIRE 5000 Bk

R-ZE——-F+ /A =+—
B AEESEEFAR TR K
W SR (=B —— 4

) e
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22 DERIVATIVES (continued) 22 fTAETIA(E)
(v) Coal trading put options (continued) (iv) HERE SRR (&)
The Group has recorded a realised gain of AREEBRHBE-_ES——F+=
RMB1,230,600 in other income during the year ended A=+-—BLE&FEEEMEK
31 December 2012 (2011: RMB843,000). ARBEBEEZRKRIARE

1,230,600 (=T ——4F: A
FR#843,0007T) °

23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLE 23 EWEZRIRERZE
All of the trade and bills receivable are expected to be FiE W E 5 R R K W R IR TR B
recovered within one year. The Group’s exposure to credit —FRUE - KEBFEUWE SRR
and currency risks related to trade and other receivables is FEMERGEE R EE K EEE
disclosed in Note 33. BRI FE B3 I EE ©
An ageing analysis of trade and bills receivable of the Group is AEEEKE FRA N EREE 2 R
as follows: BROTEAT ¢
The Group
REE
2012 2011
—EB——F —F—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Within 2 months —@AAR 3,577,099 1,339,647
Over 2 months but within 6 months —{E A BB N E A 29,500 1,378
Over 6 months but within 1 year NME A HBR R —F 96,638 =

3,703,237 1,341,025

REEZFEREENRER  EEAR
BENFRE  ARETERTEP
NF0E60KRMEEHR -

Credit terms granted to customers mainly range from O to
60 days depending on the customer’s relationship with the
Group, their creditworthiness and past settlement record.

FRiik B BB 5 R R B IR IR FERR
Z BREgt

The ageing is counted from the date when trade and bills
receivable are recognised.
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24 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24 FENFERHEAMEWFIE
The Group The Company
KEE UG
2012 2011 2012 2011
—g--F F—F =F-=F F-F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTT ARKTFR ARETT

Deposits and prepayments for BARE 2 e R
equity investments (see Note (i) TBITHIE (LB G) 345,989 303,221 - =
Other deposits and prepayments Hitize RIaMF0E
(see Note (i) (S BMIEE (i) 638,126 619,581 - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries PN B A RIFIA - - 1,016,198 1,054,276
Amounts due from non-controling ~ FEURGEERARR VA
shareholders 699,636 585,703 - -
Other non-trade receivables HitIEE 5 R IMEREH 76,023 1,777 = =
1,759,774 1,550,282 1,016,198 1,054,276
()  Deposits and prepayments for equity investments mainly () BAEREZERSREMNZIEE
represent prepaid consideration and deposits for coal ZHEEBERENEMNNRE KR
mine investments. calkd
(i)  Other deposits and prepayments mainly represent (i) HMZeRBAIRBEEEE
deposits and prepayments for coal business operation. IREBEBRIRE RIBNFIE -
25 PLEDGED DEPOSITS 25 BiEHEER
Bank deposits of RMB1,641,244,000 as at 31 December T+ A=+—8 " 8177
2012 (2011: RMB535,745,000) were pledged to banks to RAREEA,641,244,0000(=F——
secure certain of the Group’s credit facilities (see Note 27). & : AR¥535,745,0007T) B#EF T
RITERAEBE TEENER(Z
BRI EE27) °
26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26 BEEREBEESZEY
(@  Cash and cash equivalents comprise: @ RekReFEVMRIE:
The Group The Company
r5E ¥iUNC|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-Cf —T——F —B--F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ETT AR®T R ARETT
Cash at bank and in hand RIRFERE 1,190,541 592,027 76,785 624
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26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated

from operations:

Profit before taxation

Adjustment for:

Depreciation for property, plant and

equipment
Amortisation of coal mining rights
Amortisation of lease prepayments
Net finance costs
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Equity-settled share-based
payment expenses
Gain from deemed disposal of
interest in an associate
Bargain purchase gain
on business combination
Bargain purchase gain
on acquisition of an associate
Share of loss/(profit) of associate

Net gain on derivatives
Changes in working capital:
Change in inventories
Change in trade and

other receivables
Change in trade and

other payables

Cash (used in)/generated
from operation

China Qinfa Group Limited FEI=3%&EER AT

BRI A

26

BN BRIAEL AR |

RIBITE
BR IR R P 55
T ETAN FRIE 3
BATERR AN FEE
HEME - BHE
KB ERE
i EE AR
RERRK
BIEHEREE AT
et o W
REEBEH
AN
LGN
BB AMES
DIEHE R T
BB Cafl)
@TEEI/E:H%T&%@E
LERLET
T*{bi"ﬁ
FEUE 5 BRAR S LA
JE s BR R
FEIN B SRR N E
e BRR &

RgE (FTA)BEE

HRE

BeRBESEEYW(E)
(o) BR¥H AN L E FHE LR
S ZHER
2012 2011
—E-—F —F——%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR®T AREFIT
452,268 697,137
15 187,120 88,887
16 51,847 1,047
17 140 140
8(a) 476,936 186,079
8(c) 21,562 -
8(b) 6,043 1,275
- (21,974)
- (28,057)
- (26,880)
18 2,157 (23,419)
22 (870) (8,764)
(1,279) 179,700
(2,741,834)  (1,404,915)
1,363,819 1,609,819
(182,091) 1,255,075
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27 LOANS AND BORROWINGS 27 EBEXRRESE

The Group
REE
2012 2011
—EB-—=F —E——fF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE ARET T ARET T
Current ENHER
Secured bank loans and bank BEBIRITER
advances MERITEAZR (i) 3,874,893 934,865
Unsecured bank loans and EIIRIRTTE R
bank advances KARITEAK (ii) 380,512 -
Current portion of non-current FEENERE HARTT
secured bank loans ERHENHAEE (i) 848,011 630,408
5,103,416 1,565,273
Non-current JEENHA
Secured bank loans BIEMIRITER (ii) 2,169,967 1,782,778
7,273,383 3,348,051

() Current bank loans and bank advances bear interest
at rates ranging from 1.21% to 8.00% (2011: 3.47% to
11.50%) per annum. Current secured bank loans and

bank advances were secured by the following assets:

BNERER 1T E R R ERIT R FIRN
F1.21%%E8.00%( — &T — —
& 3.47% % 11.50% ) KIFF| =R
R BNHEHERRITERK
FITRRTIAI T EEIE AL
piic

2012 2011

—B—=F —F——fF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREBT T

Property, plant and equipment Y%~ BE MR E 482,527 525,456
Inventories 7 283,760 425,968
Pledged deposits [EEERirER 1,247,064 202,750

RMB750,000,000 (2011: RMB100,000,000) of the
current secured bank loans and bank advances were
guaranteed by a related party (see Note 36(b)) in addition

to being pledged by the above assets.

BRE LM EEERIN ARK
750,000,00070 ( =& — — & :
A R #100,000,000 7T ) By B1 H]
BRIFRITERRIBITRRE
—HEAE R (2HM1E36(b)) #&
1R o
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27 LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued)

(i)

(i)

Unsecured bank loans and bank advances bear interest
at rates ranging from 1.21% to 7.30% per annum as at
31 December 2012 (31 December 2011: Nil).

Non-current secured bank loans as at 31 December
2012 were pledged by pledged deposits of
RMB15,085,000 (2011: Nil), property, plant and
equipment with carrying amounts of RMB1,190,822,000
(2011: RMB1,067,451,000), coal mining rights with
carrying amounts of RMB4,196,958,000 (2011:
RMBS3,282,384,000), the Group’s equity interest in
Huameiao Energy, Xingtao Coal, Fengxi Coal and
Chongsheng Coal, and guaranteed by a related party
(see Note 36(b)) and a subsidiary owned by Huiyong
Jinyuan, one of the non-controlling shareholders of
Huameiao Energy.

Non-current secured bank loans as at 31 December
2012 bear the following interest rates:

27 BRRES(E)

(i)

(i)

AA —
-

R—E——F+=-AF=+—
A ERBRTERKRTE
FIENTF1.21%£27.30% (=F
——F+-A=+—08: 8K
FREEE -

R—_TE——F+=-AF=+—
H - EENEBEERRITERD
LA A R #15,085,0000( = &
——F: E)NDERFR
BRE{E A A R #1,190,822,000
T(ZZTE——F: AR
1,067,451,0007C ) H) ¥ % -
HWE- REREOEARE
4,196,958,000 7 (ZF——4F :
A R #3,282,384,000 7T ) K& %
FREARAEBNEXRE
R B OEREERE
FREENRAEREER - I
R EAE T (2BMEE386(b)) &k —
Rk &R (EXRAERIEE
BRIRR 2 —) BB 2 M B A Al
1R e

T——F+-A=+—H - FEH

HIE AR IR 17 & 9 1 T 5 R R &t

=N

o
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27 LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued) 27 ERREE(E)
(i) (continued) (i) (&)
2012 2011
=F-=F S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETT
(1) LIBOR plus 1% (1)  BERITAFEFEM1% - 24,962
) 10% discount on the per @ HBEARBETHR=FH
annum interest rate quoted BEFHETIZ10%
by the People’s Bank of (TR ARRT
China in respect of three-year = FHEENE])
borrowings (“3-year interest
rate of PBOC") - 145,000
@) 30% premium on the per @) HBEARBETAHRAFH
annum interest rate quoted EEFFE )F30%
by the People” s Bank of (THEARRT
China in respect of five-year FEMEEFE])
borrowings (“5-year interest
rate of PBOC") 500,000 700,000
(4)  USDbest lending rate plus 1.5%  (4) Er&EREEFIEM1.5% 180,425 204,464
(5)  20% premium on the 6 HEARRTAFHEE
5-year interest rate of PBOC FZ= £)%20% 810,000 500,000
6) 5% premium on the per annum 6) HEAREITITIRER
interest rate quoted by the AFAEFFIELEF5%
People” s Bank of China with
terms longer than five years 474,700 98,760
(7)  5-year interest rate of PBOC 7 HEARRTRAFHEERX 430,000 540,000
8  15% premium on the 3-year @ AFEARRIT=FH
interest rate of PBOC BEFE FF15% 309,790 200,000
9  30% premium on the 3-year © HEARRIT=FH
interest rate of PBOC fEERE )% 30% 33,333 -
(10)  Fixed rate: 8.32% (10) [ES :8.32% 270,000 -
(11) 3% per annum over higher of (11) 1EABRBRTRAZERS
1 month HIBOR and the REBERITESKAR
Hang Seng Bank' s ME PR SE INEE3%
cost of funds 9,730 -

3,017,978 2,413,186
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27 LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued) 27 BRREE(E)
The Group’s non-current bank loans were repayable as AEB R IERNHARITE UL T 71 2R
follows: s
2012 2011
=F-=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTTT

Within 1 year —&FR 848,011 630,408
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F M HETBBMRF 722,496 590,446
Over 2 years but within 5 years FIE LA EENBBRF 894,327 991,338
Over 5 years AELAE 553,144 200,994

2,169,967 1,782,778

3,017,978 2,413,186

28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28 RERGEEURGHAEBRNLTR
(@  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme @ BERARBEESAERETS
Pursuant to the sole shareholder’s written resolutions BEBEE-—RER-_ZZZTNAFAS
passed on 12 June 2009, the Company adopted a ATZHBRNEEARSE
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Option”) ARARIRMBE R AAZEERE
whereby an executive director and 25 employees of the RerEsral (B AR EAE
Group were granted the rights to subscribe for shares of feiestEl ) - Btk - ANEEAF
the Company. HITEERBHREEER TR
BB A AR FORER -
The total number of shares which may be issued upon B B IR A R3S R AR A %
the exercise of all options granted under the Pre-IPO i A B IR i R BT (R R T
Option is 8,400,000 shares which were granted on 12 17 #Y AR 19 42 881 /48,400,000
June 2009 with the subscription price of HKD2.52 per g RER=ZZFZTNLF A
share. TZHEE REERBR
2.5287T °

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Option has BOREBEENARAESAER
a vesting period of one to three years commencing EmEERERESER R —
from the Listing Date and the options are exercisable E=F T H BB KB
for a period of 10 years. The Company has no legal or AR+ FHBERITE AR F
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the option WHEEAEKHEESF  URE
in cash. B SR (BT HE AR o
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28 HESAHUIROGAEBRNNTR
(continued) (#&)
(@  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) @ BRXARZEEAHEKRETE
(&
()  The terms and conditions of the grants are as () EEBRENERRGE
follows: LU

Contractual life

Number of of options

options Vesting conditions BREN

BREHE SRR BHHIBR

Options granted to a director 600,000 30% on both of the first 10 years

—on 12 June 2009 and second anniversary of 104
B — =B the Listing Date, 40% on
—N=_ZEFEhE,B+=H the third anniversary of the
Listing Date

EHRBRE-—RAFR
FEZRFHAE30%
T EH#E
FE=IBFRA0%

Options granted to employees 7,800,000 30% on both of the first 10 years

—on 12 June 2009 and second anniversary of 104F
¥ 2 8 /B AL the Listing Date, 40% on
—RN=ZBFENENA+H the third anniversary of the
Listing Date

tHBEHRE-BFER
£ IRAFH/I0% -
Nl Ep il 3
F=EFRA0%

Total share options 8,400,000
RS
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28 ZESEHEUIROAEBRONMNTR
(continued) (#&)
(@  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) @ BRARAZEEAHERETE
(&)
(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices iy BXRAFBERERED
of Pre-IPO Share Options are as follows: B R nEFHTEED
T
2012 2011
—%-=F —F——F
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
e BREHE 1IfEE EREEE
HKD ’000 shares HKD ‘000 shares
BT T BT any)
Outstanding at the EMEATHE
beginning of the year 1.26 15,200 2.52 8,000
Forfeited during the year ALFIBATAIR
before bonus issue ERRUK 1.26 - 2.52 140
Exercised during the year ~ FR{7{E 1.26 - 2.52 60
Adjustment arising from RAL N EATM
bonus issue fEL A RE - - = 7,800
Forfeited during the year ALFEATIRR
after bonus issue FRRI 1.26 - 1.26 400
Outstanding at the end ERRARTTR
of the year 1.26 15,200 1.26 15,200
Exercisable at the end FERATITME
of the year 1.26 15,200 1.26 9,120
During the year 2012, no share option (2011: RZE——F  HERE
60,000) under the Pre-IPO Option was exercised. EVWNGE S -8

AT 2 A9 E T BB AR R A 1T
#(=ZF——4% : 60,000

) e
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(continued)

(@ Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

(i)

(i)

The number and weighted average exercise
prices of Pre-IPO share options are as follows:
(continued)

As a result of the bonus issue of one share for
every one existing share held by the shareholders
whose names are on the register of members on
10 October 2011 (see Note 32(b)(vii), the exercise
price of the Pre-IPO Share Options was adjusted
from HKD2.52 to HKD1.26, and the number of the
outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options was adjusted
from 7,800,000 to 15,600,000 thereupon.

The Pre-IPO Share Options outstanding at
31 December 2012 had a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 6.5 years (2011: 7.5
years).

Fair value of Pre-IPO share options and
assumptions

The fair value of service received in return for
Pre-IPO Share Options granted is measured
by reference to the fair value of Pre-IPO Share
Options granted. The estimate of the fair value of
the Pre-IPO Share Options granted is measured
based on the Binomial Model. The contractual life
of the Pre-IPO Share Options is used as an input
into this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the Binomial Model.

28 BEZGEURO/ERNMNR

(#&)

@ BRAFEEAREKESS

(&

(i)

(i)

EANGE =¥l T4
BB Rt TREN
T (&)

HRBER - ——F+
A+ B &7 E %A
BRREFEE -—KRRARK
MEE —RAKREITE
77 41 B ( 2 B3 BT 3£ 32(b)
(vii)) - BEIR#EITEEH
2.527% JT 78 B 71.26%
T M AT TR BB AR R X
B 1 7,800,0001) # &
15,600,000 17 e

—E -+ = A
+—H: ®WERITHE
BAXRAREE B
AR R NN IO FIER & 4V
HIR R6S5F (=T ——
F755F)

2%

BR AR SR B RERN
DAERER

REBERARAEBEENBEK
MR EE R A A E
T2 REERHERAF
HERBRENA R ER
B -EREBRAFEE
AR B AT A R ERE
“HEARBBEELTE -
EVANGE =0 T 4o
B KR T AE A AT A HY
SHEER - RRITTERTR
HE A ZIRAERR -
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28 RREGSEEUROAEERMNFLR
(continued) (#&)
(@  Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) @ HBHRAFRESRERER S
(&)
(i)  Fair value of Pre-IPO share options and @iy BHXRAFBERERED
TN

assumptions (continued) NAEMBRR (&)

Granted in June 2009

—EENFAAERY
Fair value at grant date REHBEPOARE HKD7,650,000 7 7T
Share price before bonus issue AAREEATRIAR(E HKD2.52 %87
Share price after bonus issue AR EEATIRIR(E HKD1.26 7T
Exercise price before bonus issue AR EEATRIFTEE HKD2.52 78 7T
Exercise price after bonus issue AAREETIRITEE HKD1.26 /87T
Expected volatility TEHR IR 56%
Expected option life TE HARE AR RE HARR 10 years &
Expected dividend yield rate TEHRRR B e 1.50%
Risk-free interest rate feE B i A6 2 3.029%
The expected volatility and expected dividend T8 HRR B K 78 BA AR B M e
yield rate are based on the average volatilities EBERNELITE TR
and dividend vield rates in the similar industry. B R B M E R EITE
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could = REHERREDT
materially affect the fair value estimate. BAFERNREMET °
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
(continued)

(b)

Share Option Scheme

The Company has also adopted a Share Option Scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the sole
shareholder’s written resolutions passed on 12 June
2009.

The maximum number of shares that may be issued
upon exercise of all options which then has been granted
and have yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not, in the absence of the shareholders’
approval, in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares
in issue from time to time. Unless approved by the
shareholders, no option may be granted to any person
which if exercised in full would result in the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options already granted or to be granted to such
person (including exercised, cancelled, and outstanding
share option) in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such new grant exceeding 1% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of such new
grant.

28 BEZGEURO/ERNMNR

(#&)

(b)

Bt Sl

REE-BRRR_ZTHEFX
AT ZBEENEMRHE -
ARB RN —AE A ET &
(EhtEstEll) -

HITER BB R E S AR
AEREMBEREFEERE
B B R RTTER A A B RE
TR A LT R R A
2B EEDNSRRERAMERR
T ARTFEBBTIREITR
D BB HI30% ° ITEERZA
ITRHSHTFREBRER (2
BREITE - BUERARITERER
) HEBITESEERMN A
HBITABTET AIR12E
ARERERKER  MZA
TREZBEETSBRER G
EHZEBTRMAEE1% -
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(continued)

(o)  Share Option Scheme (continued)

An option under the Share Option Scheme may

be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as
determined by the board of directors of the Company,
which must not be more than 10 years from the date of

the grant.

()  The terms and conditions of the grants are as

follows:

Options granted to employees
—on 17 January 2012

X TR B ERE
—-RZT——F—A+tH

China Qinfa Group Limited FE=3%&EEER AT

Number of
options

BRERE

20,751,196

28 BEZGEUROR/ERNMTRK
(%)

b) FERERE(F)
3 P A P AR 1 i RO T 81 15X
RARBRESTEETWHEA

BERTTEE - MABHR AR
HEIEET TSHIB 105 -

)  BREBRER RN

s
Contractual life

of options

Vesting conditions BRRER

5 B BHHAR

40% on the grant date, 10 years
30% on both of the first and 104

second anniversary of the
grant date
REE BEIR40% - I
HRBRE-REZRF
/5 30%
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 28 REZEFEURGAERHLR
(continued) (#&)
(b)  Share Option Scheme (continued) b) FEMRRERTEI(E)
(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices (iy FEAREREE KNk
of share options are as follows: FTEEWT -
2012
—E—_—fF

Exercise Number of
price options
TEE BIREHE
HKD ’000 shares

BT T4
Outstanding at the FHHARITEE
beginning of the year - -
Granted during the year FAFRE 1.50 20,751
Forfeited during the year F PRI 1.50 1,853
Exercised during the year FRTTHE - -
Outstanding at the end FE B ARITE
of the year 1.50 18,898
Exercisable at the end FERA] AT
of the year 1.50 7,559
During the year 2012, no share option under the RZTE——5F  HMERE
Share Option was exercised. R AR iRt B A (E AR AR e
WATIE
The share options outstanding at 31 December RZZE—-—Z—F+=A
2012 had a weighted average remaining =+ —BERITENER
contractual life of 9 years. T 2 INFE I FIgR & 49 B
PRAIF -
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(continued)

(o)  Share Option Scheme (continued)

(i)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of service received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the
fair value of share options granted. The estimate
of the fair value of the share options granted is
measured based on the Binomial Lattice Model.
The contractual life of the share options is used
as an input into this model. Expectations of early
exercise are incorporated into the Binomial Lattice
Model.

Fair value at grant date REFE BN R AE
Share price fxE

Exercise price 1IE(E

Expected volatility TE B &

Expected option life T B A s e HARR
Expected dividend yield rate TEHARR B e

Risk-free interest rate 42 B e 1) =<

The expected volatility is based on the historical
volatility of three comparable companies. The
expected dividend yield rate is based on the
average dividend of three comparable companies.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

China Qinfa Group Limited FE=3%&EEER AT

28 BEZGEUROR/ERNMTRK

(%)

(b) PERAEREI ()

(i)

BREN A AERBRR

15 8 s v T s R e BR 7%
NRE - H2REERY
BRENAAENE-B
RhBREET AR ER
BEoAAMEEL AR
AHE - BRENS R
DABAMANEER
£t RRITEMNBHE #
AZIEAFEER -

Granted in
January 2012
—E-——F—HERH

HKD11,642,000 & Jt
HKD1.50 7% T
HKD1.50 % Jt

55.309%
10 years F
2.11%
1.507%

EHIRB I ER =HAI &
HEBRARNELKBE
H - RER RS R Ty E
R=FA &L B A RHF
BB - FEBER
REHEEATELAE

fhit o
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20 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLE 20 BNESESEENEE
Credit terms granted to the Group by its suppliers range from AEBHERR T AEENEEEN
0 to 30 days. An ageing analysis of trade and bills payable of TFOZEI0ANTE - AEEENEZ SR
the Group is as follows: AR ENEENRESITOT ¢
The Group
rEH
2012 2011
—B-—F -T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Within 1 month —EAR 2,682,899 1,125,185
Over 1 month but within 3 months — (&R A B BB =1EA 291,159 688,172
Over 3 months but within 6 months ={E A A 1B BE < E A 367,000 198,932
Over 6 months but within 1 year NME A HBR R —F 3,183 -
Over 1 year but within 2 years —F P HETBBMRE 9,553 -

3,353,794 2,012,289
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China Qinfa Group Limited FE=3%&EEER AT

30 OTHER PAYABLES 30 HtEMARIE
The Group The Company
rEEHE ¥ /N
2012 2011 2012 2011
=B-=F _T——F =B _—T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTrT AR¥®TR ARETET
Current ENEA
Other taxes payable H e B¢ 18 231,335 255,262 - -
Receipts in advance TEURIR 100,236 53,642 - -
Accrued expenses FERTFX 167,041 120,427 = =
Construction cost payables FESTIREERK AN 554,669 500,364 - -
Factoring payable (see Note ()  RIEZEFH
FES5RIE
(2BIMTEE () 366,888 334,388 - -
Deposits received BlES 200,000 200,000 - -
Coal mine administrative BT X
charges 136,461 73,422 - -
Employee benefits EEREF 61,500 53,449 = -
Amounts due to subsidiaries JERFTEB A A - - 456,443 530,224
Z I8
Other miscellaneous payables ~ Efh3#IHE
FEfTFRIA 153,254 146,604 24 24
1,971,384 1,737,558 456,467 530,248
Non-current JEBNEA
Purchase consideration FETUREE
payable for the acquisition EXRAR
of equity interest of 2 RE
Huameiao Energy - 1,232,000 - =
Payables for coal mining rights B %
(see Note (ii)) PRiERE
(2BAMEE (i) 153,516 - - —
2,124,900 2,969,558 456,467 530,248
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30 OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

31

(i) [t mainly represents payments received from customers
when the related trade receivables were still being
factored to banks.

(i)  Payables for coal mining rights represent payables
related to coal mining rights of Ruifeng Coal, Xingtao
Coal, Fengxi Coal and Chongsheng Coal upon the local
government’s request. These payables will be settled
in accordance with payment schedules set out in the
agreements signed between the local government and
the Group in 2012.

ACCRUED RECLAMATION OBLIGATIONS

The accrual for reclamation costs have been determined
based on management’s best estimates. However, so
far as the effect on the land from current mining activities
becomes apparent in future periods, the estimate of the
associated costs may be subject to change in the near term.
The Company’s board of directors believes that the accrued
reclamation obligations as at 31 December 2012 are adequate
and appropriate. The accrual is necessarily based on estimates
and therefore, the ultimate liability may exceed or be less than
such estimates.

30 HtEMNKEE)

31

() WESEEEEEZEWRERX
MREFRTHEEREZFHN
1

(i) FEMTBRRIRTEE S R BT
R pt i R AR 2 - B
R 78 B 2 e SRR SE IR IR R TR
RENFIR - ZFRN KA
REZHRTEREER —F
—FERENWHRAMEN R
R IE ©

HRERER

TBIRERERARREEEENS MG
ETMEETE ° A © AR EEARREAR
AR LATEREANE B ATATETTRREE
B T HER MR - HEB A
AEARARLENBELMZEE - AQ
REFEHEER=_ZE—Z—-F1+=H
=t+—HBWERERERAEMAES
o MRS NER A ETH
EfE - IUARKENBEREEEA
HIERZEHFTER -
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32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 32 EXR-RERERE
(@  Movements in components of equity @ EEIHEH)
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REEKHO LA ERNEW
balances of each component of the Group’s ﬁ;ﬁg}ga’qﬁqﬁﬁﬁ AbR & KEZS B
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated Bk o AR AEFIEZE D R
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in FH R FHROEEFIFHY 0
the Company’s individual components of equity between T
the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
The Company AT
Perpetual
subordinated Share-based
Share Share  convertible Contributed  Exchange compensation Accumulated
capital  premium  securiies  surplus  reserve  reserve losses Total
KRR HRitRER
Re  REEE TEREF AARR  EXRE CMERE  EEE ait
Note RMBOOO  RVBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBO00
iFd NRBTT  ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETr  ARETR
At1 January 2011 RF—4-A-R 91474 494633 - 638719 (17,834 4612 (12216 1219368
Share opton exercied BfiiEE &AW 10/ 5 162 - - - (t0) - 1
Foregn curency Pt ]

Hranglation lfferences - - - - (27,022) - - (27,022)
Captaisatonissue BN )i YT B4TEN - - - - - -
Fouiy-setled FERESIRG

share-based payments BEROAT 3200 - - - - - 1275 - 1275
Loss forthe year ERER - - - - - - (0309 (10309
At 31 December 2011 and RZF-—EtZA=1-H

1 January 2012 RkE-E-F-H 176266 410008 - 6879 (44.856) 5847 (25%) 1183459

Iosue of perpetual subordinated Bk AR

convertiole securties 2 - - 157812 - - - - 57872
Peretual sbordinated comverble — KARBAERERR

Securiies 153U expenses 51 30) - - %4 - - - - (41
Dividends declared and palc EREERREMRE

durng e ear 2000 - e ; : - : - m
Foreign curency \EhEEE

iranslation diferences - - - - (1,133 - - (1,133
Fouiy-setled RERERIRA

share-based payments BEROAT 320 - - - - - 6,043 - 6,043
Loss forthe year ERER - - - - - - (1629 (1629
At 31 December 2012 RF-ZFt-A=1-A 176,266 376,200 156,931 658,719 (45,989) 11890 (38,754 1295323
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32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 32 EBX - HERRE(E)
(b)  Share capital (o) BEAR
The Group and the Company REBRAAT
2012 2011
-8k —E——F
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
RE £5 R i
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR®TR NS
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of GkEE
HKDO.10 each 0.10/87T
VLR (i) 20,000,000,000 1,763,000  20,000,000,000 1,763,000
Ordinary shares, BER  #17
issued and fully paid ~ R&RE
At 1 January »—A—H 2,075,120,000 176,266  1,037,500,000 91,474
Share option exercised ~ {T{EBEMHE (i) - - 60,000 5
Capitalisation issue EXfLEnT (vil - - 1,087,560,000 84,787
2,075,120,000 176,266  2,075,120,000 176,266

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 4 March 2008 with an authorised share
capital of HKD380,000 divided into 3,800,000
shares of par value HKDO0.10 each. On 4 March
2008, a share of the Company with par value
of HKDO0.10 was allotted, issued and fully paid
to Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited as
the initial subscriber, which was subsequently
transferred by Codan Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited to Mr. Xu on the same day. On 12 June
2009, Mr. Xu transferred this one share to Fortune
Pearl International Limited (“Fortune Pearl”, the
ultimate holding company of the Group).

RARRZTEENF=A
MBI HRERHSFEMK
M v SR TE R AR /% 380,000
7 JL 0 9 43,800,000 %
i E f50.107% 7T &Y
g RZZEZENFE=
AMAB - AAF1 KRE
& £0.10% T & ik o
it % BITRBET
Codan Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited( {E
B FRET) - Codan
Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited E{& R R H G H
HEETREE - RNZTT
NERNA+=ZB  %BEE
HERFEN—RROHEE
TERBEEERAR([2
Bl REBZRKERA
al) e
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32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b)

Share capital (continued)

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to a reorganisation on 12 June 2009 (the
“Reorganisation”), 999,999 shares credited as fully
paid were allotted and issued to Fortune Pearl, in
consideration for the acquisition by the Company
of the entire equity interest of Qinfa Investment, an
intermediate holding company of the Group.

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole
shareholder passed on 12 June 2009, the
authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from HKD380,000 to HKD2,000,000,000
by the creation of an additional 19,996,200,000
shares of HKDO.10 each.

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole
shareholder passed on 12 June 2009,
749,000,000 ordinary shares of HKDO0.10 each in
the Company were issued at par value on 3 July
2009 by way of capitalisation of HKD74,900,000
(equivalent to RMB66,039,000) from the
share premium account upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange.

China Qinfa Group Limited FEI=3%&EEER AT

32

R RERKRE(E)

(b)

BRA (48)

(i)

)

RigEHA(TEA]D - B
—ETAEFEAATZAH
999,999 & & 19 A BRI &
B BEBERETTE
& UARARBEREER
B(AEE—FE+HEZER
N EHARERNRE -

BARAIE—RRRAZE
TNERNAT-_HEBZ
EERZER HRIER
19,996,200,0000% & % &
BEO10B T Z# Mk Mm » &
A AIHYATE IXAN F3.380,000
P ITH 2 2,000,000,000 7
— -

BANEH—RER=-T
TNESNAT-_HEBZ
EEARZER  FBRBEARD
AIAR 10 PR BEE X BT £ T & AR
1 & 18 Bk 9 74,900,000
BILT(HER AR
66,039,0007t ) & {E &
N 7K A 5 749,000,000
M FAXE(E0.10 B THIE
BER=_ZETNFLA=
BIREEZETT
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32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b)

Share capital (continued)

(v)

On 3 July 2009, 250,000,000 ordinary shares
of HKDO.10 each were issued at a price of
HKD2.52 per share under the Initial Public Offering
and the International Placing. The proceeds of
HKD25,000,000 (equivalent to RMB22,042,000)
representing the par value, were credited to
the Company’s share capital. The remaining
proceeds of HKD605,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB533,429,000), before the issuing expenses,
were credited to the share premium account.

On 22 July 2009, the underwriters of the
International Placing exercised the over-allotment
option for the issuance of 37,500,000 ordinary
shares of HKDO0.10 each at HKD2.52 per share.
The proceeds of HKD3,750,000 (equivalent
to RMBS3,305,000) representing the par value,
were credited to the Company’s share capital.
The remaining proceeds of HKD90,750,000
(equivalent to RMB79,987,000), before the issuing
expenses, were credited to the share premium
account.

32

B RERKRE(E)

(b)

PR (&)

(iv)

RZZEZNFEA=H"
5 A= /NN ek 3 =R ] S
it & 2§ #R2.527%8 T &Y
{& 1& %% 17250,000,000 %
FREECI0BTZER
% ° B3 338 25,000,000
BILT(HERAR®E
22,042,0007t) (FEEE)
STAARRRIZBEAR - &
# FIT 13 3 38 605,000,000
BILX(HER AR
533,429,0007T) * FEFER
BITRZ 2 AT - 5t ARD
EBEARA o

RZZEZNFEA=+=
H BRESHEHEE
T BEERE AE
A% 2.527%8 T B B 1% 3 1T
37,500,000 % & % ® &
0108 T2 E B °
FfT 15 3% 78 3,750,000 7% 7©
(FBER AR 3,305,000
7t) (FEEME)FFARATA
ZIRAA o HERFTSRIE
90,750,000 7 7T ( #8 55 A
A R #79,987,0007T )
EHBRBEITAI ZAT * 5
AR R ERRA o
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32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b)

Share capital (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

On 8 April 2011, 60,000 share options under
the Pre-IPO Option were exercised for the same
number of shares at an exercise price of HKD2.52
per share (see Note 28(a)). All issued shares
have been fully paid. The proceeds of HKD6,000
(equivalent to RMB5,000) representing the par
value, were credited to the Company’s share
capital. The remaining proceeds of HKD145,000
(equivalent to RMB122,000) were credited to the
share premium account.

The extraordinary general meeting held on 30
September 2011 approved the bonus issue
of one share for every one existing share held
by the shareholders whose names are on the
register of members on 10 October 2011. As a
result, the issued share capital of the Company
increased from HKD103,756,000 (equivalent to
RMB91,479,000) to HKD207,512,000 (equivalent
to RMB176,266,000) through capitalisation of
share premium of HKD103,756,000 (equivalent to
RMB84,787,000).
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32

B RERKRE(E)

(b)

BRA (48)

(vi)

(vii)

R=ZFE——F@m™ANR -
BIX AR EREREE
T 60,000 17 fE B A1 AR
2.52 B TATIEBESTE -
LARERFE R 2B 2 Bk m
(2E3Mt5E28(a)) ° FTEE
BITRDE BRI/ - F1
1S3IE 6,000 7T (FAER
AR 5,0007T) GEEE)
FTARRRIKI IR - Hp
FT{S 338 145,000 7 7T (#8
EM AR 122,0007T) 5T
AR R ERR o

RZTE——FNA=+H
BITHRRFHIASE S
BERN—_E——%+ A+
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32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(©)

Perpetual subordinated convertible securities

On 31 December 2012, the Company issued
perpetual subordinated convertible securities
(“convertible securities”) to Fortune Pearl with a value of
HKD194,700,000 (equivalent to RMB157,872,000). The
direct transaction costs attributable to the convertible
securities amounted to RMB941,000.

The convertible securities are convertible at the option of
the holder of convertible securities into ordinary shares
of the Company at any time after 31 December 2012
at the initial conversion price of HKD1.65 per ordinary
share of the Company. While the convertible securities
confer a right to receive distributions at 3% per annum,
the Company may, at its sole discretion, elect to defer
a distribution pursuant to the terms of the convertible
securities.

The convertible securities have no maturity date and are
redeemable at the option of the Company at 100% or
50% of the principal amount of the convertible securities
each time, on any distribution payment date at the
face value of the outstanding principal amount of the
convertible securities to be redeemed plus 100% or 50%
(as the case may be) of distributions accrued to such
date.

As the convertible securities have no contracted
obligation to repay its principal nor to pay any
distributions, they do not meet the definition for
classification of a financial liabilities under IAS 32. As a
result, the whole instrument is classified as equity, and
respective distributions if and when declared are treated
as equity dividends.

32

B RERKRE(E)

(©)

IR AR P PR 78 25

RZEBE—=—&FE+=A=+—
H "R RARBITEMELAE
194,700,000 T (HER AR
¥ 157,872,000 7T ) Z 7K AR 4%
AR ES ([ ARRES]) T
2iE - BAMREBSFELENE
ERS5ERRARKEI,000

o

o

v

ABMRESFAR-_F—-F
TZA=1+T—RZBHOEME
R R AT R E A A ARE
BRBAARRNREER  NF
HREBERERALAERAMK
1.65/8 7T ° & & Al AR 5
TR IKREE F3% 25K
B ARRNAEEEERE
AR B S R EBEH DK

b=l

AmRFESWESEE - AR
ZN/NEI L SE SRl e
7N % B8 2 100% % 50% T A B
B RERSIRESN R AEH
FHEE M AR ESFBEITA
CHEEESNREEERRE
75 K B8 2 100% 8% 50% (47 F
BERME)

R AR RESHEEAER
A BEH M ERDIRERZ L
EEME YU THEEERE
EHER2FAH BB EHER
BRE © FEitt - 2R EE R
TEHDBERERS  MEDIK
BREIRRER S E R -

Annual Report 2012 =& ——FF3f

181




Notes to the Financial Statements B %3 32 M et

182

32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(@

Reserves

(i)

Share premium

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole
shareholder passed on 12 June 2009,
749,000,000 ordinary shares of HKDO0.10 each in
the Company were issued at par value on 3 July
2009 by way of capitalisation of HKD74,900,000
(equivalent to RMB66,039,000) from the
share premium account upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange.

250,000,000 ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each in
the Company were issued at HKD2.52 per share
under the Initial Public Offering on 3 July 2009. The
excess of the proceeds totalling HKD605,000,000
(equivalent to RMB533,429,000) over the nominal
value of the total number of ordinary shares
issued, less certain listing costs of HKD49,562,000
(equivalent to RMB43,699,000) incurred in
connection with the issue of the share capital,
amounting to HKD555,438,000 (equivalent to
RMB489,730,000), were credited to the share
premium account.
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32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Reserves (continued)

@i

Share premium (continued)

An additional 37,500,000 ordinary shares of
HKDO0.10 each in the Company were issued
at HKD2.52 per share on 22 July 2009
pursuant to the over-allotment option related
to the International Placing. The excess of the
proceeds totalling HKD90,750,000 (equivalent
to RMB79,987,000) over the nominal value of
the total number of ordinary shares issued, less
certain listing costs of HKD10,259,000 (equivalent
to RMB9,045,000) incurred in connection
with the issue of share capital, amounting to
HKD80,491,000 (equivalent to RMB70,942,000),
were credited to the share premium account.

On 8 April 2011, 60,000 shares of HKDO0.10 each
in the Company were issued at HKD2.52 per
share as a result of the exercise of vested options
arising from the Pre-IPO Option (see Note 28(a)).
The excess of the proceeds totalling HKD145,000
(equivalent to RMB122,000) was credited to the
share premium of the Company. HKD48,000
(equivalent to RMB40,000) has been transferred
from the share-based compensation reserve to the
share premium account in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 2(l)(iii).

Pursuant to a written resolution of the directors’
meeting passed on 23 August 2012, the
Company declared a special interim dividend of
HKD41,502,400 (equivalent to RMB 33,748,000)
(see Note 32(f). The amount was out of the share
premium account.
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32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(@

Reserves (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between
the aggregate amount of paid-in capital of the
subsidiaries of the Company and the amount of
share capital of the Company transferred and
issued to Fortune Pearl in exchange for the entire
equity interests in all members of the Group as part
of the Reorganisation.

Reserves

Statutory surplus reserve

Statutory surplus reserve was established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of
the companies comprising the Group which are
established in the PRC.

Statutory surplus reserves can be used to make
good losses, if any, and may be converted into
capital in proportion to the existing equity interests
of investors, provided that the balance after such
conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital.
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32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Reserves (continued)

(iii)

Reserves (continued)

Specific reserve — maintenance and production
funds

According to relevant PRC regulations, the Group
is required to transfer an amount to specific
reserve for the maintenance and production funds
based on coal production volume and revenue
of shipping business. The movement of specific
reserve is as follows:

Balance at 1 January 2011
Provision for the year
Utilisation for the year

FRREME
FAEHHA

Balance at 31 December 2011

FREE
FREH

Provision for the year
Utilisation for the year

Balance at 31 December 2012
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32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Reserves (continued)

Discretionary surplus reserve

The appropriation to the discretionary surplus
reserve is subject to the shareholders’ approval.
The utilisation of the reserve is similar to that of the
statutory surplus reserve.

The directors have not proposed any appropriation
to the discretionary surplus reserve in 2012 and
2011,

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 2(d).
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32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Reserves (continued)

(v) Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve represents
the value of employee services in respect of share
options granted under the Pre-IPO Option and
Share Option as set out in Note 28.

(vi) Distributability of reserves

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in share premium account are
distributable to shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves
of the Company as at 31 December 2012 was
RMB337,506,000 (2011: RMB387,483,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.
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32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

)

Capital management (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors
its capital structure on the basis of debt to equity ratio.
For this purpose, the Group defines debt as total loans
and borrowings, and equity as total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company.

The debt to equity ratio as at 31 December 2012 and
2011 was as follows:

Debt to equity ratio (EVGEAE: Sl s
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32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(f)

Dividends

(i)

Dividends paid to equity shareholders
attributable to the year

32

Interim dividend declared and ~ AFE TR &R E)
paid of HKD2 cents per FRTER 2B
ordinary share FRHARR S
during the year

Final dividend proposed
after the reporting date of R BERRAY
HKD3 cents per HREE BRI B2
ordinary share REARR B

According to the written resolution of the
directors’ meeting passed on 23 August 2012, the
Company declared a special interim dividend of
HKD41,502,400 (equivalent to RMB33,748,000)
to its then equity shareholder. Such dividend was
fully paid on 19 October 2012.

At a meeting held on 22 March 2013, the Board
of Directors proposed a final dividend of HKD3
cents which will be satisfied by allotment of new
shares of the Company, credited as fully paid, by
way of scrip dividend, with an alternative to equity
holders to elect to receive such final dividend (or
part thereof) in cash in lieu of such allotment. This
proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend
payable in these financial statements.
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 33 SHEEAREERAAE

Exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest risk and currency $ SEEeEEFEFBREFLERE
risk arises in the normal course of the Group’s businesses. B REEe - MEXRREEREKE o AN
The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk EB BB IEEIEBERRER - &

190

management policies and practices used by the Group to

BLRBRETER  ASEHEHEKRR

manage these risks are described below. T e

(@)  Credit risk @ EERR
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade AEBZEERREEREE
and bills receivable. I & SRR R IEW R -
Management has a credit policy in place and the EEEEEREEBR - i’[?ﬁ
exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing 3 188 4 A 1L BE SR (= 1 | i
basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers REFLHMBEERBAE —fFT
requiring credit over a certain amount. EEESENEPETEER

fi o
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly AEBHEBRNEERBREES
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather FEEFPMERN S mIERF
than the industry or country in which the customer WEMETEIERTZE
operate and therefore significant concentrations of o FERAREERERNERF
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant EBREEARRRE LIS L IREE
exposure to individual customers. At the reporting date, ERRkREF RIS HH -
49.70% (2011: 24.44%) of the total trade and bills ERE S EETA&JEH& =iy
receivable was due from the five largest customers within EB 1 49.70 % T ——F:
the coal business segment. The maximum exposure to 24.44%) TJFEHSZ k%m%i‘%’\*
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each ARBEFPHIE - &x=EERR
financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial BRSEMEEY EEETEE%?\
position. The Group does not provide any guarantee EMBARARRES - NEH
which would expose the Group to credit risk. RAEBE 2 EERR I &R M
ERIELR o

(b)  Liquidity risk b) REBETER
Individual operating entities within the Group are $%@W1I%|JA@§ A E
responsible for their own cash management, but the E;iﬁﬁ EfEEARSE
borrowings are subject to approval by the parent NAE i@iﬁﬁt/ﬁ ° $§%IZ

company’s management. The Group’s policy is to

BHRREPRERERDPESH

regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its KR HEFEABREHZE
compliance with any lending covenants, to ensure that T AEREBRFEAR S
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate BRREETECHEE BT
committed lines of funding from major financial AEECEE  UWEMNERE
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short HRnE#ELSENK -

and longer term.
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 33 SREREERAAREBE(E)

(continued)
(o)  Liquidity risk (continued) () mBIETRER ()
The following tables show the remaining contractual TRFVWWAEE ZIESTES R
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s non- BEREERAZFEE 4T H
derivative financial liabilities which are based on H - BEEHANRENKRT
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest IR nesE(BFEEASLF
payments computed using contractual rates or, if RAE 7 MBS BF
floating, based on rates current at the reporting date) and B BliRskE BB 2 FI=Rst
the earliest date the Group can be required to pay: ) LARAEB A EBNKZ &
FHEEE
Year ended 31 December 2012
BE-F-"Ht-A=t-HLERFE
Total Within one More than one
undiscounted yearor year and less

Carrying cashflow  ondemand than five years More than

amount ik —FRg —F#% five years

REE ReRsE REX BRER REHNE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT  AR%TR ARBTr ARETRT ARETR

Current E

Loans and borrowings BHREER 5,103,416 5,343,891 5,343,891 - -

Trade and bills payable ERE AR RENZE 3,353,794 3,353,794 3,353,794 - -

Other payables Eft TR 1971384 1,971,384 1,971,384 - -

10,428,594 10,669,069 10,669,069 = =

Non-current FhE

Loans and borrowings ERREE 2,169,967 2,775,244 - 1,923,343 851,901

Other payables HivfersE 153,516 194,615 - 113,815 80,800
2,323,483 2,969,859 - 2,037,158 932,701

12,752,077 13,638,928 10,669,069 2,037,158 932,701
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 33 SREREERAAREBE(E)

(continued)
(o)  Liquidity risk (continued) () mBECRER ()
Year ended 31 December 2011
BE-E——45+_f=t-ALEE
Total Within one ~ More than one
undiscounted yearor  year and less
Carrying cash flow ondemand  than five years More than
amount bS] —FN —F% five years
RHE Renesd REX BRER REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Current E
Loans and borrowings BHREE 1,565,273 1,746,694 1,746,694 = =
Trade and bills payable [ERE AR RENZE 2,012,289 2,015,159 2,015,159 - -
Other payables EftERATE 1787558 1,737,558 1,787,558 - -
5,315,120 5,499,411 5,499,411 - -
Non-current E k)
Loans and borrowings BIRiEE 1,782,778 2,104,181 - 1,820,106 284,075
Other payables At ERIFE 1,232,000 1,232,000 - 1,232,000 -

3,014,778 3,336,181 = 3,052,106 284,075

8,329,898 8,835,592 5,499,411 3,052,106 284,075
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

(©)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from loans
and borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below:

33 SREREERAAREBE(E)

(€ FIxREkR

AEEZANEREBREIEREE
BREE - RAEN X REE
MEBAZEEERAEE D R
AXBERENEREREAAR
BENXEAR BREEEREZN
SEMXFEREIIN T () :

(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIZ=ER
The following table detalils the interest rate profile of TEHAEB Y EHR
the Group’s loans and borrowings at the reporting EBEFRREH 2 =R
date: VI
The Group
FEE
2012 2011
Bk 25
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
per annum  Carrying value perannum  Carrying value
BIRER= REE EREFI= FHME
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTL ARETFT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEFEEE
Loans and borrowings ERREE 1.21%-8.32% 4375820  3.47%-11.5% 934,865
Less: pledged deposits o BEEER (1,623,790) (535,745)
2,752,030 399,120
Variable rate borrowings: ERIREE
Loans and borrowings EFREE 2.31%-8.32% 2,897,563  1.19%-8.98% 2,413,186
Less: pledged deposits R (17,454) -
2,880,109 2,413,186
Total net borrowings REFE 5,632,139 2,812,306
Net fixed rate borrowings EENEEERE
as a percentage of total EREERE
net borrowings MBS 48.86% 14.19%
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

It is estimated that a general increase/decrease
of 100 basis points in the interest rates of variable
rate borrowings prevailing at the reporting date,
with all other variables held constant, would
decrease/increase the Group’s profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately RMB21,790,000
for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011:
RMB14,790,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit after
tax and consolidated equity that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the reporting date and had been
applied to re-measure those floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
at the reporting date. The impact on the Group’s
profit after tax and consolidated equity is estimated
as an annualised impact on interest expense of
such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2011.
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

33 SREREERAAREBE(E)

(continued)
(d)  Foreign currency risk (d) HNERBR
RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. ARBARIBHRLRAINE -
All foreign exchange transactions involving RMB must FiE# R ARBEEINER S I
take place through the People’s Bank of China or other BEAREARBITHEAME
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. R EEINE R REEST -
The exchange rate adopted for the foreign exchange INERZ ZETEEFE M E R &
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the ARBITHAHROER - ZZE
People’s Bank of China that are determined largely RFTBEHEKET - AEEH
by supply and demand. The Group is exposed to SNER bR E ZE R B AETYIE
foreign currency risk primarily through purchases and MBEREE  MASEAA
borrowings that are denominated in USD, while all the BEMEBETEZUARBEET
other operations of the Group are mainly transacted in X5 o ERBEZELINET
RMB. Changes in exchange rate affect the RMB value of B/ A ERIBA AR AR
purchase costs of commodities that are denominated in BE -
foreign currencies.
The following table demonstrates the Group’s exposure TRERASENREHEL
at the reporting date to currency risk arising from HFEEEENERNINEER
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency NN ERETENEREREE
other than the functional currency of the entity to which S EEMEENERERER o
they relate.
2012 2011
—E--F %
uUSD’000 HKD’000 USD’000 HKD’000
TEx THET FET FHT
Cash and cash equivalents ~ IR& KIR&EHEY) 254 6,196 10 2118
Trade and bills receivable FEWE 5 R
PUIES 7,343 - 8,770 344
Trade and bills payable ERE SRR
RENEE (118,359) - (242,863) (29)
Loans and borrowings ERkEE (28,208) - (15,264) =
(138,970) 6,196 (254,347) 2,433
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

33 SREREERAAREBE(E)

(d)  Foreign currency risk (continued) (d)

SN LB (A8

The following significant exchange rates applied during AN AREERBNEEER

the year:

Reporting date

Average rate

mid-spot rate

FigE=E Rk BN EE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E-—f —T——% B —T——%F
USD 1 13E7T 6.3125 6.4588 6.2855 6.3009
HKD 1 17%7T 0.8104 0.8297 0.8109 0.8107
Foreign exchange sensitivity analysis SNE BT

TR B R A B 2 BB 4
(RARB%F) BHEE B ESR
2 AR RD (REEAR L LD
AEEARS) M2 BH
B BERHGARERTE -

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits)
that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the
Group has significant exposure at the reporting date had
changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.

196

The Group REH
2012 2011
—2-CF —F——F
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) profit (decrease) profit
in foreign after tax and in foreign  after tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
Ex HRBE fE HERTR
tH/  BIRRE /S RFIRRE
(T) BAz¥E (T) BNz FE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
usD V) 5% (32,756) 5% (60,098)
(5%) 32,756 (5%) 60,098
HKD BT 5% 238 5% 88
(5%) (238) (5%) (88)
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

(d)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax and equity
measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange rate ruling at the
reporting date for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the
reporting date, including inter-company payables and
receivables within the Group which are denominated in
a currency other than the functional currencies of the
lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency and other investments. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2011.

Fair value

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
reporting date across three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in IFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial
instrument categorised in its entirety based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

° Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments

33 SREREERAARE(E)

SN R ()

ERZINZDMERBRAE
ERERNZBERERNEES
BHE(REHRAW  BEHRSE
BZEXRABOARE) 2 AF
RSN R 2 BV &
HEE -

RS TERBINEER S
SHE NS B EE
AL RS B AR B
NERRZEBRTE  0iE%
IR ASE B T S 2 e i
e (B B A T R R
b5 T BIE IS8 5N 75 2 Bt
BRRAEREEE L 25K
HURAMEEZZE - %P
FRBR-E—— AL
T -

5
;i
i

() BAAEFENERIA

TRIZBBERYBHREE
AIFE7SRIEMTE: ®
BITRENRAEZRE
/g - SR T RERE B A
AREFENSBTAR
HEE - ERTARER
REAERMRANER
S2HNREBRNE - =
BREBERNT :

. ER—(BBE):
D5 OB BT 5
hEESRIAK
HHIE R A E)
3
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

(e)  Fair value (continued)

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value
(continued)

° Level 2: fair value measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data

° Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on observable
market data

The Group

Level 1
[E =
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Derivatives PTETE -

33 SREREERAAREBE(E)

€ RAREGE)

() RBRARENENESRIA
(&

e EBRZ:RREMN
ERM SR ENS
MITEMRERT
o 1B A 1 (8 BT
FOHEBEA®
FMBEEELHYE
ok EEHIRE 7]
BTSSR

e EBAR=(REE):
DA EERGBER
i - (HEEPT
RHABEEZZ2H
BARREABEN
DEEE 2SS

FEME

2012
—E——fF
Level 2 Level 3 Total
EIR= [ER= &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTRT AR¥TR AR%®TR

Level 1
ER—
RMB’000
AREETTT

4

Derivatives PTETHE -

2011
—T—%F
Level 2 Level 3 Total
BiR= BR= AFt

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TT ARETT

(1,661) = (1,661)

During the year there were no significant transfers
between instruments in Level 1 and Level 2 (2011:
Nil).
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

(e)  Fair value (continued)

(i)  Fair values of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
approximate their respective fair values as at 31
December 2012 (same for 2011).

34 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at the year end not provided
for in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Contracted for B4

33 SREREERAAREBE(E)

€ 2RAEEE)

i) &
=1

SETENERT
AE

S »
=

REERZT——F+=
B=+—BERRAES#
HEENSm T AR
AERSBEEA A EME
& (ZZ——F48R) -

34 EXREE
RERITARNERE T HRER AR
HARBITEARALELT

2012 2011
—¥—-F —E——4
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

1,445,681 1,352,728
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35 OPERATING LEASES 35 REHE
(@ Leases as lessee @ 1ERAMEAZES
At each reporting date, the total future minimum lease REFRER  NEBERBETA
payments of the Group under non-cancellable operating BB MEREME
leases in respect of properties and vessels are payable IR BEREAERIBELBD
as follows: I
2012 2011
—E-CF —B——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETTT

Within 1 year —FR 6,161 17,853
After 1 year but within 5 years —ERBERENRN 44,359 64,466
After 5 years hFE - 1,209
50,520 83,528

(b) Leases as lesser b) {EAHBEAZEE

AEERBLEHOLEES
M MRBETATBGEEEHEO
M R REEESRRBENT

The Group leases out its vessels under operating leases
and the future minimum lease income under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

2012 2011
—E-—F —T—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETE

Within 1 year —FR 680 7,760
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 EABEIRS
The Group has conducted certain transactions with AEBFANEREERHETEERR
Qinhuangdao Qinfa Industry Group Co., Ltd. (“Qinfa Industry”), RAal([REEX])  AERERRE
Tongmei Qinfa and Mr. Xu during the year. Mr. Xu is the THEETRD - RAEERFREXER
shareholder of Qinfa Industry and Fortune Pearl, the ultimate REBEFLEIERFTEEHIRE °

controlling party of the Group.

REBFERNRE ABETNEARS
Particulars of significant transactions between the Group and BT ¢
the above related parties for the year are as follows:

@ BAAEIRS
(@  Significant related party transactions

KEMRS
Recurring transactions

Transaction values Balance outstanding
for the year ended as at
31 December 31 December
BE+T-A=+—HLEE Rt+=A=+—~H
RS EE ZATEERER
2012 2011 2012 2011

—8--%f —T——% -B--f —T—F
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREBTR ARETT AR®TR ARETE

Sales of coal SHE IR

— Tongmei Qinfa — [R5 645,131 - 754,803 =
Purchase of coal B R

— Tongmei Qinfa — [R5 518,892 - 16,938 =

Operating leases from A& &A%k B
— Qinfa Industry —RBEX 1,209 1,209 - =
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36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 EABEAIRS (&)
(continued)
(b)  Guarantees issued by related parties (b) FBEEIRERER
2012 2011
—B-CfF —E——%F
thousand thousand
SFae T
Guarantees issued by Mr. Xu R A H B MELR
- RMB —AR¥ 3,080,000 3,420,000
- HK Dollars —BTT 712,000 700,000
—US Dollars —%7T 33,950 37,912
(©) Key management personnel remuneration ) FREREEALTHE
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AEEBRREEEA TN
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s (BENFI0BEENSISTAR
directors as disclosed in Note 10 and certain of the REENSBEANE11EED
highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 11, is as BN TETEENZ=FH)
follows: ™
2012 2011
—B-CfF —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETE

Directors’ fee R 2,445 561
Salaries, allowances and A& - 2L
benefits in kind NEWiEH 7,091 8,920
Contributions to retirement RIRAEFGT B 5K
benefit schemes 53 48
Discretionary bonuses BIETEAT 8,341 8,644
Share-based payments LARS 1 AR EERE AT 3K 4,136 512
22,066 18,685
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 37
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT

NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
has issued a number of amendments and five new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2012 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be relevant
to the Group:

EEMEERRBE-8— =%
+oASt-RLEELNZE
i FEARREN TR

H

>m
MN

gc %%yEfJﬁﬂuﬁ
REBE_Z——F+_A
—BIEFEERER - TALRR

LSRR PR o AT RIEABE

EHBmERTIER BRe
ge
B

B3I B

%4M+

\|
/

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RT3 SRz &R
HETHIEEXR

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements —

Presentation of items of other

comprehensive income 1 July 2012
BIFR & 522 1 58 (18R] A) 23|MBHRE -2 HEMEEKRER —T——_F+HA—H
IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2013
B B 75 e = 2E BRI S8 10 51% e gmER —=%f—H—H
IFRS 11 Joint arrangements 1 January 2013
B B S SR o R B 56 11 53R HREZHE E—=F—H—H
IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities 1 January 2013
B A B 75 i 5 HE RIS 12 55% BENHEMER #n —T—=%—H—H
IFRS 13 Fair value measurement 1 January 2013
B B 75 i 5 4E R S8 13 55% ARfEETE —=f—H—H
IAS 27 Separated financial statements (2011) 1 January 2013
BIRR & 5T RIS 27 5% BIABHRE (ZF——F) —=F—H—H
IAS 28 Investments in associates and joint ventures 1 January 2013
B e SRR 5 28 517 REFE RN R REEREZRE —T—=%—H—H
Revised IAS 19 Employee benefits 1 January 2013
B & 5T RIS 1998 (B48E]) EBEN —=F—H—H
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37 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 37
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

DECEMBER 2012 (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle
BB RE AN - TENF
——T—FRBzFEIE
Amendments to IFRS 7

BIFR I TS s 2RI 5B 7 5% (B RTA)

Amendments to IAS 32

ERMENRAREZE_F-—Z=F
tTZA=+-BLEFEERZE
i FEAIR RN A REE (F)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RT3 B2 &%
WEFHHBEXN

1 January 2013

—=F—H—H
Financial instruments: Disclosures —
Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and liabilities
TRITA : HE-HE-EKHSR
BERAR —E—=%—H—H

Financial instruments: Presentation —

1 January 2013

Offsetting financial assets and

financial liabilities

1 January 2014

BFR & Et2ERIE 3258 (R A) TRIA: 27 -EHeRMEERCRAR —ZE—mMFE—-HA—H
IFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2015
B B s R o R B 56 9 5% CETH —E-hF—HA—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these new amendments, standards and
interpretations are expected to be in the period of initial
application but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new amendments, standards and interpretations would have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

38 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2012, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be
Fortune Pearl, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands. This entity does not produce financial statements
available for public use.
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